CITY OF %@ CITY OF LANSING COUNCIL AGENDA

I_ A N I N G Council Chambers Regular Meeting

800 1st Terrace Thursday, September 17, 2020
Lansing, KS 66043 7:00 P.M.

WELCOME TO YOUR CITY COUNCIL MEETING

Regular meetings are held on the first and third Thursday of each month at 7 pm and are televised on Cable Television Channel 2 on Monday 7 pm, Tuesday 10 am & 7 pm, Friday
5 pm, Saturday 1 pm and Sunday 7 pm.

Any person wishing to address the City Council, simply proceed to the microphone in front of the dais after the agenda item has been introduced and wait to be recognized by the
Mayor. When called upon, please begin by stating your name and address. A time designated “Audience Participation” is listed on the agenda for any matter that does not appear
on this agenda. The Mayor will call for audience participation. Please be aware that the city council and staff may not have had advance notice of your topic and that the city council
may not be able to provide a decision at the meeting. If you require any special assistance, please notify the City Clerk prior to the meeting.

e In order to adhere to social distancing and limiting large gatherings of people to mitigate the spread of
COVID-19, the Lansing City Meeting will not be open to the public. In accordance with Kansas Open
Meetings Act (KOMA), the meeting can be viewed live via YouTube at www.lansingks.org/live and will
be available for viewing on Spectrum Cable Channel 2 the following day.

e Want to comment during Audience Participation?

o Submit your comment to Cityclerk@lansingks.orq no later than 6:00 p.m. on September
16th.

e Questions on agenda items will be read during discussion on that topic.

o Submityour question to Cityclerk@lansingks.org no later than 6:00 pm on September 16th.

Call To Order
Pledge of Allegiance
Roll Call

OLD BUSINESS:
1. Approval of Minutes

NEW BUSINESS:

Audience Participation
Presentations:
Council Consideration of Agenda Items:
2. League of Kansas Municipalities Voting Delegates
3. Lansing Tree Board Appointment
4. Ordinance No. 1048 — Issuance of General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2020-A
5. Resolution No. B-5-2020 — Sale and Delivery of General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series
2020-A
6. Resolution No. B-6-2020 — Issuance, Sale, and Delivery of Taxable General Obligation
Temporary Notes, Series 2020-1
7. Resolution No. B-7-2020 — Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan
8. Drainage Basin 9G/9H Sanitary Sewer Interceptor Extension Study
Reports:
Department Heads: City Attorney; City Engineer; City Administrator; Councilmembers

Proclamations

Other Items of Interest:
¢ Monthly Department Vehicle and Equipment Mileage Reports
e Community & Economic Development Permits/Licenses & Code Enforcement Report
¢ Lansing Police Department Kudos — Officer Munoz

Adjournment


http://www.lansingks.org/live
mailto:Cityclerk@lansingks.org
mailto:Cityclerk@lansingks.org

AGENDA ITEM

TO: Tim Vandall, City Administratoé?’
THRU: Sarah Bodensteiner, City Clerk '\

FROM: Shantel Scrogin, Assistant City Clerk &S
DATE: September 8, 2020

SUBJECT: Approval of Minutes

The Regular Meeting Minutes for September 3, 2020 are enclosed for your review.

Action: Staff recommends a motion to approve the Regular Meeting Minutes for September 3,
2020 as presented.

AGENDA ITEM #




CITY OF LANSING REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

CITY COUNCIL MEETING September 3, 2020

Call To Order: Councilmembers Present:

The regular meeting of the Lansing City Council Ward 1: Gene Kirby and Dave Trinkle

was called to order by Mayor Mike Smith at 7:.00 Ward 2: Don Studnicka and Marcus Majure
p.m. Ward 3: Jesse Garvey and Kerry Brungardt
Roll Call: Ward 4: Tony McNeill and Gregg Buehler

Mayor Mike Smith called the roll and indicated

; ) ; Councilmembers Absent:
which Councilmembers were in attendance. ©

All Councilmembers were present via Zoom video conference.

OLD BUSINESS:

Approval of Minutes: Councilmember Trinkle moved to approve the regular meeting minutes of August
20, 2020, as presented. Councilmember McNeill seconded the motion. The motion was unanimously
approved.

Audience Participation: Mayor Smith called for audience participation and John Dalby, USD 469
School Board President, gave the Council an update on what direction the schools are going in as we start
the 2020-2021 school year. First, he acknowledged how great the teachers we have are and they are his
heroes. The ROARS plan offered 2 types of learning — in person at school or remote learning at home. The
in-person learning is based off a 4-1 week where four days are spent in school and the other day is at home
remote learning. The school board didn't go with a 50/50 hybrid model because they didn't feel it gave the
kids enough time for in person learning. That 50-50 plan could possibly expand a child’s radius of exposure
to the virus due to them having to go to daycare, a sitter, or another relatives house on days they aren’t in
school. In gating criteria discussions with the County Health Department, there will be a lead time of 1-2
weeks if we have to transition from in person learning to all remote learning. If the community is wondering
what they can do, there is a shortage in substitute teachers. Most often, substitute teachers are retired
teachers and they are now considered high risk, so they have removed themselves as an option. If anyone
in the community has time to spare so teachers can go to the doctor, take their own kids to appointments,
etc. then please consider being a substitute teacher. This shortage is nationwide, not just in our district. It's
also important to enforce at home what is being required at schools like handwashing, mask wearing and
social distancing. It's important to keep your kid at home if they are sick. And again, thank a teacher if you
get the chance. They are leading our kids into the future.

e Councilmember Kirby asked about social distancing on buses.

o John Dalby replied it's nearly impossible. We don't have enough buses or time to do routes
multiple times. They are trying to put one kid per seat. Kids will be required to wear a mask
and have their temperature taken before they get on the bus. Parents have the option to
drop their kids off and pick them up if that is a concern.

= Councilmember Kirby asked what the procedure would be if a kid does have a
fever and can’t get on the bus.

e John Dalby responded he doesn’t have specific details on that yet. They
are still working on how that would be handled. They will not leave a kid at
the bus stop though.

o Councilmember Kirby asked if he knew how many classrooms
would not being able to social distance.
= John Dalby replied out of the rooms he visited at the
elementary and middle school the day before, there was
one classroom where desks were not 3 ft apart. These
desks were larger desks so they took up more square
footage but sitting at the desks the kids would be 3 ft apart.



September 3, 2020 Council Regular Meeting Minutes (CONINUE) .........c..eee.ceerreseresmserssemsssssessesssseeseessoosseseseeseseesseemseseeeseemeseeseesees

e Councilmember Kirby asked that masks are going
to be required at the football games and who is
going to enforce it.

o John Dalby responded that is a KSHSAA
policy and we support it. We aren’t going
to call the police or anything like that if
someone is not wearing one but we do
need people to comply and do the right
thing so these kids can continue to play
sports.

= Councilmember Kirby asked Mr.
Dalby to be transparent when we
have a student/class quarantined
or large number of positive cases
and let the community know.

o John Dalby agreed that information does
need to be shared within the rules and
laws that exist. The County may already
be ahead on that since they have to verify
all cases.

¢ Councilmember Trinkle asked if the bus drivers will be protected.
o John Dalby replied he believed they would be outfitted with PPE but would follow up on
that. They are getting sanitation supplies as well.
Councilmember Trinkle stated it would be good for the City to join forces with the School District to head off
rumors. Everyone wants their kids safe so maybe dispelling rumors will help.
Councilmember Brungardt stated across the state many districts are concerned about their Sate
Assessment scores. The State tests given now are more rigorous compared to previous years. Our
curriculum had to be rewritten so it was in line with State Assessments. We are still a good school district
and our kids show that. Whether our kids continue education through college or enter the workforce, they
are successful. The middle school is either at or above the State average with the exception of 7t grade
Math.
Councilmember Studnicka stated the schools are doing everything they can to keep the students safe, but
we need parents to reinforce requirements like mask wearing and social distancing. He also stated he
thought the Superintendent of the schools should be the face man and putting out information. He stated
this is great information for the Councilmembers as the main focus going forward should be community
safety.
Councilmember Majure thanked John Dalby for coming and thanked all the board members for
volunteering. He pointed out teachers are going an extra mile by not only making lesson plans, doing the
work but they are also cleaning a lot more. He thanked the teachers for all they are doing.
Presentations
COUNCIL CONSIDERATION OF AGENDA ITEMS:
Ordinance No. 1045 — Standard Traffic Ordinance Adoption: Counciimember Buehler moved to

approve Ordinance No. 1045, adopting the 2020 Standard Traffic Ordinance for Kansas Cities, 47t Edition.
Councilmember Kirby seconded the motion. The motion was unanimously approved.

Ordinance No. 1046 — Uniform Public Offense Code Adoption: Councilmember McNeill moved to
approve Ordinance No. 1046, adopting the 2020 Uniform Public Offense Code for Kansas Cities, 36"
Edition. Councilmember Buehler seconded the motion. The motion was unanimously approved.

Ordinance No. 1047 — Fine, Bond, Court Fees & Costs Established by Municipal Court
Judge: Councilmember Studnicka moved to approve Ordinance No. 1047, adopting the City of Lansing
Municipal Court Fines and Fees Schedule. Councilmember Buehler seconded the motion. The motion was
unanimously approved.



September 3, 2020 Council Regular Meeting Minutes (CONtINUEH)..........ecmeserersemserseressesmsesesserseessesesesssrsesssessossensesense ..Page 3

REPORTS:

Department Heads: City Clerk Sarah Bodensteiner asked the Council if they would prefer to wear polo
shirts or suits for their professional photos for the city website. Several Councilmembers voiced an interest
in the polo shirts.

City Attorney: City Attorney Greg Robinson had nothing to report.

City Engineer: City Engineer Matt Harding had nothing to report.

City Administrator: City Administrator Tim Vandall let the Council know Public Works Director Mike
Spickelmier will brief the Council at the September 24t Work Session on a program to do a cost share for
sidewalk repairs. Library Director Terri Wojtalewicz will also give a library update.

Governing Body: Councilmember Buehler thanked John Dalby for coming and keeping the Council
updated. He also provided a fun fact, on this day in 1783, the American Revolutionary War ended with the
signing of the Treaty of Paris by the United States and Great Britain.

Councilmember McNeill, Studnicka, Trinkle, Majure, and Garvey all echoed Councilmember Buehler’s
sentiments to John Dalby for coming to the meeting.

Councilmember McNeill thanked Councilmember Majure for asking John to come in and speak. He also
welcomed Kerry back.

Councilmember Brungardt stated hats off to all educators in the district. He said it's good to be back and
looks forward to being back to work soon.

Councilmember Studnicka stated he would like to hear from the Superintendent on any updates and our
concern is community safety.

Councilmember Trinkle reminded everyone about fireworks tomorrow night. He asked that everyone be
careful.

Counciimember Kirby let Kerry know it is good to see him. He said the staff, teachers, bus drivers and
janitors are putting it on the line right now. He asked everyone to mask up.

Councilmember Majure said it was great to have Kerry back and can’t wait to have him back at the school.
He thanked the teachers, administrators and all who help facilitate the schools for all they do. He is excited
for the fireworks. The Lansing American Legion Post 411 will be doing a flag line at 6:30 at City Hall so
honk as you drive by.

Councilmember Garvey commended the school board, the district, and teachers for getting the kids back in
school with some sort of normalcy. There are a lot of single income families and they have to go to work
and need their kids in school. School is the best place for them. He is looking forward to the fireworks,
stating it’'ll be a great time.

ADJOURNMENT:
Councilmember Garvey moved to adjourn. Councilmember McNeill seconded the motion. The motion was
unanimously approved. The meeting was adjourned at 7:43 p.m.

ATTEST: Michael W. Smith, Mayor

Sarah Bodensteiner, City Clerk



AGENDA ITEM

TO: Tim Vandall, City Administrator
FROM: Sarah Bodensteiner, City Cler%
DATE: September 10, 2020

SUBJECT: League of Kansas Municipalities Voting Delegates

The League of Kansas Municipalities Annual Conference will be held virtually October 13-16,
2020. For this conference, the Governing Body may elect up to three (3) voting delegates from
among the City's officers to represent the City in the conduct and management of the affairs of
the League of Kansas Municipalities. The Governing Body may also designate three (3)
alternate voting delegates.

As of the date of this memo, City Administrator Tim Vandall is slated to attend the conference.

Action: Governing Body will need to designate up to three (3) voting delegates for the League
of Kansas Municipalities Annual Conference.

AGENDA ITEM # Z



AGENDA ITEM

TO: Tim Vandall, City Administrator
FROM: Jason Crum, Parks and Recreation Director (%_,__
DATE: September 10, 2020

SUBJECT: Tree Board Appointment

The Tree Board recommends the appointment of George Stephenson to the Tree Board for a
term ending December 31, 2021.

Action: Appoint George Stephenson to the Tree Board for a term ending December 31, 2021.

AGENDA ITEM #




CITY OF %@

LANSING
KANSAS

800 First Terrace, Lansing, Kansas 66043 - Telephone: 913-727-3036
Fax: 913-828-4579 - www.lansingks.org

APPLICATION FOR TREE BOARD MEMBER

Name:;cl_m@ M. %TED\W/Y\@Y\-'
Lansing Address:__ A1 (e oST 00 &
Home Phone: ( Yt3 D 727-\455

Secondary Phone: L %(1 %) BT17~O%4 Y

E-maili-%m&d&&% :

Please attach a written statement expressing your interest in being appointed to the Lansing Tree
Board. Your written statement should address the following four topics:

1. Qualifications for the position.

2. Personal philosophy conceming community trees.

3. Desired accomplishments as a Board Member.

4. Willingness to attend board meetings on the 2" Thursday of January, March, May,

September and November at 5:30 p.m.
5. The name, address, and telephone number of three personal references.
There are two (2) open positions on the Tree Board. One position is to fulfill a term expiring on
December 31, 2021, and the other is to fulfill a term expiring on December 31, 2022. Applicants
must be a resident of the Lansing Unified School District #469 (USD 469), be 18 years of age,
and a U.S. citizen.

All applications should be returned to Lansing City Hall, 800 First Terrace, marked to the "Attention
of the City Clerk”.

VA7 C



George M. Stephenson
916 Oakmont Drive
Lansing, Kansas 66043

July 6, 2020

As my application indicates, | am interested in the volunteer position as a member of the city’s Tree
Board (filling the open position that expires 31 December 2021). This position would allow me the
opportunity to serve the citizens of Lansing by promoting and enhancing the city’s status as a Tree City
USA.

This is important, because an attractive and inviting landscape is a tremendous asset for any city that
promotes itself as a great place to live, work and raise a family. Obviously, trees in all varieties are a
dominant feature in this landscape and our overall geographical area. We are very fortunate to have
many hardwood and conifer tree varieties that add to the natural beauty and aethetics of Northeast
Kansas. Our parks and public properties should reflect these attributes. The city and our residents
have much to work with—and Lansing should set the example for private property owners in
maintaining their own trees, shrubs and lawns.

If my application is accepted, my goal would be to serve as an active member of the board and
contribute to the board’s mission. | am available to attend meetings, events and travel on the dates

and times announced.

My personal references are listed below:

Mr. Jerry Gies 804 Pinehurst Drive, Lansing, KS 66043 (913) 772-4217 o J
Mr. Karl Prinslow 920 Oakmont Drive, Lansing KS 66043 | (913) 702-6960 '
| Ms. Mary Ann Brown | 33001 207 Street, Easton, KS 66020 {785) 979-6352

Thanks for the opportunity to express my interest.

QNV\
George M. Stephenson

Telephone: (913) 727-1955
Email: georgemstephenson@gmail.com



AGENDA ITEM

TO: Tim Vandall, City Administrator f 1
FROM: Beth Sanford, Finance Director ?Js
DATE: September 11, 2020

SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 1048 - Authorizing and Providing for the Issuance of General Obligation
Refunding Bonds, Series 2020-A

Bond Counsel, Gilmore & Bell, has prepared Ordinance No. 1048 requesting that the City Council
authorize and provide for the issuance of General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2020-A, of
the City of Lansing, Kansas, for the purpose of providing funds to refund a portion of the City’s
outstanding general obligation bonds; providing for the levy and collection of an annual tax for the
purpose of paying the principal of and interest on said bonds as they become due: authorizing
certain other documents and actions in connection therewith; and make certain covenants with
respect thereto.

Several items have intentionally been left blank. Once the sale of the bonds occurs, the document
will be completed and will be available at the council meeting.

Staff and the City’s Bond Counsel, Mr. Kevin Wempe (Gilmore & Bell), will be present to answer
questions.

Action:

Staff recommends a motion to adopt Ordinance No. 1048.

AGENDA ITEM # L}L



ORDINANCE NO. 1048

OF

THE CITY OF LANSING, KANSAS

PASSED

SEPTEMBER 17, 2020

GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS
SERIES 2020-A




ORDINANCE NO. 1048

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AND PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE OF
GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2020-A, OF THE CITY
OF LANSING, KANSAS, FOR THE PURPOSE OF PROVIDING FUNDS TO
REFUND A PORTION OF THE CITY’S OUTSTANDING GENERAL
OBLIGATION BONDS; PROVIDING FOR THE LEVY AND COLLECTION OF
AN ANNUAL TAX FOR THE PURPOSE OF PAYING THE PRINCIPAL OF AND
INTEREST ON SAID BONDS AS THEY BECOME DUE; AUTHORIZING
CERTAIN OTHER DOCUMENTS AND ACTIONS IN CONNECTION
THEREWITH; AND MAKING CERTAIN COVENANTS WITH RESPECT
THERETO.

WHEREAS, the City of Lansing, Kansas (the “City”) is a city of the second class, duly created,
organized and existing under the Constitution and laws of the State; and

WHEREAS, the City has issued and has outstanding the Refunded Bonds and is authorized by
K.S.A. 10-427 et seq. to issue general obligation refunding bonds of the City for the purpose of refunding
the Refunded Bonds; and

WHEREAS, in order to achieve interest cost savings through early redemption of the Refunded
Bonds and provide an orderly plan of finance for the City, it has become desirable and in the best interest
of the City and its inhabitants to refund the Refunded Bonds; and

WHEREAS, the Governing Body has advertised the sale of the Bonds in accordance with the law
and at a meeting held in the City on this date awarded the sale of such Bonds to the best bidder.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
LANSING, KANSAS, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Definitions of Words and Terms. In addition to words and terms defined
elsewhere herein, the following words and terms in this Ordinance shall have the meanings hereinafter set
forth. Unless the context shall otherwise indicate, words importing the singular number shall include the
plural and vice versa, and words importing persons shall include firms, associations and corporations,
including public bodies, as well as natural persons.

“Act” means the Constitution and statutes of the State including K.S.A. 10-101 to 10-125,
inclusive, K.S.A. 10-427 et seq., and K.S.A. 10-620 et seq., all as amended and supplemented from time to

time.

“Bond and Interest Fund” means the Bond and Interest Fund of the City for its general obligation
bonds.

“Bond Resolution” means the resolution to be adopted by the Governing Body prescribing the
terms and details of the Bonds and making covenants with respect thereto.

“Bonds” means the City’s General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2020-A, dated October 1,
2020, authorized by this Ordinance.

“City” means the City of Lansing, Kansas.



“Clerk” means the duly appointed and acting Clerk of the City or, in the Clerk’s absence, the duly
appointed Deputy, Assistant or Acting Clerk.

“Governing Body” means the City Council of the City.

“Mayor” means the duly elected and acting Mayor of the City or, in the Mayor’s absence, the duly
appointed and/or elected Vice Mayor or Acting Mayor of the City.

“Ordinance” means this Ordinance authorizing the issuance of the Bonds.

“Refunded Bonds™ means collectively (a) the Series 2010-A Bonds maturing in the years 2021 to
2025, inclusive, in the aggregate principal amount of $380,000" and (b) the Series 2012-B Bonds maturing
in the years 2021 to 2028, inclusive, in the aggregate principal amount of $3,975,000.

“Series 2010 Bonds” means the City’s General Obligation Bonds, Series 2010-A, dated July 1,
2010.

“Series 2012 Bonds” means the City’s General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2012-B, dated
November 1, 2012.

“State” means the State of Kansas.

Section 2, Authorization of the Bonds. There shall be issued and hereby are authorized and
directed to be issued the General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2020-A, of the City in the principal
amount of $[Principal Amount], for the purpose of providing funds to: (a) refund the Refunded Bonds and
(b) pay costs of issuance of the Bonds.

Section 3. Security for the Bonds. The Bonds shall be general obligations of the City
payable as to both principal and interest in part from special assessments levied upon the property benefited
by the construction of the improvements financed by the Refunded Bonds and, if not so paid, from ad
valorem taxes which may be levied without limitation as to rate or amount upon all the taxable tangible
property, real and personal, within the territorial limits of the City. The full faith, credit and resources of
the City are hereby irrevocably pledged for the prompt payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds
as the same become due.

Section 4. Terms, Details and Conditions of the Bonds. The Bonds shall be dated and bear
interest, shall mature and be payable at such times, shall be in such forms, shall be subject to redemption
and payment prior to the maturity thereof, and shall be issued and delivered in the manner prescribed and
subject to the provisions, covenants and agreements set forth in the Bond Resolution hereafter adopted by
the Governing Body.

! Represents the following principal amounts. Note that a portion of the Series 2010 Bonds maturing September 1,
2021, was redeemed in the amount of $70,000 on September 1, 2020, pursuant to mandatory redemption.

Maturity Original Principal Outstanding Principal Amount to be

(Sept. 1) Amount Amount Refunded
2021 $140,000 $70,000 $70,000
2023 150,000 150,000 150,000
2025 160,000 160,000 160,000




Section 5. Levy and Collection of Annual Tax. The Governing Body shall annually make
provision for the payment of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds as the same become
due by levying and collecting the necessary taxes and/or assessments upon all of the taxable tangible
property within the City in the manner provided by law.

The taxes and/or assessments above referred to shall be extended upon the tax rolls in each of the
several years, respectively, and shall be levied and collected at the same time and in the same manner as
the general ad valorem taxes of the City are levied and collected, shall be used solely for the payment of
the principal of and interest on the Bonds as and when the same become due and the fees and expenses of
the paying agent for the Bonds. The proceeds derived from said taxes and/or assessments shall be deposited
in the Bond and Interest Fund.

If at any time said taxes and/or assessments are not collected in time to pay the principal of or
interest on the Bonds when due, the City Treasurer is hereby authorized and directed to pay said principal
or interest out of the general funds of the City and to reimburse said general funds for money so expended
when said taxes and/or assessments are collected.

Section 6. Further Authority. The Mayor, Clerk and other City officials are hereby further
authorized and directed to execute any and all documents and take such actions as they may deem necessary
or advisable in order to carry out and perform the purposes of the Ordinance, and to make alterations,
changes or additions in the foregoing agreements, statements, instruments and other documents herein
approved, authorized and confirmed which they may approve, and the execution or taking of such action
shall be conclusive evidence of such necessity or advisability.

Section 7. Governing Law. This Ordinance and the Bonds shall be governed exclusively by
and construed in accordance with the applicable laws of the State.

Section 8. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and after
its passage by the Governing Body, approval by the Mayor and publication of the Ordinance or a summary
thereof in the official City newspaper.

[BALANCE OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]



PASSED by the governing body on September 17, 2020 and APPROVED AND SIGNED by the
Mayor.

(SEAL)

Mayor
ATTEST:

Clerk

(Signature Page to Bond Ordinance)



(PUBLISHED IN THE LEAVENWORTH TIMES ON SEPTEMBER __, 2020)
SUMMARY OF ORDINANCE NO. 1048

On September 17, 2020, the governing body of the City of Lansing, Kansas passed an ordinance
entitled:

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AND PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE OF
GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2020-A, OF THE CITY
OF LANSING, KANSAS, FOR THE PURPOSE OF PROVIDING FUNDS TO
REFUND A PORTION OF THE CITY’S OUTSTANDING GENERAL
OBLIGATION BONDS; PROVIDING FOR THE LEVY AND COLLECTION OF
AN ANNUAL TAX FOR THE PURPOSE OF PAYING THE PRINCIPAL OF AND
INTEREST ON SAID BONDS AS THEY BECOME DUE; AUTHORIZING
CERTAIN OTHER DOCUMENTS AND ACTIONS IN CONNECTION
THEREWITH; AND MAKING CERTAIN COVENANTS WITH RESPECT
THERETO.

The Series 2020-A Bonds approved by the Ordinance are being issued in the principal amount of
$[Principal Amount] to refund certain outstanding bonds of the City and constitute general obligations of
the City payable as to both principal and interest, to the extent necessary, from ad valorem taxes which may
be levied without limitation as to rate or amount upon all the taxable tangible property, real and personal,
within the territorial limits of the City. A complete text of the Ordinance may be obtained or viewed free
of charge at the office of the City Clerk, 800 First Terrace, Lansing, Kansas 66043. A reproduction of the
Ordinance is available for not less than 7 days following the publication date of this Summary at
www.lansing.ks.us,

This Summary is hereby certified to be legally accurate and sufficient pursuant to the laws of the
State of Kansas.

DATED: September 17, 2020.

City Attorney '



AGENDA ITEM

TO: Tim Vandall, City Administrator%s--”
FROM: Beth Sanford, Finance Director
DATE: September 11, 2020

SUBJECT: Resolution No. B-5-2020 - A Resolution Prescribing the Form and Details of and
Authorizing and Directing the Sale and Delivery of General Obligation Refunding Bonds,
Series 2020-A, of the City of Lansing, Kansas.

Bond Counsel, Gilmore & Bell, has prepared Resolution B-5-2020, requesting that the City
Council adopt a Resolution authorizing and directing the sale and delivery of General Obligation
Refunding Bonds, Series 2020-A, of the City of Lansing, Kansas, previously authorized by
Ordinance No. 1048 of the issuer; making certain covenants and agreements to provide for the
payment and security thereof; and authorizing certain other documents and actions connected
therewith.

Several items have intentionally been left blank. Once the sale of the bonds occurs, the document
will be completed and will be available at the council meeting.

Action:

Staff recommends a motion to adopt Resolution No. B-5-2020.

AGENDA ITEM # 5



RESOLUTION NO. B-5-2020

OF

THE CITY OF LANSING, KANSAS

ADOPTED

SEPTEMBER 17, 2020

GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS
SERIES 2020-A




Section 101.

Section 201.
Section 202.
Section 203.
Section 204,
Section 205.
Section 206.
Section 207.
Section 208.
Section 209.
Section 210.
Section 211.
Section 212.
Section 213.

Section 301.
Section 302.
Section 303.

Section 401.
Section 402.

Section 501.
Section 502.
Section 503.
Section 504.
Section 505.
Section 506.
Section 507.

Section 601.
Section 602.
Section 603.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE I DEFINITIONS

Definitions of Words and TEIIMS. ...c..ceoveueeeerereereeeeeeeeeeeeeee oot e e e 1

ARTICLE II AUTHORIZATION AND DETAILS OF THE BONDS

Authorization 0f the BORS. .......cco.ovvueueiririiiiiiccce e eee e e ees 8
Description of the BondS. .....c...ceeueeeiiuceeeieciesceeees e eesseessssseses s s saoe 8
Designation of Paying Agent and Bond Registrar.............cocouvveeeueeeeeeeeereresseeeeressnans 9
Method and Place of Payment of the Bonds..............cocuvveieeemeeeeeeeessseseeeesesese e 9
Payments Due on Saturdays, Sundays and Holidays. .............cceeeeemrreoemrrerrererssrennnn. 10
Registration, Transfer and Exchange of Bonds. .........c...ooveeeeeveveeorsveereeereeeesesooos 10
Execution, Registration, Authentication and Delivery of Bonds. ...........ccoovvurvn..... 11
Mutilated, Lost, Stolen or Destroyed BOnds. .......ocoeeeveeeereeereeereeeeesseeeeoeeoooeeos 12
Cancellation and Destruction of Bonds Upon Payment. ............ccocevevevererererreeeeernnn 12
Book-Entry Bonds; Securities DEPOSItOrY. .....ococviueuiueereeeeeeeesieeereeeseseeeseeeseseresssssns 12
Nonpresentment Of BONAS. .........cceuceririerirenrniener ettt onsese s sesssessnn 13
Preliminary and Final Official Statement. ...........c..oo.vevvieerireeeeereeeeeeeeee oo sans 14
Sale 0f the BONAS.......c.cveuviierrieieiii e sae et s s 14

ARTICLE III REDEMPTION OF BONDS

Redemption BY ISSUET. ........ccoemmrureeuieeritieeiieeeccc e et s ssssesseses e s s e s essssns 14
Selection of Bonds to be RedEEmEd. .........c.vuveeeivveivcerieiieeeece e seeesesvere e 15
Notice and Effect of Call for Redemption.............ooecovuieeerueeiveenieeereeeeeeees e vsvenns 16

ARTICLE IV SECURITY FOR BONDS

Security for the BONAS. ........cccviieerrririieieeceerecee et eee e ses e s 18
Levy and Collection of Annual Tax; Transfer to Debt Service Account. ................... 18

ARTICLE V ESTABLISHMENT OF FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS

DEPOSIT AND APPLICATION OF BOND PROCEEDS

Creation of Funds and ACCOUNLS. .......ccoueuerereecuerreeiirerioeseseseeeesesee s sesseessesesesssnans 18
Deposit of BOnd PrOCEEMS. ......co.veeerrrrririeniiretetieeiseecee i eeeeere s eesesesssssessseneeseseenas 19
Application of Moneys in the Redemption Fund. .........c.o.oeeeeveeeeeeeereeeseeeeeeereen. 19
Application of Moneys in Debt Service ACCOUnt. ..........c.ovveeerreereveeerseerereeeseererersseen, 19
Deposits and Investment 0f MONEYS. .........c.coeviueunreririeeiriceieceseeeeeeeseeseseierssseseeees s 19
Application of Moneys in the Costs of Issuance ACCOUNt............ocovreeeerererererereennn 20
Redemption of Refunded BONdS. .........covveeecuceieieecrcsiieeiceeccere e eeeresesrsnesese s 20

ARTICLE VIDEFAULT AND REMEDIES

ROIMIEAIES. .ttt eeeev e s e et e st e e ettt ettt e 20
Limitation on Rights 0f OWINETS. ....ccccueuruererieiierireeceei et eeeeee e ee e ererssena 20
Remedies CumULatiVe. ... ...oeuieeiriecieceee e est et e ee e et et eee e 21



Section 701.

Section 801.
Section 802.

Section 901.
Section 902,

ARTICLE VII DEFEASANCE
DIEEASANCE. .......ooviieetieriticeiiceeeee et e e e e tes st s st essesteessssesssenseemeseenesssessssessseeseesens 21
ARTICLE VIII TAX COVENANTS

GENETAl COVENANLS. .....ooeeeeieetiieeeeeeereee e e eeeesseeesresessseeessossesssssssenssssnsseesesessssees e s 22
SULVIVAL OF COVEIMANES. vvenveieeiieieeiceee ettt esree s tee et e eeee e e se et eeeeeeeems s e essseeesssmeessesae s 22

ARTICLE IX CONTINUING DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS

Disclosure REQUITEIMENES. ......c.eeiererereeeeieseer e reteeeseeesestssreseeesseesesessseessesaseessssensesasas 22
Failure to Comply with Continuing Disclosure Requirements. ...........coveeveeuemreennn.... 22

ARTICLE X MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Section 1001.  ANNUAL AUt c.oveeieeeeiereeceeiti et een et eee s eereseesesessesessesessssesesseesssssesse e sen 22
Section 1002.  AMENAMENLS......coviieriiiiieeeeeeeee et eeeeeeeeseseeseesssressesseseeseessesesssseesssssssesseeeseeeseeesseens 23
Section 1003.  Notices, Consents and Other Instruments by OWDETS. ........vooeevereeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeenenns 24
SECtiON 1004,  NNOUCES. ..c.veeereeeeeeieectieteeeercereeetsreststeseesestease e eseseeseseeseseasesessesesesentonsssessesessee e e seeo 24
Section 1005.  Electronic TranSACtIONS. vu..ieeteeereeeeeeeeeeeeeeresreesessesssssssssssessssssssssssssesseeseeesesessseesses 24
Section 1006.  Further AULROTILY.......c.c.oueuevemeeeeceiieerce et seeeee e e eeesseneseseseesessesssesstseessnas s 25
Section 1007,  SEVEIADIILY......ccccvvvueirueriieteiereie ettt et e e e e ees e esseeeseesesses s et eenesens 25
Section 1008, GOVEIMING LAW. .....ccceermirireereriteesitesesieeessscesc s esseeeseseesseesessssssessssssssesssssssssensesens 25
Section 1009.  EffECtiVE DAe.......cuiiviviieieieeteeereeeeneseeeeeeeesreseeseesesseseseessessesessesesssesssrsesesteseeee e 25
EXHIBIT A — FORM OF BONDS......oootiotitietetii et ee e eeeeesseteeteessssassssaesssessessessesesssesssessssssssseeesaes A-1

[BALANCE OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

ii



RESOLUTION NO. B-5-2020

A RESOLUTION PRESCRIBING THE FORM AND DETAILS OF AND
AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE SALE AND DELIVERY OF GENERAL
OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2020-A, OF THE CITY OF
LANSING, KANSAS, PREVIOUSLY AUTHORIZED BY ORDINANCE NO. 1048
OF THE ISSUER; MAKING CERTAIN COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS TO
PROVIDE FOR THE PAYMENT AND SECURITY THEREOF; AND
AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OTHER DOCUMENTS AND ACTIONS
CONNECTED THEREWITH.

WHEREAS, the City of Lansing, Kansas (the “Issuer”) has passed the Ordinance authorizing the
issuance of the Bonds; and

WHEREAS, the Ordinance authorized the City Council of the Issuer (the “Governing Body™) to
adopt a resolution prescribing certain details and conditions and to make certain covenants with respect to
the issuance of the Bonds.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
LANSING, KANSAS, AS FOLLOWS:

ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS

Section 101.  Definitions of Words and Terms. In addition to words and terms defined
elsewhere herein, the following words and terms as used in this Bond Resolution shall have the meanings
hereinafter set forth. Unless the context shall otherwise indicate, words importing the singular number shall
include the plural and vice versa, and words importing persons shall include firms, associations and
corporations, including public bodies, as well as natural persons.

“Act” means the Constitution and statutes of the State including K.S.A. 10-101 to 10-125,
inclusive, K.S.A. 10-427 et seq., and K.S.A. 10-620 ef seq., all as amended and supplemented from time to
time.

“Authorized Denomination” means $5,000 or any integral multiples thereof.

“Beneficial Owner” of the Bonds includes any Owner of the Bonds and any other Person who,
directly or indirectly has the investment power with respect to such Bonds.

“Bond and Interest Fund” means the Bond and Interest Fund of the Issuer for its general
obligation bonds.

“Bond Counsel” means the firm of Gilmore & Bell, P.C., or any other attorney or firm of attorneys
whose expertise in matters relating to the issuance of obligations by states and their political subdivisions

is nationally recognized and acceptable to the Issuer.

“Bond Payment Date” means any date on which principal of or interest on any Bond is payable.



“Bond Register” means the books for the registration, transfer and exchange of Bonds kept at the
office of the Bond Registrar.

“Bond Registrar” means the State Treasurer and any successors and assigns.
“Bond Resolution” means this resolution relating to the Bonds.

“Bonds” or “Bond” means the General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2020-A, authorized
and issued by the Issuer pursuant to the Ordinance and this Bond Resolution.

“Business Day” means a day other than a Saturday, Sunday or any day designated as a holiday by
the Congress of the United States or by the Legislature of the State and on which the Paying Agent is
scheduled in the normal course of its operations to be open to the public for conduct of its operations.

“Cede & Co.” means Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC and any successor nominee of DTC.
“City” means the City of Lansing, Kansas.

“Clerk” means the duly appointed and/or elected Clerk or, in the Clerk‘s absence, the duly
appointed Deputy Clerk or Acting Clerk of the Issuer.

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the applicable regulations
promulgated thereunder by the United States Department of the Treasury.

“Costs of Issuance” means all costs of issuing the Bonds, including but not limited to all
publication, printing, signing and mailing expenses in connection therewith, registration fees, financial
advisory fees, all legal fees and expenses of Bond Counsel and other legal counsel, expenses incurred in
connection with compliance with the Code, all expenses incurred in connection with receiving ratings on
the Bonds, and any premiums or expenses incurred in obtaining municipal bond insurance on the Bonds.

“Costs of Issuance Account” means the Costs of Issuance Account for General Obligation
Refunding Bonds, Series 2020-A, created pursuant to Section 501 hereof.

“Dated Date” means October 1, 2020.

“Debt Service Account” means the Debt Service Account for General Obligation Refunding
Bonds, Series 2020-A created within the Bond and Interest Fund pursuant to Section 501 hereof.

“Debt Service Requirements” means the aggregate principal payments (whether at maturity or
pursuant to scheduled mandatory sinking fund redemption requirements) and interest payments on the
Bonds for the period of time for which calculated; provided, however, that for purposes of calculating such
amount, principal and interest shall be excluded from the determination of Debt Service Requirements to
the extent that such principal or interest is payable from amounts deposited in trust, escrowed or otherwise
set aside for the payment thereof with the Paying Agent or other commercial bank or trust company located
in the State and having full trust powers.

“Defaulted Interest” means interest on any Bond which is payable but not paid on any Interest
Payment Date.

“Defeasance Obligations” means any of the following obligations:



(a) United States Government Obligations that are not subject to redemption in advance of
their maturity dates; or

b) obligations of any state or political subdivision of any state, the interest on which is
excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes and which meet the following conditions:

8 the obligations are (i) not subject to redemption prior to maturity or (ii) the trustee
for such obligations has been given irrevocable instructions concering their calling and
redemption and the issuer of such obligations has covenanted not to redeem such obligations other
than as set forth in such instructions;

(2) the obligations are secured by cash or United States Government Obligations that
may be applied only to principal of, premium, if any, and interest payments on such obligations;

3) such cash and the principal of and interest on such United States Government
Obligations (plus any cash in the escrow fund) are sufficient to meet the liabilities of the
obligations;

€y} such cash and United States Government Obligations serving as security for the

obligations are held in an escrow fund by an escrow agent or a trustee irrevocably in trust;

5 such cash and United States Government Obligations are not available to satisfy
any other claims, including those against the trustee or escrow agent; and

6) such obligations are rated in a rating category by Moody’s or Standard & Poor’s
that is no lower than the rating category then assigned by that Rating Agency to United States
Government Obligations.

“Derivative” means any investment instrument whose market price is derived from the fluctuating
value of an underlying asset, index, currency, futures contract, including futures, options and collateralized
mortgage obligations.

“Disclosure Undertaking” means the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, dated as of the Dated
Date, relating to certain obligations contained in the SEC Rule.

“DTC” means The Depository Trust Company, a limited-purpose trust company organized under the
laws of the State of New York, and its successors and assigns, including any successor securities depository
duly appointed.

“DTC Representation Letter” means the Blanket Letter of Representation from the Issuer and the
Paying Agent to DTC which provides for a book-entry system, or any agreement between the Issuer and
Paying Agent and a successor securities depository duly appointed.

“Event of Default” means each of the following occurrences or events:
(a) Payment of the principal and of the redemption premium, if any, of any of the Bonds shall

not be made when the same shall become due and payable, either at Stated Maturity or by proceedings for
redemption or otherwise;



(b) Payment of any installment of interest on any of the Bonds shall not be made when the
same shall become due; or

(c) The Issuer shall default in the due and punctual performance of any other of the covenants,
conditions, agreements and provisions contained in the Bonds or in this Bond Resolution (other than the
covenants relating to continuing disclosure requirements contained herein and in the Disclosure
Undertaking) on the part of the Issuer to be performed, and such default shall continue for thirty (30) days
after written notice specifying such default and requiring same to be remedied shall have been given to the
Issuer by the Owner of any of the Bonds then Outstanding.

“Federal Tax Certificate” means the Issuer’s Federal Tax Certificate dated as of the Issue Date,
as the same may be amended or supplemented in accordance with the provisions thereof,

“Fiscal Year” means the twelve month period ending on December 31.

“Funds and Accounts” means funds and accounts created pursuant to or referred to in Section 501
hereof.

“Governing Body” means the City Council of the Issuer.

“Independent Accountant” means an independent certified public accountant or firm of
independent certified public accountants at the time employed by the Issuer for the purpose of carrying out
the duties imposed on the Independent Accountant by this Bond Resolution.

“Interest Payment Date(s)” means the Stated Maturity of an installment of interest on any Bond
which shall be March 1 and September 1 of each year, commencing March 1, 2021.

“Issue Date” means the date when the Issuer delivers the Bonds to the Purchaser in exchange for
the Purchase Price.

“Issuer” means the City and any successors or assigns.

“Maturity” when used with respect to any Bond means the date on which the principal of such
Bond becomes due and payable as therein and herein provided, whether at the Stated Maturity thereof or
call for redemption or otherwise.

“Mayor” means the duly elected and acting Mayor, or in the Mayor’s absence, the duly appointed
and/or elected Vice Mayor or Acting Mayor of the Issuer.

“Moody’s” means Moody’s Investors Service, a corporation organized and existing under the laws
of the State of Delaware, and its successors and assigns, and, if such corporation shall be dissolved or
liquidated or shall no longer perform the functions of a securities rating agency, “Moody’s” shall be deemed
to refer to any other nationally recognized securities rating agency designated by the Issuer.

“Notice Address” means with respect to the following entities:
(a) To the Issuer at:
City of Lansing, Kansas

Attn; City Clerk
800 First Terrace



Lansing, Kansas 66043
Fax: (913) 828-4579

b) To the Paying Agent at:
State Treasurer of the State of Kansas
Landon Office Building
900 Southwest Jackson, Suite 201
Topeka, Kansas 66612-1235
Fax: (785) 296-6976

(©) To the Purchaser:

[

(d) To the Rating Agency:
Moody’s Municipal Rating Desk
7 World Trade Center
250 Greenwich Street
23" Floor
New York, New York 10007
or such other address as is furnished in writing to the other parties referenced herein.
“Notice Representative” means:
(a) With respect to the Issuer, the Clerk.
) With respect to the Bond Registrar and Paying Agent, the Director of Bond Services.
(©) With respect to any Purchaser, the manager of its Municipal Bond Department.
(d) With respect to any Rating Agency, any Vice President thereof.

“Official Statement” means Issuer’s Official Statement relating to the Bonds.

“Ordinance” means Ordinance No. 1048 of the Issuer authorizing the issuance of the Bonds, as
amended from time to time.

“Outstanding” means, when used with reference to the Bonds, as of a particular date of
determination, all Bonds theretofore authenticated and delivered, except the following Bonds:

(a) Bonds theretofore canceled by the Paying Agent or delivered to the Paying Agent for
cancellation;

®) Bonds deemed to be paid in accordance with the provisions of Article VII hereof; and



(©) Bonds in exchange for or in lieu of which other Bonds have been authenticated and
delivered hereunder.

“Owner” when used with respect to any Bond means the Person in whose name such Bond is
registered on the Bond Register. Whenever consent of the Owners is required pursuant to the terms of this
Bond Resolution, and the Owner of the Bonds, as set forth on the Bond Register, is Cede & Co., the term
Owner shall be deemed to be the Beneficial Owner of the Bonds.

“Participants” means those financial institutions for whom the Securities Depository effects book-
entry transfers and pledges of securities deposited with the Securities Depository, as such listing of
Participants exists at the time of such reference.

“Paying Agent” means the State Treasurer and any successors and assigns,
g y gn

“Permitted Investments” shall mean the investments hereinafter described, provided, however,
no moneys or funds shall be invested in a Derivative: (a) investments authorized by K.S.A. 12-1675 and
amendments thereto; (b) the municipal investment pool established pursuant to K.S.A. 12-1677a, and
amendments thereto; (c) direct obligations of the United States Government or any agency thereof: (d) the
Issuer’s temporary notes issued pursuant to K.S.A. 10-123 and amendments thereto; (e) interest-bearing
time deposits in commercial banks or trust companies located in the county or counties in which the Issuer
is located which are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or collateralized by securities
described in (c); (f) obligations of the federal national mortgage association, federal home loan banks,
federal home loan mortgage corporation or government national mortgage association; (g) repurchase
agreements for securities described in (c) or (f); (h) investment agreements or other obligations of a financial
institution the obligations of which at the time of investment are rated in either of the three highest rating
categories by Moody’s or Standard & Poor’s; (i) investments and shares or units of a money market fund
or trust, the portfolio of which is comprised entirely of securities described in (c) or (f); (j) receipts
evidencing ownership interests in securities or portions thereof described in (c) or (f); (k) municipal bonds
or other obligations issued by any municipality of the State as defined in K.S.A. 10-1101 which are general
obligations of the municipality issuing the same; or (1) bonds of any municipality of the State as defined in
K.S.A. 10-1101 which have been refunded in advance of their maturity and are fully secured as to payment
of principal and interest thereon by deposit in trust, under escrow agreement with a bank, of securities
described in (c) or (f), all as may be further restricted or modified by amendments to applicable State law.

“Person” means any natural person, corporation, partnership, joint venture, association, firm, joint-
stock company, trust, unincorporated organization, or government or any agency or political subdivision
thereof or other public body.

“Purchase Price” means the principal amount of the Bonds plus accrued interest to the date of
delivery, plus a premium of $ , less an underwriting discount of $ ].
P

“Purchaser” means | R s |, the original purchaser of
the Bonds, and any successor and assigns.

“Rating Agency” means any company, agency or entity that provides, pursuant to request of the
Issuer, financial ratings for the Bonds.

“Record Dates” for the interest payable on any Interest Payment Date means the fifteenth day
(whether or not a Business Day) of the calendar month next preceding such Interest Payment Date.



“Redemption Date” means, when used with respect to any Bond to be redeemed, the date fixed
for the redemption of such Bond pursuant to the terms of this Bond Resolution.

“Redemption Fund” means the Redemption Fund for Refunded Bonds created pursuant to Section
501 hereof.

“Redemption Price” means, when used with respect to any Bond to be redeemed, the price at
which such Bond is to be redeemed pursuant to the terms of this Bond Resolution, including the applicable
redemption premium, if any, but excluding installments of interest whose Stated Maturity is on or before
the Redemption Date.

“Refunded Bonds” means collectively (a) the Series 2010-A Bonds maturing in the years 2021 to
2025, inclusive, in the aggregate principal amount of $380,000' and (b) the Series 2012-B Bonds maturing
in the years 2021 to 2028, inclusive, in the aggregate principal amount of $3,975,000.

“Refunded Bonds Paying Agent” means the respective paying agent for each series of the
Refunded Bonds as designated in the respective Refunded Bonds Resolution, and any successor or
successors at the time acting as paying agent for any of the Refunded Bonds.

“Refunded Bonds Redemption Date” means October 2, 2020.

“Refunded Bonds Resolution” means each ordinance and resolution which authorized the
Refunded Bonds.

“Replacement Bonds” means Bonds issued to the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds in accordance
with Section 210 hereof.

“SEC Rule” means Rule 15¢2-12 adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934,

“Securities Depository” means, initially, DTC, and its successors and assigns.

“Series 2010 Bonds” means the City’s General Obligation Bonds, Series 2010-A, dated July 1,
2010.

“Series 2012 Bonds” means the City’s General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2012-B, dated
November 1, 2012.

“Special Record Date” means the date fixed by the Paying Agent pursuant to Article II hereof for
the payment of Defaulted Interest.

! Represents the following principal amounts. Note that a portion of the Series 2010 Bonds maturing September 1,
2021, was redeemed in the amount of $70,000 on September 1, 2020, pursuant to mandatory redemption.

Maturity Original Principal Outstanding Principal Principal Amount

(Sept. 1) Amount Amount to be Refunded
2021 $140,000 $70,000 - $70,000
2023 150,000 150,000 150,000
2025 160,000 160,000 160,000




“Standard & Poor’s” or “S&P” means S&P Global Ratings, a division of S&P Global Inc., a
corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of New York, and its successors and assigns,
and, if such corporation shall be dissolved or liquidated or shall no longer perform the functions of a securities
rating agency, Standard & Poor’s shall be deemed to refer to any other nationally recognized securities rating
agency designated by the Issuer.

“State” means the state of Kansas.

“State Treasurer” means the duly elected Treasurer or, in the Treasurer’s absence, the duly
appointed Deputy Treasurer or acting Treasurer of the State.

“Stated Maturity” when used with respect to any Bond or any installment of interest thereon
means the date specified in such Bond and this Bond Resolution as the fixed date on which the principal of
such Bond or such installment of interest is due and payable.

[ “20__ Term Bonds” means the Bonds scheduled to mature in the year 20 .
“20__ Term Bonds” means the Bonds scheduled to mature in the year 20 .
“Term Bonds” means collectively the 20__ Term Bonds and the 20 Term Bonds.]

“Treasurer” means the duly appointed and/or elected Treasurer of the Issuer or, in the Treasurer’s
absence, the duly appointed Deputy Treasurer or acting Treasurer of the Issuer.

“United States Government Obligations” means bonds, notes, certificates of indebtedness,
treasury bills or other securities constituting direct obligations of, or obligations the principal of and interest
on which are fully and unconditionally guaranteed as to full and timely payment by, the United States of
America, including evidences of a direct ownership interest in future interest or principal payment on
obligations issued by the United States of America (including the interest component of obligations of the
Resolution Funding Corporation), or securities which represent an undivided interest in such obligations,
which obligations are rated in the highest rating category by a nationally recognized rating service and such
obligations are held in a custodial account for the benefit of the Issuer.

ARTICLE IT

AUTHORIZATION AND DETAILS OF THE BONDS

Section 201.  Authorization of the Bonds. The Bonds have been authorized and directed to be
issued pursuant to the Ordinance in the principal amount of $[Principal Amount] for the purpose of
providing funds to: (a) refund the Refunded Bonds and (b) pay Costs of Issuance.

Section 202.  Description of the Bonds. The Bonds shall consist of fully registered bonds in an
Authorized Denomination and shall be numbered in such manner as the Bond Registrar shall determine.
All of the Bonds shall be dated as of the Dated Date, shall become due in the amounts, on the Stated
Maturities, subject to redemption and payment prior to their Stated Maturities as provided in Article IIT
hereof, and shall bear interest at the rates per annum as follows:



SERIAL BONDS

Stated Maturity Principal Annual Rate Stated Maturity Principal Annual Rate

September 1 Amount of Interest September 1 Amount of Interest
2021 $ % 2025 $ %
2022 2026
2023 2027
2024 2028 |

[TERM BONDS
Stated Maturity Principal Annual Rate
September 1 Amount of Interest
20 $ %
20 o |

The Bonds shall bear interest at the above specified rates (computed on the basis of a 360-day year
of twelve 30-day months) from the later of the Dated Date or the most recent Interest Payment Date to
which interest has been paid on the Interest Payment Dates in the manner set forth in Section 204 hereof.

Each of the Bonds, as originally issued or issued upon transfer, exchange or substitution, shall be
printed in accordance with the format required by the Attorney General of the State and shall be
substantially in the form attached hereto as EXHIBIT A or as may be required by the Attorney General
pursuant to the Notice of Systems of Registration for Kansas Municipal Bonds, 2 Kan. Reg. 921 (1983), in
accordance with the Kansas Bond Registration Law, K.S.A. 10-620 ef seq.

Section 203.  Designation of Paying Agent and Bond Registrar. The State Treasurer is hereby
designated as the Paying Agent for the payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds and Bond Registrar
with respect to the registration, transfer and exchange of Bonds. The Mayor of the Issuer is hereby
authorized and empowered to execute on behalf of the Issuer an agreement with the Bond Registrar and
Paying Agent for the Bonds.

The Issuer will at all times maintain a Paying Agent and Bond Registrar meeting the qualifications
herein described for the performance of the duties hereunder. The Issuer reserves the right to appoint a
successor Paying Agent or Bond Registrar by (a) filing with the Paying Agent or Bond Registrar then
performing such function a certified copy of the proceedings giving notice of the termination of such Paying
Agent or Bond Registrar and appointing a successor, and (b) causing notice of appointment of the successor
Paying Agent and Bond Registrar to be given by first class mail to each Owner. No resignation or removal
of the Paying Agent or Bond Registrar shall become effective until a successor has been appointed and has
accepted the duties of Paying Agent or Bond Registrar.

Every Paying Agent or Bond Registrar appointed hereunder shall at all times meet the requirements
of K.S.A. 10-501 ef seq. and K.S.A. 10-620 et seq., respectively.

Section 204. Method and Place of Payment of the Bonds. The principal of, or Redemption
Price, and interest on the Bonds shall be payable in any coin or currency which, on the respective dates of
payment thereof, is legal tender for the payment of public and private debts.

The principal or Redemption Price of each Bond shall be paid at Maturity to the Person in whose
name such Bond is registered on the Bond Register at the Maturity thereof, upon presentation and surrender
of such Bond at the principal office of the Paying Agent.



The interest payable on each Bond on any Interest Payment Date shall be paid to the Owner of such
Bond as shown on the Bond Register at the close of business on the Record Date for such interest (a) by
check or draft mailed by the Paying Agent to the address of such Owner shown on the Bond Register or at
such other address as is furnished to the Paying Agent in writing by such Owner; or (b) in the case of an
interest payment to Cede & Co. or any Owner of $500,000 or more in aggregate principal amount of Bonds,
by electronic transfer to such Owner upon written notice given to the Bond Registrar by such Owner, not
less than 15 days prior to the Record Date for such interest, containing the electronic transfer instructions
including the bank ABA routing number and account number to which such Owner wishes to have such
transfer directed.

Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section, any Defaulted Interest with respect to
any Bond shall cease to be payable to the Owner of such Bond on the relevant Record Date and shall be
payable to the Owner in whose name such Bond is registered at the close of business on the Special Record
Date for the payment of such Defaulted Interest, which Special Record Date shall be fixed as hereinafter
specified in this paragraph. The Issuer shall notify the Paying Agent in writing of the amount of Defaulted
Interest proposed to be paid on each Bond and the date of the proposed payment (which date shall be at
least 30 days after receipt of such notice by the Paying Agent) and shall deposit with the Paying Agent at
the time of such notice an amount of money equal to the aggregate amount proposed to be paid in respect
of such Defaulted Interest or shall make arrangements satisfactory to the Paying Agent for such deposit
prior to the date of the proposed payment. Following receipt of such funds the Paying Agent shall fix a
Special Record Date for the payment of such Defaulted Interest which shall be not more than 15 nor less
than 10 days prior to the date of the proposed payment. The Paying Agent shall promptly notify the Issuer
of such Special Record Date and, in the name and at the expense of the Issuer, shall cause notice of the
proposed payment of such Defaulted Interest and the Special Record Date therefore to be mailed, by first
class mail, postage prepaid, to each Owner of a Bond entitled to such notice at the address of such Owner
as it appears on the Bond Register not less than 10 days prior to such Special Record Date.

The Paying Agent shall keep a record of payment of principal and Redemption Price of and interest
on all Bonds and at least annually shall forward a copy or summary of such records to the Issuer.

Section 205.  Payments Due on Saturdays, Sundays and Holidays. In any case where a Bond
Payment Date is not a Business Day, then payment of principal, Redemption Price or interest need not be
made on such Bond Payment Date but may be made on the next succeeding Business Day with the same
force and effect as if made on such Bond Payment Date, and no interest shall accrue for the period after
such Bond Payment Date.

Section 206.  Registration, Transfer and Exchange of Bonds. The Issuer covenants that, as
long as any of the Bonds remain Outstanding, it will cause the Bond Register to be kept at the office of the
Bond Registrar as herein provided. Each Bond when issued shall be registered in the name of the Owner
thereof on the Bond Register.

Bonds may be transferred and exchanged only on the Bond Register as provided in this Section.
Upon surrender of any Bond at the principal office of the Bond Registrar, the Bond Registrar shall transfer
or exchange such Bond for a new Bond or Bonds in any Authorized Denomination of the same Stated
Maturity and in the same aggregate principal amount as the Bond that was presented for transfer or
exchange.

Bonds presented for transfer or exchange shall be accompanied by a written instrument or

instruments of transfer or authorization for exchange, in a form and with guarantee of signature satisfactory
to the Bond Registrar, duly executed by the Owner thereof or by the Owner’s duly authorized agent.

10



In all cases in which the privilege of transferring or exchanging Bonds is exercised, the Bond
Registrar shall authenticate and deliver Bonds in accordance with the provisions of this Bond Resolution.
The Issuer shall pay the fees and expenses of the Bond Registrar for the registration, transfer and exchange
of Bonds provided for by this Bond Resolution and the cost of printing a reasonable supply of registered
bond blanks. Any additional costs or fees that might be incurred in the secondary market, other than fees
of the Bond Registrar, are the responsibility of the Owners of the Bonds. In the event any Owner fails to
provide a correct taxpayer identification number to the Paying Agent, the Paying Agent may make a charge
against such Owner sufficient to pay any governmental charge required to be paid as a result of such failure.
In compliance with Code § 3406, such amount may be deducted by the Paying Agent from amounts
otherwise payable to such Owner hereunder or under the Bonds.

The Issuer and the Bond Registrar shall not be required (a) to register the transfer or exchange of
any Bond that has been called for redemption after notice of such redemption has been mailed by the Paying
Agent pursuant to Article III hereof and during the period of 15 days next preceding the date of mailing of
such notice of redemption; or (b) to register the transfer or exchange of any Bond during a period beginning
at the opening of business on the day after receiving written notice from the Issuer of its intent to pay
Defaulted Interest and ending at the close of business on the date fixed for the payment of Defaulted Interest
pursuant to this Article I11.

The Issuer and the Paying Agent may deem and treat the Person in whose name any Bond is
registered on the Bond Register as the absolute Owner of such Bond, whether such Bond is overdue or not,
for the purpose of receiving payment of, or on account of, the principal or Redemption Price of and interest
on said Bond and for all other purposes. All payments so made to any such Owner or upon the Owner’s
order shall be valid and effective to satisfy and discharge the liability upon such Bond to the extent of the
sum or sums so paid, and neither the Issuer nor the Paying Agent shall be affected by any notice to the
contrary.

At reasonable times and under reasonable regulations established by the Bond Registrar, the Bond
Register may be inspected and copied by the Owners (or a designated representative thereof) of 10% or
more in principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding or any designated representative of such Owners
whose authority is evidenced to the satisfaction of the Bond Registrar.

Section 207.  Execution, Registration, Authentication and Delivery of Bonds. Each of the
Bonds, inciuding any Bonds issued in exchange or as substitutions for the Bonds initially delivered, shall
be executed for and on behalf of the Issuer by the manual or facsimile signature of the Mayor, attested by
the manual or facsimile signature of the Clerk, and the seal of the Issuer shall be affixed thereto or imprinted
thereon. The Mayor and Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to prepare and execute the Bonds in the
manner herein specified, and to cause the Bonds to be registered in the office of the Clerk, which registration
shall be evidenced by the manual or facsimile signature of the Clerk with the seal of the Issuer affixed
thereto or imprinted thereon. The Bonds shall also be registered in the office of the State Treasurer, which
registration shall be evidenced by the manual or facsimile signature of the State Treasurer with the seal of
the State Treasurer affixed thereto or imprinted thereon. In case any officer whose signature appears on any
Bonds ceases to be such officer before the delivery of such Bonds, such signature shall nevertheless be
valid and sufficient for all purposes, as if such person had remained in office until delivery. Any Bond may
be signed by such persons who at the actual time of the execution of such Bond are the proper officers to
sign such Bond although at the date of such Bond such persons may not have been such officers.

The Mayor and Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to prepare and execute the Bonds as herein
specified, and when duly executed, to deliver the Bonds to the Bond Registrar for authentication.

11



The Bonds shall have endorsed thereon a certificate of authentication substantially in the form
attached hereto as EXHIBIT A hereof, which shall be manually executed by an authorized officer or
employee of the Bond Registrar, but it shall not be necessary that the same officer or employee sign the
certificate of authentication on all of the Bonds that may be issued hereunder at any one time. No Bond
shall be entitled to any security or benefit under this Bond Resolution or be valid or obligatory for any
purpose unless and until such certificate of authentication has been duly executed by the Bond Registrar.
Such executed certificate of authentication upon any Bond shall be conclusive evidence that such Bond has
been duly authenticated and delivered under this Bond Resolution. Upon authentication, the Bond Registrar
shall deliver the Bonds to the Purchaser upon instructions of the Issuer or its representative.

Section 208. Mutilated, Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Bonds. If (a) any mutilated Bond is
surrendered to the Bond Registrar or the Bond Registrar receives evidence to its satisfaction of the
destruction, loss or theft of any Bond, and (b) there is delivered to the Issuer and the Bond Registrar such
security or indemnity as may be required by each of them, then, in the absence of notice to the Issuer or the
Bond Registrar that such Bond has been acquired by a bona fide purchaser, the Issuer shall execute and,
upon the Issuer’s request, the Bond Registrar shall authenticate and deliver, in exchange for or in lieu of
any such mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolen Bond, a new Bond of the same Stated Maturity and of like
tenor and principal amount.

If any such mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolen Bond has become or is about to become due and
payable, the Issuer, in its discretion, may pay such Bond instead of issuing a new Bond.

Upon the issuance of any new Bond under this Section, the Issuer and the Paying Agent may require
the payment by the Owner of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge that may be
imposed in relation thereto and any other expenses (including the fees and expenses of the Paying Agent)
connected therewith.

Every new Bond issued pursuant to this Section shall constitute a replacement of the prior
obligation of the Issuer, and shall be entitled to all the benefits of this Bond Resolution equally and ratably
with all other Outstanding Bonds.

Section 209. Cancellation and Destruction of Bonds Upon Payment. All Bonds that have
been paid or redeemed or that otherwise have been surrendered to the Paying Agent, either at or before
Maturity, shall be cancelled by the Paying Agent immediately upon the payment, redemption and surrender
thereof to the Paying Agent and subsequently destroyed in accordance with the customary practices of the
Paying Agent. The Paying Agent shall execute a certificate in duplicate describing the Bonds so cancelled
and destroyed and shall file an executed counterpart of such certificate with the Issuer.

Section 210. Book-Entry Bonds; Securities Depository. The Issuer and Paying Agent have
entered into a DTC Representation Letter with DTC. The Bonds shall initially be registered to Cede & Co.,
the nominee for the Securities Depository, and no Beneficial Owner will receive certificates representing
their respective interests in the Bonds, except in the event the Bond Registrar issues Replacement Bonds as
provided in this Section. It is anticipated that during the term of the Bonds, the Securities Depository will
make book-entry transfers among its Participants and receive and transmit payment of principal of,
premium, if any, and interest on, the Bonds to the Participants until and unless the Bond Registrar
authenticates and delivers Replacement Bonds to the Beneficial Owners as described in the following

paragraph.
The Issuer may decide, subject to the requirements of the Operational Arrangements of DTC (or a

successor Securities Depository), and the following provisions of this section to discontinue use of the
system of book-entry transfers through DTC (or a successor Securities Depository):

12



(a) If the Issuer determines (1) that the Securities Depository is unable to properly discharge
its responsibilities, or (2) that the Securities Depository is no longer qualified to act as a securities depository
and registered clearing agency under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or (3) that the
continuation of a book-entry system to the exclusion of any Bonds being issued to any Owner other than
Cede & Co. is no longer in the best interests of the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds; or

(b) if the Bond Registrar receives written notice from Participants having interests in not less
than 50% of the Bonds Outstanding, as shown on the records of the Securities Depository (and certified to
such effect by the Securities Depository), that the continuation of a book-entry system to the exclusion of
any Bonds being issued to any Owner other than Cede & Co. is no longer in the best interests of the
Beneficial Owners of the Bonds, then the Bond Registrar shall notify the Owners of such determination or
such notice and of the availability of certificates to Owners requesting the same, and the Bond Registrar
shall register in the name of and authenticate and deliver Replacement Bonds to the Beneficial Owners or
their nominees in principal amounts representing the interest of each, making such adjustments as it may
find necessary or appropriate as to accrued interest and previous calls for redemption; provided, that in the
case of a determination under (a)(1) or (a)(2) of this paragraph, the Issuer, with the consent of the Bond
Registrar, may select a successor securities depository in accordance with the following paragraph to effect
book-entry transfers.

In such event, all references to the Securities Depository herein shall relate to the period of time
when the Securities Depository has possession of at least one Bond. Upon the issuance of Replacement
Bonds, all references herein to obligations imposed upon or to be performed by the Securities Depository
shall be deemed to be imposed upon and performed by the Bond Registrar, to the extent applicable with
respect to such Replacement Bonds. Ifthe Securities Depository resigns and the Issuer, the Bond Registrar
or Owners are unable to locate a qualified successor of the Securities Depository in accordance with the
following paragraph, then the Bond Registrar shall authenticate and cause delivery of Replacement Bonds
to Owners, as provided herein. The Bond Registrar may rely on information from the Securities Depository
and its Participants as to the names of the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds. The cost of printing, registration,
authentication, and delivery of Replacement Bonds shall be paid for by the Issuer.

In the event the Securities Depository resigns, is unable to properly discharge its responsibilities,
or is no longer qualified to act as a securities depository and registered clearing agency under the Securities
and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the Issuer may appoint a successor Securities Depository provided
the Bond Registrar receives written evidence satisfactory to the Bond Registrar with respect to the ability
of the successor Securities Depository to discharge its responsibilities. Any such successor Securities
Depository shall be a securities depository which is a registered clearing agency under the Securities and
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or other applicable statute or regulation that operates a securities
depository upon reasonable and customary terms. The Bond Registrar upon its receipt of a Bond or Bonds
for cancellation shall cause the delivery of Bonds to the successor Securities Depository in an Authorized
Denominations and form as provided herein.

Section 211.  Nonpresentment of Bonds. If any Bond is not presented for payment when the
principal thereof becomes due at Maturity, if funds sufficient to pay such Bond have been made available
to the Paying Agent all liability of the Issuer to the Owner thereof for the payment of such Bond shall
forthwith cease, determine and be completely discharged, and thereupon it shall be the duty of the Paying
Agent to hold such funds, without liability for interest thereon, for the benefit of the Owner of such Bond,
who shall thereafter be restricted exclusively to such funds for any claim of whatever nature on his part
under this Bond Resolution or on, or with respect to, said Bond. If any Bond is not presented for payment
within four (4) years following the date when such Bond becomes due at Maturity, the Paying Agent shall
repay, without liability for interest thereon, to the Issuer the funds theretofore held by it for payment of such

13



Bond, and such Bond shall, subject to the defense of any applicable statute of limitation, thereafter be an
unsecured obligation of the Issuer, and the Owner thereof shall be entitled to look only to the Issuer for
payment, and then only to the extent of the amount so repaid to it by the Paying Agent, and the Issuer shall
not be liable for any interest thereon and shall not be regarded as a trustee of such money.

Section 212.  Preliminary and Final Official Statement. The Preliminary Official Statement
dated September 3, 2020, is hereby ratified and approved.

The Official Statement is hereby authorized to be prepared by supplementing, amending and
completing the Preliminary Official Statement, with such changes and additions thereto as are necessary to
conform to and describe the transaction. The Mayor and Clerk of the Issuer are hereby authorized to execute
the Official Statement as so supplemented, amended and completed, and the use and public distribution of
the Official Statement by the Purchaser in connection with the reoffering of the Bonds is hereby authorized.
The proper officials of the Issuer are hereby authorized to execute and deliver a certificate pertaining to
such Official Statement as prescribed therein, dated as of the Issue Date.

The Issuer agrees to provide to the Purchaser within seven business days of the date of the sale of
Bonds sufficient copies of the Official Statement to enable the Purchaser to comply with the requirements
of the SEC Rule and Rule G-32 of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board.

Section 213.  Sale of the Bonds. The sale of the Bonds to the Purchaser is hereby ratified and
confirmed. The Mayor and Clerk are hereby authorized to execute the official bid form submitted by the
Purchaser. Delivery of the Bonds shall be made to the Purchaser on the Issue Date (which shall be as soon
as practicable after the adoption of this Bond Resolution), upon payment of the Purchase Price.

ARTICLE HI

REDEMPTION OF BONDS

Section 301. Redemption by Issuer.

Optional Redemption. At the option of the Issuer, the Bonds maturing September 1, 2026 and
thereafter will be subject to redemption and payment prior to their Stated Maturity on September 1, 2025,
and thereafier as a whole or in part (selection of maturities and the amount of Bonds of each maturity to be
redeemed to be determined by the Issuer in such equitable manner as it may determine) at any time, at the
Redemption Price of 100% (expressed as a percentage of the principal amount), plus accrued interest
thereon to the Redemption Date.

[ Mandatory Redemption.

(a) 20__ Term Bonds. The 20__ Term Bonds shall be subject to mandatory redemption and
payment prior to Stated Maturity pursuant to the mandatory redemption requirements of this Section at a
Redemption Price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest to the Redemption
Date. The taxes levied in Article IV hereof which are to be deposited into the Debt Service Account shall
be sufficient to redeem, and the Issuer shall redeem on September 1 in each year, the following principal
amounts of such 20 Term Bonds:

Principal
Amount Year

14



20 *

*Final Maturity

(b) 20__ Term Bonds. The 20__ Term Bonds shall be subject to mandatory redemption and
payment prior to Stated Maturity pursuant to the mandatory redemption requirements of this Section at a
Redemption Price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest to the Redemption
Date. The taxes levied in Article IV hereof which are to be deposited into the Debt Service Account shall
be sufficient to redeem, and the Issuer shall redeem on September 1 in each year, the following principal
amounts of such 20 Term Bonds:

Principal
Amount Year
$ 20
20 *
*Final Maturity

At its option, to be exercised on or before the 45th day next preceding any mandatory Redemption
Date, the Issuer may: (1) deliver to the Paying Agent for cancellation Term Bonds subject to mandatory
redemption on said mandatory Redemption Date, in any aggregate principal amount desired; or (2) furnish
the Paying Agent funds, together with appropriate instructions, for the purpose of purchasing any Term
Bonds subject to mandatory redemption on said mandatory Redemption Date from any Owner thereof
whereupon the Paying Agent shall expend such funds for such purpose to such extent as may be practical;
or (3) receive a credit with respect to the mandatory redemption obligation of the Issuer under this Section
for any Term Bonds subject to mandatory redemption on said mandatory Redemption Date which, prior to
such date, have been redeemed (other than through the operation of the mandatory redemption requirements
of this subsection) and cancelled by the Paying Agent and not theretofore applied as a credit against any
redemption obligation under this subsection. Each Term Bond so delivered or previously purchased or
redeemed shall be credited at 100% of the principal amount thereof on the obligation of the Issuer to redeem
Term Bonds of the same Stated Maturity on such mandatory Redemption Date, and any excess of such
amount shall be credited on future mandatory redemption obligations for Term Bonds of the same Stated
Maturity as designated by the Issuer, and the principal amount of Term Bonds to be redeemed by operation
of the requirements of this Section shall be accordingly reduced. If the Issuer intends to exercise any option
granted by the provisions of clauses (1), (2) or (3) above, the Issuer will, on or before the 45th day next
preceding each mandatory Redemption Date, furnish the Paying Agent a written certificate indicating to
what extent the provisions of said clauses (1), (2) and (3) are to be complied with, with respect to such
mandatory redemption payment. |

Section 302.  Selection of Bonds to be Redeemed. Bonds shall be redeemed only in an
Authorized Denomination. When less than all of the Bonds are to be redeemed and paid prior to their Stated
Maturity, such Bonds shall be redeemed in such manner as the Issuer shall determine. Bonds of less than
a full Stated Maturity shall be selected by the Bond Registrar in a minimum Authorized Denomination of
principal amount in such equitable manner as the Bond Registrar may determine.

In the case of a partial redemption of Bonds by lot when Bonds of denominations greater than a
minimum Authorized Denomination are then Outstanding, then for all purposes in connection with such
redemption a minimum Authorized Denomination of face value shall be treated as though it were a separate
Bond of the denomination of a minimum Authorized Denomination. If it is determined that one or more,
but not all, of a minimum Authorized Denomination of face value represented by any Bond is selected for

15



redemption, then upon notice of intention to redeem a minimum Authorized Denomination, the Owner or
the Owner’s duly authorized agent shall forthwith present and surrender such Bond to the Bond Registrar:
(1) for payment of the Redemption Price and interest to the Redemption Date of a minimum Authorized
Denomination of face value called for redemption, and (2) for exchange, without charge to the Owner
thereof, for a new Bond or Bonds of the aggregate principal amount of the unredeemed portion of the
principal amount of such Bond. If the Owner of any such Bond fails to present such Bond to the Paying
Agent for payment and exchange as aforesaid, such Bond shall, nevertheless, become due and payable on
the redemption date to the extent of a minimum Authorized Denomination of face value called for
redemption (and to that extent only).

Section 303. Notice and Effect of Call for Redemption. In the event the Issuer desires to call
the Bonds for redemption prior to maturity, written notice of such intent shall be provided to the Bond
Registrar in accordance with K.S.A. 10-129, as amended, not less than 45 days prior to the Redemption
Date. The Bond Registrar shall call Bonds for redemption and payment and shall give notice of such
redemption as herein provided upon receipt by the Bond Registrar at least 45 days prior to the Redemption
Date of written instructions of the Issuer specifying the principal amount, Stated Maturities, Redemption
Date and Redemption Prices of the Bonds to be called for redemption. [The foregoing provisions of this
paragraph shall not apply in the case of any mandatory redemption of Term Bonds hereunder, and Term
Bonds shall be called by the Paying Agent for redemption pursuant to such mandatory redemption
requirements without the necessity of any action by the Issuer and whether or not the Paying Agent holds
moneys available and sufficient to effect the required redemption.]

Unless waived by any Owner of Bonds to be redeemed, if the Issuer shall call any Bonds for
redemption and payment prior to the Stated Maturity thereof, the Issuer shall give written notice of its
intention to call and pay said Bonds to the Bond Registrar and the State Treasurer. In addition, the Issuer
shall cause the Bond Registrar to give written notice of redemption to the Owners of said Bonds. Each of
said written notices shall be deposited in the United States first class mail not less than 30 days prior to the
Redemption Date.

All official notices of redemption shall be dated and shall contain the following information:
(a) the Redemption Date;
(b) the Redemption Price;

(c) if less than all Outstanding Bonds are to be redeemed, the identification (and, in the case
of partial redemption of any Bonds, the respective principal amounts) of the Bonds to be redeemed;

(d) a statement that on the Redemption Date the Redemption Price will become due and
payable upon each such Bond or portion thereof called for redemption and that interest thereon shall cease
to accrue from and after the Redemption Date; and

(e) the place where such Bonds are to be surrendered for payment of the Redemption Price,
which shall be the principal office of the Paying Agent.

The failure of any Owner to receive notice given as heretofore provided or an immaterial defect
therein shall not invalidate any redemption.

Prior to any Redemption Date, the Issuer shall deposit with the Paying Agent an amount of money

sufficient to pay the Redemption Price of all the Bonds or portions of Bonds that are to be redeemed on
such Redemption Date.

16



For so long as the Securities Depository is effecting book-entry transfers of the Bonds, the Bond
Registrar shall provide the notices specified in this Section to the Securities Depository. It is expected that
the Securities Depository shall, in turn, notify its Participants and that the Participants, in turn, will notify
or cause to be notified the Beneficial Owners. Any failure on the part of the Securities Depository or a
Participant, or failure on the part of a nominee of a Beneficial Owner of a Bond (having been mailed notice
from the Bond Registrar, the Securities Depository, a Participant or otherwise) to notify the Beneficial
Owner of the Bond so affected, shall not affect the validity of the redemption of such Bond.

Official notice of redemption having been given as aforesaid, the Bonds or portions of Bonds to be
redeemed shall become due and payable on the Redemption Date, at the Redemption Price therein specified,
and from and after the Redemption Date (unless the Issuer defaults in the payment of the Redemption Price)
such Bonds or portion of Bonds shall cease to bear interest. Upon surrender of such Bonds for redemption
in accordance with such notice, the Redemption Price of such Bonds shall be paid by the Paying Agent.
Installments of interest due on or prior to the Redemption Date shall be payable as herein provided for
payment of interest. Upon surrender for any partial redemption of any Bond, there shall be prepared for
the Owner a new Bond or Bonds of the same Stated Maturity in the amount of the unpaid principal as
provided herein. All Bonds that have been surrendered for redemption shall be cancelled and destroyed by
the Paying Agent as provided herein and shall not be reissued.

In addition to the foregoing notice, the Issuer shall provide such notices of redemption as are
required by the Disclosure Undertaking. Further notice may be given by the Issuer or the Bond Registrar
on behalf of the Issuer as set out below, but no defect in said further notice nor any failure to give all or any
portion of such further notice shall in any manner defeat the effectiveness of a call for redemption if official
notice thereof is given as above prescribed:

(a) Each further notice of redemption given hereunder shall contain the information required
above for an official notice of redemption plus (1) the CUSIP numbers of all Bonds being redeemed; (2)
the date of issue of the Bonds as originally issued; (3) the rate of interest borne by each Bond being
redeemed; (4) the maturity date of each Bond being redeemed; and (5) any other descriptive information
needed to identify accurately the Bonds being redeemed.

(b) Each further notice of redemption shall be sent at least one day before the mailing of notice
to Owners by first class, registered or certified mail or overnight delivery, as determined by the Bond
Registrar, to all registered securities depositories then in the business of holding substantiai amounts of
obligations of types comprising the Bonds and to one or more national information services that disseminate
notices of redemption of obligations such as the Bonds.

(c) Each check or other transfer of funds issued for the payment of the Redemption Price of
Bonds being redeemed shall bear or have enclosed the CUSIP number of the Bonds being redeemed with
the proceeds of such check or other transfer.

The Paying Agent is also directed to comply with any mandatory standards then in effect for
processing redemptions of municipal securities established by the State or the Securities and Exchange
Commission. Failure to comply with such standards shall not affect or invalidate the redemption of any
Bond.

17



ARTICLE IV

SECURITY FOR BONDS

Section 401.  Security for the Bonds. The Bonds shall be general obligations of the Issuer
payable as to both principal and interest in part from special assessments levied upon the property benefited
by the construction of the improvements financed by the Refunded Bonds and, if not so paid, from ad
valorem taxes which may be levied without limitation as to rate or amount upon all the taxable tangible
property, real and personal, within the territorial limits of the Issuer. The full faith, credit and resources of
the Issuer are hereby irrevocably pledged for the prompt payment of the principal of and interest on the
Bonds as the same become due.

Section 402. Levy and Collection of Annual Tax; Transfer to Debt Service Account. The
Governing Body shall annually make provision for the payment of principal of, premium, if any, and
interest on the Bonds as the same become due by, to the extent necessary, levying and collecting the
necessary taxes and/or assessments upon all of the taxable tangible property within the Issuer in the manner
provided by law.

The taxes and/or assessments referred to above shall be extended upon the tax rolls in each of the
several years, respectively, and shall be levied and collected at the same time and in the same manner as
the other ad valorem taxes of the Issuer are levied and collected. The proceeds derived from said taxes
shall be deposited in the Bond and Interest Fund, shall be kept separate and apart from all other funds of
the Issuer shall thereafter be transferred to the Debt Service Account and shall be used solely for the
payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds as and when the same become due, taking into account
any scheduled mandatory redemptions, and the fees and expenses of the Paying Agent,

If at any time said taxes and/or assessments are not collected in time to pay the principal of or
interest on the Bonds when due, the Treasurer is hereby authorized and directed to pay said principal or

interest out of the general funds of the Issuer and to reimburse said general funds for money so expended
when said taxes are collected.

ARTICLE V

ESTABLISHMENT OF FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS
DEPOSIT AND APPLICATION OF BOND PROCEEDS

Section 501.  Creation of Funds and Accounts. Simultaneously with the issuance of the
Bonds, there shall be created within the Treasury of the Issuer the following Funds and Accounts:

(a) Redemption Fund for Refunded Bonds.
(b) Costs of Issuance Account for General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2020-A.

(c) Debt Service Account for General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2020-A (within the
Bond and Interest Fund).

The Funds and Accounts established herein shall be administered in accordance with the provisions
of this Bond Resolution so long as the Bonds are Outstanding.

18



Section 502.  Deposit of Bond Proceeds. The net proceeds received from the sale of the Bonds
shall be deposited simultaneously with the delivery of the Bonds as follows:

(a) All accrued interest, if any, received from the sale of the Bonds shall be deposited in the
Debt Service Account.

(b) The sum of §| shall be deposited in the Costs of Issuance Account.

() The remaining balance of the proceeds derived from the sale of the Bonds shall be
deposited in the Redemption Fund.

Section 503.  Application of Moneys in the Redemption Fund. Moneys in the Redemption
Fund shall be paid and transferred to the Refunded Bonds Paying Agent, with irrevocable instructions to
apply such amount to the payment of the Refunded Bonds on the Refunded Bonds Redemption Date. The
Clerk is authorized and instructed to provide appropriate notice of redemption in accordance with the
Refunded Bonds Resolution authorizing the issuance of such Refunded Bonds. Any moneys remaining in
the Redemption Fund not needed to retire the Refunded Bonds shall be transferred to the Debt Service
Account.

Section 504.  Application of Moneys in Debt Service Account. All amounts paid and credited
to the Debt Service Account shall be expended and used by the Issuer for the sole purpose of paying the
principal or Redemption Price of and interest on the Bonds as and when the same become due and the usual
and customary fees and expenses of the Bond Registrar and Paying Agent. The Treasurer is authorized and
directed to withdraw from the Debt Service Account sums sufficient to pay both principal or Redemption
Price of and interest on the Bonds and the fees and expenses of the Bond Registrar and Paying Agent as
and when the same become due, and to forward such sums to the Paying Agent in a manner which ensures
that the Paying Agent will receive immediately available funds in such amounts on or before the Business
Day immediately preceding the dates when such principal, interest and fees of the Bond Registrar and
Paying Agent will become due. If, through the lapse of time or otherwise, the Owners of Bonds are no
longer entitled to enforce payment of the Bonds or the interest thereon, the Paying Agent shall return said
funds to the Issuer. All moneys deposited with the Paying Agent shall be deemed to be deposited in
accordance with and subject to all of the provisions contained in this Bond Resolution and shall be held in
trust by the Paying Agent for the benefit of the Owners of the Bonds entitled to payment from such moneys.

Any moneys or investments remaining in the Debt Service Account after the retirement of the
Bonds shall be transferred and paid into the Bond and Interest Fund.

Section 505.  Deposits and Investment of Moneys. Moneys in each of the Funds and Accounts
shall be deposited in accordance with laws of the State, in a bank, savings and loan association or savings
bank organized under the laws of the State, any other state or the United States: (a) which has a main or
branch office located in the Issuer or (b) if no such entity has a main or branch office located in the Issuer,
with such an entity that has a main or branch office located in the county or counties in which the Issuer is
located. All such depositaries shall be members of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, or otherwise
as permitted by State law. All such deposits shall be invested in Permitted Investments as set forth in this
Article or shall be adequately secured as provided by the laws of the State. All moneys held in the Funds
and Accounts shall be kept separate and apart from all other funds of the Issuer so that there shall be no
commingling with any other funds of the Issuer,

Moneys held in any Fund or Account other than the Redemption Fund may be invested in
accordance with this Bond Resolution and the Federal Tax Certificate in Permitted Investments; provided,
however, that no such investment shall be made for a period extending longer than to the date when the

19



moneys invested may be needed for the purpose for which such fund was created. All earnings on any
investments held in any Fund or Account shall accrue to and become a part of such Fund or Account.

Section 506.  Application of Moneys in the Costs of Issuance Account. Moneys in the Costs
of Issuance Account shall be used by the Issuer to pay the Costs of Issuance. Any funds remaining in the
Costs of Issuance Account, after payment of all Costs of Issuance, but not later than the later of 30 days
prior to the first Stated Maturity of principal or one year after the date of issuance of the Bonds, shall be
transferred to the Debt Service Account.

Section 507. Redemption of Refunded Bonds. The Refunded Bonds are hereby called for
redemption and payment prior to maturity on the Refunded Bonds Redemption Date. Said Refunded Bonds
shall be redeemed in accordance with the Refunded Bonds Resolution by the payment of the principal
thereof, together with the redemption premium and accrued interest thereon to such Refunded Bonds
Redemption Date. The Clerk is hereby directed to cause notice of the call for redemption and payment of
said Refunded Bonds to be given in the manner provided in the Refunded Bonds Resolution. The officers
of the Issuer and the Refunded Bonds Paying Agent are hereby authorized and directed to take such other
action as may be necessary in order to effect the redemption and payment of said Refunded Bonds as herein
provided.

ARTICLE VI

DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

Section 601. Remedies. The provisions of the Bond Resolution, including the covenants and
agreements herein contained, shall constitute a contract between the Issuer and the Owners of the Bonds.
If an Event of Default occurs and shall be continuing, the Owner or Owners of not less than 10% in principal
amount of the Bonds at the time Outstanding shall have the right for the equal benefit and protection of all
Owners of Bonds similarly situated:

(a) by mandamus or other suit, action or proceedings at law or in equity to enforce the rights
of such Owner or Owners against the Issuer and its officers, agents and employees, and to require and
compel duties and obligations required by the provisions of the Bond Resolution or by the Constitution and
laws of the State;

(b) by suit, action or other proceedings in equity or at law to require the Issuer, its officers,
agents and employees to account as if they were the trustees of an express trust; and

(c) by suit, action or other proceedings in equity or at law to enjoin any acts or things which
may be unlawful or in violation of the rights of the Owners of the Bonds.

Section 602. Limitation on Rights of Owners. The covenants and agreements of the Issuer
contained herein and in the Bonds shall be for the equal benefit, protection, and security of the Owners of
any or all of the Bonds, all of which Bonds shall be of equal rank and without preference or priority of one
Bond over any other Bond in the application of the funds herein pledged to the payment of the principal of
and the interest on the Bonds, or otherwise, except as to rate of interest, date of maturity and right of prior
redemption as provided in this Bond Resolution. No one or more Owners secured hereby shall have any
right in any manner whatever by his or their action to affect, disturb or prejudice the security granted and
provided for herein, or to enforce any right hereunder, except in the manner herein provided, and all

20



proceedings at law or in equity shall be instituted, had and maintained for the equal benefit of all
Outstanding Bonds.

Section 603. Remedies Cumulative. No remedy conferred herein upon the Owners is intended
to be exclusive of any other remedy, but each such remedy shall be cumulative and in addition to every
other remedy and may be exercised without exhausting and without regard to any other remedy conferred
herein. No waiver of any default or breach of duty or contract by the Owner of any Bond shall extend to
or affect any subsequent default or breach of duty or contract or shall impair any rights or remedies thereon.
No delay or omission of any Owner to exercise any right or power accruing upon any default shall impair
any such right or power or shall be construed to be a waiver of any such default or acquiescence therein.
Every substantive right and every remedy conferred upon the Owners of the Bonds by this Bond Resolution
may be enforced and exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient. If action or
proceedings taken by any Owner on account of any default or to enforce any right or exercise any remedy
has been discontinued or abandoned for any reason, or shall have been determined adversely to such Owner,
then, and in every such case, the Issuer and the Owners of the Bonds shall, subject to any determination in
such action or proceeding or applicable law of the State, be restored to their former positions and rights
hereunder, respectively, and all rights, remedies, powers and duties of the Owners shall continue as if no
such suit, action or other proceedings had been brought or taken.

ARTICLE VII

DEFEASANCE

Section 701.  Defeasance. When any or all of the Bonds, redemption premium, if any, or
scheduled interest payments thereon have been paid and discharged, then the requirements contained in this
Bond Resolution and the pledge of the Issuer’s faith and credit hereunder and all other rights granted hereby
shall terminate with respect to the Bonds or scheduled interest payments thereon so paid and discharged.
Bonds, redemption premium, if any, or scheduled interest payments thereon shall be deemed to have been
paid and discharged within the meaning of this Bond Resolution if there has been deposited with the Paying
Agent, or other commercial bank or trust company located in the State and having full trust powers, at or
prior to the Stated Maturity or Redemption Date of said Bonds or the interest payments thereon, in trust for
and irrevocably appropriated thereto, moneys and/or Defeasance Obligations which, together with the
interest to be earned on any such Defeasance Obligations, will be sufficient for the payment of the principal
of or Redemption Price of said Bonds and/or interest accrued to the Stated Maturity or Redemption Date,
or if default in such payment has occurred on such date, then to the date of the tender of such payments. If
the amount to be so deposited is based on the Redemption Price of any Bonds, no such satisfaction shall
occur until (a) the Issuer has elected to redeem such Bonds, and (b) either notice of such redemption has
been given, or the Issuer has given irrevocable instructions, or shall have provided for an escrow agent to
give irrevocable instructions, to the Bond Registrar to give such notice of redemption in compliance with
Article IIT hereof. Any money and Defeasance Obligations that at any time shall be deposited with the
Paying Agent or other commercial bank or trust company by or on behalf of the Issuer, for the purpose of
paying and discharging any of the Bonds, shall be and are hereby assigned, transferred and set over to the
Paying Agent or other bank or trust company in trust for the respective Owners of the Bonds, and such
moneys shall be and are hereby irrevocably appropriated to the payment and discharge thereof. All money
and Defeasance Obligations deposited with the Paying Agent or such bank or trust company shall be
deemed to be deposited in accordance with and subject to all of the provisions of this Bond Resolution.

21



ARTICLE VIII

TAX COVENANTS

Section 801.  General Covenants. The Issuer covenants and agrees that it will comply with: (a)
all applicable provisions of the Code necessary to maintain the exclusion from gross income for federal
income tax purposes of the interest on the Bonds; and (b) all provisions and requirements of the Federal
Tax Certificate. The Mayor and the Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to execute the Federal Tax
Certificate in a form approved by Bond Counsel, for and on behalf of and as the act and deed of the Issuer.
The Issuer will, in addition, adopt such other ordinances or resolutions and take such other actions as may
be necessary to comply with the Code and with all other applicable future laws, regulations, published
rulings and judicial decisions, in order to ensure that the interest on the Bonds will remain excluded from
federal gross income, to the extent any such actions can be taken by the Issuer.

Section 802.  Survival of Covenants. The covenants contained in this Article and in the Federal
Tax Certificate shall remain in full force and effect notwithstanding the defeasance of the Bonds pursuant
to Article VII hereof or any other provision of this Bond Resolution until such time as is set forth in the
Federal Tax Certificate.

ARTICLE IX

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS

Section 901.  Disclosure Requirements. The Mayor and Clerk are hereby authorized and
directed to execute the Disclosure Undertaking in a form approved by Bond Counsel, for and on behalf of
and as the act and deed of the Issuer. The Issuer hereby covenants with the Purchaser and the Beneficial
Owners to provide and disseminate such information as is required by the SEC Rule and as further set forth
in the Disclosure Undertaking, the provisions of which are incorporated herein by reference. Such covenant
shall be for the benefit of and enforceable by the Purchaser and the Beneficial Owners.

Section 902.  Failure to Comply with Continuing Disclosure Requirements. In the event the
Issuer fails to comply in a timely manner with its covenants contained in the preceding section, the
Purchaser and/or any Beneficial Owner may make demand for such compliance by written notice to the
Issuer. In the event the Issuer does not remedy such noncompliance within 10 days of receipt of such
written notice, the Purchaser or any Beneficial Owner may in its discretion, without notice or demand,
proceed to enforce compliance by a suit or suits in equity for the specific performance of such covenant or
agreement contained in the preceding section or for the enforcement of any other appropriate legal or
equitable remedy, as the Purchaser and/or any Beneficial Owner shall deem effectual to protect and enforce
any of the duties of the Issuer under such preceding section. Notwithstanding any other provision of this
Bond Resolution, failure of the Issuer to comply with its covenants contained in the preceding section shall
not be considered an Event of Default under this Bond Resolution.

ARTICLE X

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Section 1001. Annual Audit. Annually, promptly after the end of the Fiscal Year, the Issuer will
cause an audit to be made of the financial statements of the Issuer for the preceding Fiscal Year by an

22



Independent Accountant. Within 30 days after the completion of each such audit, a copy thereof shall be
filed in the office of the Clerk. Such audit shall at all times during the usual business hours be open to the
examination and inspection by any taxpayer, any Owner of any of the Bonds, or by anyone acting for or on
behalf of such taxpayer or Owner. Upon payment of the reasonable cost of preparing and mailing the same,
a copy of any annual audit will, upon request, be sent to any Owner or prospective Owner. As soon as
possible after the completion of the annual audit, the Governing Body shall review such audit, and if the
audit discloses that proper provision has not been made for all of the requirements of this Bond Resolution,
the Issuer shall promptly cure such deficiency.

Section 1002. Amendments. The rights and duties of the Issuer and the Owners, and the terms
and provisions of the Bonds or of this Bond Resolution, may be amended or modified at any time in any
respect by ordinance or resolution of the Issuer with the written consent of the Owners of not less than a
majority in principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding, such consent to be evidenced by an instrument
or instruments executed by such Owners and duly acknowledged or proved in the manner of a deed to be
recorded, and such instrument or instruments shall be filed with the Clerk, but no such modification or
alteration shall:

(a extend the maturity of any payment of principal or interest due upon any Bond,

b) effect a reduction in the amount which the Issuer is required to pay as principal of or interest
on any Bond;

© permit preference or priority of any Bond over any other Bond; or

(d) reduce the percentage in principal amount of Bonds required for the written consent to any

modification or alteration of the provisions of this Bond Resolution.

Any provision of the Bonds or of this Bond Resolution may, however, be amended or modified by
ordinance or resolution duly adopted by the Governing Body at any time in any legal respect with the
written consent of the Owners of all of the Bonds at the time Outstanding.

Without notice to or the consent of any Owners, the Issuer may amend or supplement this Bond
Resolution for the purpose of curing any formal defect, omission, inconsistency or ambiguity herein, to
grant to or confer upon the Owners any additional rights, remedies, powers or authority that may lawfully
be granted to or conferred upon the Owners, to conform this Bond Resolution to the Code or future
applicable federal law concerning tax-exempt obligations, or in connection with any other change therein
which is not materially adverse to the interests of the Owners.

Every amendment or modification of the provisions of the Bonds or of this Bond Resolution, to
which the written consent of the Owners is given, as above provided, shall be expressed in a resolution or
ordinance adopted by the Governing Body amending or supplementing the provisions of this Bond
Resolution and shall be deemed to be a part of this Bond Resolution. A certified copy of every such
amendatory or supplemental ordinance or resolution, if any, and a certified copy of this Bond Resolution
shall always be kept on file in the office of the Clerk, and shall be made available for inspection by the
Owner of any Bond or a prospective purchaser or owner of any Bond authorized by this Bond Resolution,
and upon payment of the reasonable cost of preparing the same, a certified copy of any such amendatory or
supplemental ordinance or resolution or of this Bond Resolution will be sent by the Clerk to any such Owner
or prospective Owner.

Any and all modifications made in the manner hereinabove provided shall not become effective
until there has been filed with the Clerk a copy of the ordinance or resolution of the Issuer hereinabove

23



provided for, duly certified, as well as proof of any required consent to such modification by the Owners of
the Bonds then Outstanding. It shall not be necessary to note on any of the Outstanding Bonds any reference
to such amendment or modification.

The Issuer shall furnish to the Paying Agent a copy of any amendment to the Bonds or this Bond
Resolution which affects the duties or obligations of the Paying Agent under this Bond Resolution.

Section 1003. Notices, Consents and Other Instruments by Owners. Any notice, consent,
request, direction, approval or other instrument to be signed and executed by the Owners may be in any
number of concurrent writings of similar tenor and may be signed or executed by such Owners in person
or by agent appointed in writing. Proof of the execution of any such instrument or of the writing appointing
any such agent and of the ownership of Bonds, if made in the following manner, shall be sufficient for any
of the purposes of this Bond Resolution, and shall be conclusive in favor of the Issuer and the Paying Agent
with regard to any action taken, suffered or omitted under any such instrument, namely:

(a) The fact and date of the execution by any person of any such instrument may be proved by
a certificate of any officer in any jurisdiction who by law has power to take acknowledgments within such
jurisdiction that the person signing such instrument acknowledged before such officer the execution thereof,
or by affidavit of any witness to such execution.

(b) The fact of ownership of Bonds, the amount or amounts, numbers and other identification
of Bonds, and the date of holding the same shall be proved by the Bond Register.

In determining whether the Owners of the requisite principal amount of Bonds Outstanding have
given any request, demand, authorization, direction, notice, consent or waiver under this Bond Resolution,
Bonds owned by the Issuer shall be disregarded and deemed not to be Outstanding under this Bond
Resolution, except that, in determining whether the Owners shall be protected in relying upon any such
request, demand, authorization, direction, notice, consent or waiver, only Bonds which the Owners know
to be so owned shall be so disregarded. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Bonds so owned which have been
pledged in good faith shall not be disregarded as aforesaid if the pledgee establishes to the satisfaction of
the Owners the pledgee’s right so to act with respect to such Bonds and that the pledgee is not the Issuer.

Section 1004. Notices. Any notice, request, complaint, demand or other communication required
or desired to be given or filed under this Bond Resolution shall be in writing, given to the Notice
Representative at the Notice Address and shall be deemed duly given or filed if the same shall be: (a) duly
mailed by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid; or (b) communicated via fax, with electronic or
telephonic confirmation of receipt. Copies of such notices shall also be given to the Paying Agent. The Issuer,
the Paying Agent and the Purchaser may from time to time designate, by notice given hereunder to the others
of such parties, such other address to which subsequent notices, certificates or other communications shall be
sent.

All notices given by: (a) certified or registered mail as aforesaid shall be deemed duly given as of the
date they are so mailed; (b) fax as aforesaid shall be deemed duly given as of the date of confirmation of
receipt. If, because of the temporary or permanent suspension of regular mail service or for any other reason,
it is impossible or impractical to mail any notice in the manner herein provided, then such other form of notice
as shall be made with the approval of the Paying Agent shall constitute a sufficient notice.

Section 1005. Electronic Transactions. The issuance of the Bonds and the transactions related
thereto and described herein may be conducted and documents may be stored by electronic means. All
closing documents, certificates, and related instruments may be executed by electronic transmission.
Copies, telecopies, facsimiles, electronic files and other reproductions of original executed documents (or

24



documents executed by electronic transmission) shall be deemed to be authentic and valid counterparts of
such documents for all purposes, including the filing of any claim, action or suit in the appropriate court of
law.

Section 1006. Further Authority. The officers and officials of the Issuer, including the Mayor,
and Clerk, are hereby authorized and directed to execute all documents and take such actions as they may
deem necessary or advisable in order to carry out and perform the purposes of this Bond Resolution and to
make ministerial alterations, changes or additions in the foregoing agreements, statements, instruments and
other documents herein approved, authorized and confirmed which they may approve, and the execution or
taking of such action shall be conclusive evidence of such necessity or advisability.

Section 1007. Severability. If any section or other part of this Bond Resolution, whether large
or small, is for any reason held invalid, the invalidity thereof shall not affect the validity of the other

provisions of this Bond Resolution.

Section 1008. Governing Law. This Bond Resolution shall be governed exclusively by and
construed in accordance with the applicable laws of the State.

Section 1009. Effective Date. This Bond Resolution shall take effect and be in full force from
and after its adoption by the Governing Body.

[BALANCE OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

25



ADOPTED by the governing body on September 17, 2020.

(SEAL)

Mayor

ATTEST:

City Clerk

(Signature Page to Bond Resolution)



EXHIBIT A
(FORM OF BONDS)

REGISTERED REGISTERED
NUMBER __ $

Unless this certificate is presented by an authorized representative of The Depository
Trust Company, a New York Corporation (“DTC?”), to the Issuer or its agent for
registration of transfer, exchange or payment, and any certificate issued is registered
in the name of Cede & Co. or in such other name as is requested by an authorized
representative of DTC (and any payment is made to Cede & Co. or to such other
entity as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC), ANY TRANSFER,
PLEDGE OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO
ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL inasmuch as the registered owner hereof, Cede &
Co., has an interest herein.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

STATE OF KANSAS
COUNTY OF LEAVENWORTH
CITY OF LANSING
GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BOND
SERIES 2020-A

Interest Maturity Dated CUSIP:
Rate: Date: Date: October 1, 2020
REGISTERED OWNER:
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT:

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS: That the City of Lansing, in the County of
Leavenworth, State of Kansas (the “Issuer”), for value received, hereby acknowledges itself to be indebted
and promises to pay to the Registered Owner shown above, or registered assigns, but solely from the source
and in the manner herein specified, the Principal Amount shown above on the Maturity Date shown above,
unless called for redemption prior to the Maturity Date, and to pay interest thereon at the Interest Rate per
annum shown above (computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months), from the Dated
Date shown above, or from the most recent date to which interest has been paid or duly provided for, payable
semiannually on March 1 and September 1 of each year, commencing March 1, 2021 (the “Interest Payment
Dates’), until the Principal Amount has been paid.

Method and Place of Payment. The principal or redemption price of this Bond shall be paid at
maturity or upon earlier redemption to the person in whose name this Bond is registered at the maturity or
redemption date thereof, upon presentation and surrender of this Bond at the principal office of the
Treasurer of the State of Kansas, Topeka, Kansas (the “Paying Agent” and “Bond Registrar”). The interest
payable on this Bond on any Interest Payment Date shall be paid to the person in whose name this Bond is
registered on the registration books maintained by the Bond Registrar at the close of business on the Record
Date(s) for such interest, which shall be the 15th day (whether or not a business day) of the calendar month

A-1



next preceding the Interest Payment Date. Such interest shall be payable (a) by check or draft mailed by
the Paying Agent to the address of such Registered Owner shown on the Bond Register or at such other
address as is furnished to the Paying Agent in writing by such Registered Owner; or (b) in the case of an
interest payment to Cede & Co. or any Owner of $500,000 or more in aggregate principal amount of Bonds
by electronic transfer to such Owner upon written notice given to the Bond Registrar by such Registered
Owner, not less than 15 days prior to the Record Date for such interest, containing the electronic transfer
instructions including the bank, ABA routing number and account number to which such Registered Owner
wishes to have such transfer directed. The principal or redemption price of and interest on the Bonds shall
be payable in any coin or currency that, on the respective dates of payment thereof, is legal tender for the
payment of public and private debts. Interest not punctually paid will be paid in the manner established in
the within defined Bond Resolution.

Definitions. Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined herein shall have the
meanings assigned to such terms in the hereinafter defined Bond Resolution.

Authorization of Bonds. This Bond is one of an authorized series of Bonds of the Issuer
designated “General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2020-A,” aggregating the principal amount of
$[PRINCIPAL AMOUNT] (the “Bonds”) issued for the purposes set forth in the Ordinance of the Issuer
authorizing the issuance of the Bonds and the Resolution of the Issuer prescribing the form and details of
the Bonds (collectively the “Bond Resolution”). The Bonds are issued by the authority of and in full
compliance with the provisions, restrictions and limitations of the Constitution and laws of the State of
Kansas, including K.S.A. 10-427 et seq., as amended, and all other provisions of the laws of the State of
Kansas applicable thereto.

General Obligations. The Bonds constitute general obligations of the Issuer payable as to both
principal and interest in part from special assessments levied upon the property benefited by the
construction of the improvements financed by the Refunded Bonds and, if not so paid, from ad valorem
taxes which may be levied without limitation as to rate or amount upon all the taxable tangible property,
real and personal, within the territorial limits of the Issuer. The full faith, credit and resources of the Issuer
are hereby irrevocably pledged for the prompt payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds as the
same become due.

Redemption Prior to Maturity. The Bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity, as set
forth in the Bond Resolution.

Book-Entry System. The Bonds are being issued by means of a book-entry system with no
physical distribution of bond certificates to be made except as provided in the Bond Resolution. One Bond
certificate with respect to each date on which the Bonds are stated to mature or with respect to each form
of Bonds, registered in the nominee name of the Securities Depository, is being issued and required to be
deposited with the Securities Depository and immobilized in its custody. The book-entry system will
evidence positions held in the Bonds by the Securities Depository’s participants, beneficial ownership of
the Bonds in authorized denominations being evidenced in the records of such participants. Transfers of
ownership shall be effected on the records of the Securities Depository and its participants pursuant to rules
and procedures established by the Securities Depository and its participants. The Issuer and the Bond
Registrar will recognize the Securities Depository nominee, while the Registered Owner of this Bond, as
the owner of this Bond for all purposes, including (i) payments of principal of, and redemption premium,
if any, and interest on, this Bond, (ii) notices and (iii) voting. Transfer of principal, interest and any
redemption premium payments to participants of the Securities Depository, and transfer of principal,
interest and any redemption premium payments to beneficial owners of the Bonds by participants of the
Securities Depository will be the responsibility of such participants and other nominees of such beneficial
owners. The Issuer and the Bond Registrar will not be responsible or liable for such transfers of payments

A-2



or for maintaining, supervising or reviewing the records maintained by the Securities Depository, the
Securities Depository nominee, its participants or persons acting through such participants. While the
Securities Depository nominee is the owner of this Bond, notwithstanding the provision hereinabove
contained, payments of principal of, redemption premium, if any, and interest on this Bond shall be made
in accordance with existing arrangements among the Issuer, the Bond Registrar and the Securities
Depository.

Transfer and Exchange. EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE PROVIDED IN THE BOND
RESOLUTION, THIS GLOBAL BOND MAY BE TRANSFERRED, IN WHOLE BUT NOT IN
PART, ONLY TO ANOTHER NOMINEE OF THE SECURITIES DEPOSITORY OR TO A
SUCCESSOR SECURITIES DEPOSITORY OR TO A NOMINEE OF A SUCCESSOR
SECURITIES DEPOSITORY. This Bond may be transferred or exchanged, as provided in the Bond
Resolution, only on the Bond Register kept for that purpose at the principal office of the Bond Registrar,
upon surrender of this Bond, together with a written instrument of transfer or authorization for exchange
satisfactory to the Bond Registrar duly executed by the Registered Owner or the Registered Owner’s duly
authorized agent, and thereupon a new Bond or Bonds in any Authorized Denomination of the same
maturity and in the same aggregate principal amount shall be issued to the transferee in exchange therefor
as provided in the Bond Resolution and upon payment of the charges therein prescribed. The Issuer shall
pay all costs incurred in connection with the issuance, payment and initial registration of the Bonds and the
cost of a reasonable supply of bond blanks. The Issuer and the Paying Agent may deem and treat the person
in whose name this Bond is registered on the Bond Register as the absolute owner hereof for the purpose
of receiving payment of, or on account of, the principal or redemption price hereof and interest due hereon
and for all other purposes. The Bonds are issued in fully registered form in Authorized Denominations.

Authentication. This Bond shall not be valid or become obligatory for any purpose or be entitled
to any security or benefit under the hercinafter defined Bond Resolution until the Certificate of
Authentication and Registration hereon shall have been lawfully executed by the Bond Registrar.

IT IS HEREBY DECLARED AND CERTIFIED that all acts, conditions, and things required to
be done and to exist precedent to and in the issuance of this Bond have been properly done and performed
and do exist in due and regular form and manner as required by the Constitution and laws of the State of
Kansas, and that the total indebtedness of the Issuer, including this series of bonds, does not exceed any
constitutional or statutory limitation.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Issuer has caused this Bond to be executed by the manual or
facsimile signature of its Mayor and attested by the manual or facsimile signature of its Clerk, and its seal
to be affixed hereto or imprinted hereon.

CITY OF LANSING, KANSAS
[(Facsimile Seal)] By: (facsimile) -
Mayor
ATTEST:
By: (facsimile)

Clerk



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION AND REGISTRATION

This Bond is one of a series of General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2020-A, of the City of
Lansing, Kansas, described in the within-mentioned Bond Resolution.

Registration Date:

Office of the State Treasurer,

Topeka, Kansas,

as Bond Registrar and Paying Agent

By
Registration Number:

CERTIFICATE OF CLERK
STATE OF KANSAS )
) SS.

COUNTY OF LEAVENWORTH )

The undersigned, Clerk of the City of Lansing, Kansas, does hereby certify that the within Bond
has been duly registered in my office according to law as of October 1, 2020.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

(Facsimile Seal) By: (facsimile)
Clerk

CERTIFICATE OF STATE TREASURER
OFFICE OF THE TREASURER, STATE OF KANSAS
JAKE LATURNER, Treasurer of the State of Kansas, does hereby certify that a transcript of the

proceedings leading up to the issuance of this Bond has been filed in the office of the State Treasurer, and
that this Bond was registered in such office according to law on

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

(Facsimile Seal) By: [(facsimile)]
Treasurer of the State of Kansas




BOND ASSIGNMENT

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned do(es) hereby sell, assign and transfer to

(Name and Address)

(Social Security or Taxpayer Identification No.)

the Bond to which this assignment is affixed in the outstanding principal amount of $ , standing
in the name of the undersigned on the books of the Bond Registrar. The undersigned do(es) hereby

irrevocably constitute and appoint as agent to transfer said Bond on the books of
said Bond Registrar with full power of substitution in the premises.

Dated

Name

Social Security or
Taxpayer Identification No.

Signature (Sign here exactly as name(s)
appear on the face of Certificate)

Signature guarantee:

By

LEGAL OPINION

The following is a true and correct copy of the approving legal opinion of Gilmore & Bell, P.C.,
Bond Counsel, which was dated and issued as of the date of original issuance and delivery of such Bonds:

GILMORE & BELL, P.C.
Attorneys at Law
2405 Grand Boulevard
Suite 1100
Kansas City, Missouri 64108

(PRINTED LEGAL OPINION)

A-5



AGENDA ITEM

TO: Tim Vandall, City Administrator (7~
FROM: Beth Sanford, Finance Director ¥
DATE: September 11, 2020

SUBJECT: Resolution No. B-6-2020 - A Resolution Authorizing and Directing the Issuance, Sale,
and Delivery of Taxable General Obligation Temporary Notes, Series 2020-1, of the City
of Lansing, Kansas.

Bond Counsel, Gilmore & Bell, has prepared Resolution B-6-2020, requesting that the City
Council adopt a Resolution authorizing and directing the issuance, sale, and delivery of Taxable
General Obligation Temporary Notes, Series 2020-1, of the City of Lansing, Kansas; providing for
the levy and collection of an annual tax, if necessary, for the purpose of paying the principal of
and interest on said notes as they become due; making certain covenants and agreements to
provide for the payment and security thereof; and authorizing certain other documents and actions
connected therewith.

Several items have intentionally been left blank. Once the sale of the notes occurs, the document
will be completed and will be available at the council meeting.
Action:

Staff recommends a motion to adopt Resolution No. B-6-2020.

AGENDA ITEM # L@



RESOLUTION NO. B-6-2020

OF

THE CITY OF LANSING, KANSAS

ADOPTED

SEPTEMBER 17, 2020

TAXABLE GENERAL OBLIGATION TEMPORARY NOTES
SERIES 2020-1




Section 101.

Section 201.
Section 202.
Section 203.
Section 204.
Section 205.
Section 206.
Section 207.
Section 208.
Section 209.
Section 210.
Section 211.
Section 212.
Section 213.

Section 301.
Section 302.
Section 303.

Section 401.
Section 402.

Section 501.
Section 502.
Section 503.
Section 504.
Section 505.
Section 506.

Section 601.
Section 602.
Section 603.

TABLE OF CONTENTS
ARTICLE I DEFINITIONS
Definitions of Words and TeITS. .....ceevvvvevrereireeeereeseeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeeeseeeseseersessasssssssressossesssssnes 2

ARTICLE I AUTHORIZATION AND DETAILS OF THE NOTES

Authorization 0f the NOLES. ......eceriiiereriierireeieetctcceeecce ettt ee e e 8
Description Of the NOLES......cccvvuireriireniiiniinnie sttt s oo s s e sasaenesenens 8
Designation of Paying Agent and Note RegiStrar. ..........cccvuevieveieveirieeinesircceeneiee e 9
Method and Place of Payment of the NOLES. ........ccccvvriiiemieieeeeceiecreeesectest e s see e eeeene 9
Payments Due on Saturdays, Sundays and Holidays. ...........ccoceevevveriieeereveerineeeneeeenenes 10
Registration, Transfer and Exchange of NOteS........c.cccevcveveeeecierireeescesesce s 10
Execution, Registration, Authentication and Delivery of Notes. .............ccccovevrevrenrenan, 11
Mutilated, Lost, Stolen or Destroyed NOLES. ........coceveeervevereerienrieeeesesteesereeseseereeeeeeeenens 11
Cancellation and Destruction of Notes Upon Payment. .............coeevveeeieesneernencrcrennnnenen. 12
Book-Entry Notes; Securities DEPOSILOTY. ......c.cccecvirivereeineereiririeeriesesteessteeeeeesreseeseeeees 12
Nonpresentment 0f NOLES. .......ccevvuririrniieninientnienie it borereonsscssstesenne 13
Preliminary and Final Official Statement.............cocvuevereviiennnnereereieesseeeeesceiceeeeeseeaeas 13
Sale OF the NOES. ...ttt ae et sene e seone 13

ARTICLE III REDEMPTION OF NOTES

Redemption DY ISSUET........ccecueririirsieeeieteteeeeccee e er e er et eae s st en e eee e een 14
Selection of Notes to be Redeemed..........couvvvieriieeriererieieeeceeeee oo sesaereseas s 14
Notice and Effect of Call for Redemption............cceeeeerrevieerireineennieeieceeceees oo seenene 14

ARTICLE IV SECURITY FOR NOTES

SECUTILY fOI the INOLES....c..cuemicrereetriecsistnriie et ee et e s et ssseneessonsrens 16
Levy and Collection of ANNUAL TAX. ....c.cceoiereerieiecieeeeieiereeeenresresesstseesssseeseemsee e eeeeeeaeen 16

ARTICLE V ESTABLISHMENT OF FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS

DEPOSIT AND APPLICATION OF NOTE PROCEEDS

Creation of Funds and ACCOUNLS. .......c.cccoeireviririririrennisisneteiess e ees s eeeessesssensenssesenas 17
Deposit Of NOte Proceeds. .....ccerveeiirienirieirieceeitceeeeeer et ere sttt n e esaee 17
Application of Moneys in the Improvement Fund. ..........cccoceeeveeecrirecrccrceeeeseiens 17
Substitution of Improvements; Reallocation of Proceeds. .........coovevuieiiieeececceecereeenenenes 17
Application of Moneys in Debt Service ACCOUNL. ......cccvveriiereierereereieeneeeeseeseeseseseseas 18
Deposits and Investment 0f MODEYS. «....cccvccerreeereieeiceceiee et esesrens e eve st e eoe e aen 18

ARTICLE VI DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

REMEMIES. ..cvoviiviriiriiiceeniceeiceet ettt e b bbbt e ene e 18
Limitation on Rights 0f OWDETS.......cccvivenririniiienienieiitercceec e cress s eeseesesesene 19
Remedies Cumulative. ......c.cocviiiieeinnieeire sttt e eene e 19



Section 701.

Section 801.
Section 802.

Section 901.
Section 902,
Section 903.
Section 904,
Section 905.
Section 906.
Section 907.
Section 908.
Section 909,

ARTICLE VII DEFEASANCE
DIETCASATICE. ..vviceeiieeeieeee ettt s e v v ereeseteee st eessraeseseaenssssesseeesseeseseneseessesmssenssssnesos 19
ARTICLE VIII CONTINUING DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS

Disclosure REQUITEMENES.......couvvericeerreiereietenrcetiteeeesie e enes e esessessesebsesssssesenessenan 20
Failure to Comply with Continuing Disclosure Requirements. ............cccccovvvvvevererersereneen 20

ARTICLE IX MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

ANNUEL AUGIE. ..ovrirereee ettt ettt e sas et et sebee e eemeereeseeseeessssessessessessessessensensesssanas 20
AMENAMENLS. ..ovveeriicereeecieeeeirrrr ettt esre s e s bt et stse e eeme et esteseeeeseeseseseeesaeatessesensesssesne 21
Notices, Consents and Other Instruments by OWDETS. ...........ccovvvverrenierereeivereereeeereenenne 22
INOLICES. ... e e eere et e ere et e b ebn bt a b st a st casa b s emt e e eameeneeneemneaneneeseeaeeneeseanessessenas 22
Electronic TTanSactiOnsS. .........ccccoceeverveeiereereiererseeesstessessesseeeesseesseseeseesseeeeeeessesssssesessssenns 22
FUIther AULhOTILY. ..c.covveereeeeieceeerecinis ettt ce et s et b s entasaeseesenes 22
SEVETADILILY. ...cviceereieiiceirieit ettt s ne e tseeeneesesnenannens 23
GOVEIMING LaW....cc.iiiiiiiiriiniiiiiienireneiene st ere st aesees s be st b senssestenssssemeenee 23
ETECHIVE DIALE......ccueeeeeieetieeteeeecreeeect e eetere et ere sttt ss e ts et et eeeseeeten et s e seseeseeaessesesnessesseases 23

[BALANCE OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

ii



RESOLUTION NO. B-6-2020

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE ISSUANCE, SALE
AND DELIVERY OF TAXABLE GENERAL OBLIGATION TEMPORARY
NOTES, SERIES 2020-1, OF THE CITY OF LANSING, KANSAS; PROVIDING
FOR THE LEVY AND COLLECTION OF AN ANNUAL TAX, IF NECESSARY,
FOR THE PURPOSE OF PAYING THE PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON SAID
NOTES AS THEY BECOME DUE; MAKING CERTAIN COVENANTS AND
AGREEMENTS TO PROVIDE FOR THE PAYMENT AND SECURITY
THEREOF; AND AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OTHER DOCUMENTS AND
ACTIONS CONNECTED THEREWITH.

WHEREAS, the City of Lansing, Kansas (the “Issuer”) is a municipal corporation, duly created,
organized and existing under the Constitution and laws of the State; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of the laws of the State of Kansas applicable thereto, by
proceedings duly had, the governing body of the Issuer has authorized the following improvements
(collectively the “Improvements™) to be made in the City:

Improvement
Project Ordinance No. Authority Fund Deposit*
Property Acquisition 1044 Art. 12, Section 5 of the $2,150,000
Kansas Constitution

* Excludes costs of issuance.
; and

WHEREAS, the governing body of the Issuer is authorized by law to issue general obligation
bonds to pay a portion of the costs of the Improvements; and

WHEREAS, it is necessary for the Issuer to provide cash funds (from time to time) to meet its
obligations incurred in constructing the Improvements prior to the completion thereof and the issuance of the
Issuer’s general obligation bonds, and it is desirable and in the interest of the Issuer that such funds be raised
by the issuance of temporary notes of the Issuer pursuant to the Act; and

WHEREAS, the governing body of the Issuer has advertised the sale of the Notes and hereby
awards the sale of such Notes to the best bidder; and

WHEREAS, the goveming body of the Issuer hereby finds and determines that it is necessary for
the Issuer to authorize the issuance and delivery of the Notes in the principal amount of $[Principal Amount]
to pay a portion of the costs of the Improvements and to pay certain costs of issuing the Notes.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF
LANSING, KANSAS, AS FOLLOWS:



ARTICLE I
DEFINITIONS

Section 101.  Definitions of Words and Terms. In addition to words and terms defined
elsewhere herein, the following words and terms as used in this Note Resolution shall have the meanings
hereinafter set forth. Unless the context shall otherwise indicate, words importing the singular number shall
include the plural and vice versa, and words importing persons shall include firms, associations and
corporations, including public bodies, as well as natural persons.

“Act” means the Constitution and statutes of the State including K.S.A. 10-101 et seq., specifically
including K.S.A. 10-123, K.S.A. 10-620 et seq., and Article 12, Section 5 of the Constitution of the State
of Kansas, all as amended and supplemented from time to time.

“Authorized Denomination” means $5,000 or any integral multiples thereof.

“Beneficial Owner” of the Notes includes any Owner of the Notes and any other Person who,
directly or indirectly has the investment power with respect to any of the Notes.

“Bond and Interest Fund” means the Bond and Interest Fund of the Issuer for its general
obligation bonds.

“Bond Counsel” means the firm of Gilmore & Bell, P.C., or any other attorney or firm of attorneys
whose expertise in matters relating to the issuance of obligations by states and their political subdivisions
is nationally recognized and acceptable to the Issuer.

“Business Day” means a day other than a Saturday, Sunday or holiday on which the Paying Agent
is scheduled in the normal course of its operations to be open to the public for conduct of its operations.

“Cede & Co.” means Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC.
“City” means the City of Lansing, Kansas.

“Clerk” means the duly elected/appointed and acting Clerk of the Issuer, or in the Clerk's absence,
the duly appointed Deputy, Assistant or Acting Clerk of the Issuer.

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the applicable regulations
promulgated thereunder by the United States Department of the Treasury.

“Costs of Issuance” means all costs of issuing the Notes, including but not limited to all
publication, printing, signing and mailing expenses in connection therewith, registration fees, financial
advisory fees, all legal fees and expenses of Bond Counsel and other legal counsel, expenses incurred in
connection with compliance with the Code, and all expenses incurred in connection with receiving ratings
on the Notes.

“Dated Date” means October 1, 2020.
“Debt Service Account” means the Debt Service Account for Taxable General Obligation

Temporary Notes, Series 2020-1 (within the Bond and Interest Fund) created pursuant to Section 501
hereof.



“Debt Service Requirements” means the aggregate principal payments and interest payments on
the Notes for the period of time for which calculated; provided, however, that for purposes of calculating
such amount, principal and interest shall be excluded from the determination of Debt Service Requirements
to the extent that such principal or interest is payable from amounts deposited in trust, escrowed or otherwise
set aside for the payment thereof with the Paying Agent or other commercial bank or trust company located
in the State and having full trust powers.

“Defaulted Interest” means interest on any Note which is payable but not paid on any Interest
Payment Date.

“Defeasance Obligations” means any of the following obligations:

(a) United States Government Obligations that are not subject to redemption in advance of
their maturity dates; or '

(b) obligations of any state or political subdivision of any state, the interest on which is
excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes and which meet the following conditions:

) the obligations are (i) not subject to redemption prior to maturity or (ii) the trustee
for such obligations has been given irrevocable instructions concerning their calling and
redemption and the issuer of such obligations has covenanted not to redeem such obligations other
than as set forth in such instructions;

) the obligations are secured by cash or United States Government Obligations that
may be applied only to principal of, premium, if any, and interest payments on such obligations;

3) such cash and the principal of and interest on such United States Government
Obligations (plus any cash in the escrow fund) are sufficient to meet the liabilities of the
obligations;

“4) such cash and United States Government Obligations serving as security for the

obligations are held in an escrow fund by an escrow agent or a trustee irrevocably in trust;

(5) such cash and United States Government Obligations are not available to satisfy
any other claims, including those against the trustee or escrow agent; and

6) such obligations are rated in a rating category by Moody’s or Standard & Poor’s
that is no lower than the rating category then assigned by that Rating Agency to United States
Government Obligations.

“Derivative” means any investment instrument whose market price is derived from the fluctuating
value of an underlying asset, index, currency, futures contract, including futures, options and collateralized
mortgage obligations.

“Disclosure Undertaking” means the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, dated as of the Issue
Date, attached to the Issuer’s Closing Certificate relating to certain obligations contained in the SEC Rule.

“DTC” means The Depository Trust Company, a limited-purpose trust company organized under the
laws of the State of New York, and its successors and assigns, including any successor securities depository
duly appointed.



“DTC Representation Letter” means the Blanket Letter of Representation from the Issuer and the
Paying Agent to DTC which provides for a book-entry system, or any agreement between the Issuer and
Paying Agent and a successor securities depository duly appointed.

“Event of Default” means each of the following occurrences or events:

(a) Payment of the principal and of the redemption premium, if any, of any of the Notes shall
not be made when the same shall become due and payable, either at Stated Maturity or by proceedings for
redemption or otherwise;

) Payment of any installment of interest on any of the Notes shall not be made when the same
shall become due; or

(©) The Issuer shall default in the due and punctual performance of any other of the covenants,
conditions, agreements and provisions contained in the Notes or in this Note Resolution (other than the
covenants relating to continuing disclosure requirements) on the part of the Issuer to be performed, and
such default shall continue for thirty (30) days after written notice specifying such default and requiring
same to be remedied shall have been given to the Issuer by the Owner of any of the Notes then Outstanding.

“Financeable Costs” means the amount of expenditure for an Improvement which has been duly
authorized by action of the governing body of the Issuer to be financed by general obligation bonds, less:
(a) the amount of any temporary notes or genecral obligation bonds of the Issuer which are currently
Outstanding and available to pay such Financeable Costs; and (b) any amount of Financeable Costs which
has been previously paid by the Issuer or by any eligible source of funds unless such amounts are entitled
to be reimbursed to the Issuer under State or federal law.

“Fiscal Year” means the twelve month period ending on December 31.
“Funds and Accounts” means funds and accounts created by or referred to in Section 501 hereof.

“Improvement Fund” means the Improvement Fund for Taxable General Obligation Temporary
Notes, Series 2020-1 created pursuant to Section 501 hereof.

“Improvements” means the improvements referred to in the preamble to this Note Resolution and
any Substitute Improvements.

“Independent Accountant” means an independent certified public accountant or firm of
independent certified public accountants at the time employed by the Issuer for the purpose of carrying out
the duties imposed on the Independent Accountant by this Note Resolution.

“Interest Payment Date(s)” means the Stated Maturity of an installment of interest on any Note
which shall be March 1 and September 1 of each year, commencing March 1, 2021.

“Issue Date” means the date when the Issuer delivers the Notes to the Purchaser in exchange for
the Purchase Price.

“Issuer” means the City and any successors or assigns.
“Maturity” when used with respect to any Note means the date on which the principal of such

Note becomes due and payable as therein and herein provided, whether at the Stated Maturity thereof or
call for redemption or otherwise.



“Mayor” means the duly elected and acting Mayor, or in the Mayor’s absence, the duly appointed
and/or elected Vice Mayor or Acting Mayor of the Issuer.

“Moody’s” means Moody’s Investors Service, a corporation organized and existing under the laws
of the State of Delaware, and its successors and assigns, and, if such corporation shall be dissolved or
liquidated or shall no longer perform the functions of a securities rating agency, “Moody’s” shall be deemed
to refer to any other nationally recognized securities rating agency designated by the Issuer.

“Note Payment Date” means any date on which principal of or interest on any Note is payable.

“Note Register” means the books for the registration, transfer and exchange of Notes kept at the
office of the Note Registrar.

“Note Registrar” means the State Treasurer and its successors and assigns.
“Note Resolution” means this resolution relating to the Notes.

“Notes” means the Taxable General Obligation Temporary Notes, Series 2020-1, authorized and
issued by the Issuer pursuant to this Note Resolution.

“Notice Address” means with respect to the following entities:
(a) To the Issuer at:

City of Lansing, Kansas
800 First Terrace
Lansing, Kansas 66043
Attn: City Clerk

®) To the Paying Agent at:
State Treasurer of the State of Kansas
Landon Office Building
900 Southwest Jackson, Suite 201

Topeka, Kansas 66612-1235
Fax: (785) 296-6976

(©) To the Purchaser:

[

(d) To the Rating Agency:

Moody’s Municipal Rating Desk
7 World Trade Center

250 Greenwich Street

23rd Floor

New York, New York 10007

5



“Notice Representative” means:

(a) With respect to the Issuer, the Clerk.

(b) With respect to the Note Registrar and Paying Agent, the Director of Bond Services.
(c) With respect to any Purchaser, the manager of its Municipal Bond Department.

(d) With respect to any Rating Agency, any Vice President thereof.

“Official Statement” means Issuer’s Official Statement relating to the Notes.

“Outstanding” means, when used with reference to the Notes, as of a particular date of
determination, all Notes theretofore authenticated and delivered, except the following Notes:

(@ Notes theretofore canceled by the Paying Agent or delivered to the Paying Agent for
cancellation;

()] Notes deemed to be paid in accordance with the provisions of Article VII hereof; and

(©) Notes in exchange for or in lieu of which other Notes have been authenticated and delivered
hereunder.

“Owner” when used with respect to any Note means the Person in whose name such Note is
registered on the Note Register. Whenever consent of the Owners is required pursuant to the terms of this
Note Resolution, and the Owner of the Notes, as set forth on the Note Register, is Cede & Co., the term
Owner shall be deemed to be the Beneficial Owner of the Notes.

“Participants” means those financial institutions for whom the Securities Depository effects book-
entry transfers and pledges of securities deposited with the Securities Depository, as such listing of
Participants exists at the time of such reference.

“Paying Agent” means the State Treasurer, and any successors and assigns.

“Permitted Investments” shall mean the investments hereinafter described, provided, however,
no moneys or funds shall be invested in a Derivative: (a) investments authorized by K.S.A. 12-1675 and
amendments thereto; (b) the municipal investment pool established pursuant to K.S.A. 12-1677a, and
amendments thereto; (c) direct obligations of the United States Government or any agency thereof; (d) the
Issuer’s temporary notes issued pursuant to K.S.A. 10-123 and amendments thereto; (e) interest-bearing
time deposits in commercial banks or trust companies located in the county or counties in which the Issuer
is located which are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or collateralized by securities
described in (c); (f) obligations of the federal national mortgage association, federal home loan banks,
federal home loan mortgage corporation or government national mortgage association; (g) repurchase
agreements for securities described in (c) or (f); (h) investment agreements or other obligations of a financial
institution the obligations of which at the time of investment are rated in either of the three highest rating
categories by Moody’s or Standard & Poor’s; (i) investments and shares or units of a money market fund
or trust, the portfolio of which is comprised entirely of securities described in (c) or (f); (j) receipts
evidencing ownership interests in securities or portions thereof described in (¢) or (f); (k) municipal bonds
or other obligations issued by any municipality of the State as defined in K.S.A. 10-1101 which are general
obligations of the municipality issuing the same; or (1) bonds of any municipality of the State as defined in

6



K.S.A. 10-1101 which have been refunded in advance of their maturity and are fully secured as to payment
of principal and interest thereon by deposit in trust, under escrow agreement with a bank, of securities
described in (¢) or (f), all as may be further restricted or modified by amendments to applicable State law.

“Person” means any natural person, corporation, partnership, joint venture, association, firm, joint-
stock company, trust, unincorporated organization, or government or any agency or political subdivision
thereof or other public body.

“Purchase Price” means the principal amount of the Notes plus accrued interest to the date of
delivery, plus a bid premium of $[ , less an underwriting discount of $ |

“Purchaser” means [ , , ], the original purchaser of the
Notes, and any successors and assigns.

“Rating Agency” means any company, agency or entity that provides financial ratings for the Notes.

“Record Dates™ for the interest payable on any Interest Payment Date means the fifteenth day
(whether or not a Business Day) of the calendar month next preceding such Interest Payment Date.

“Redemption Date” when used with respect to any Note to be redeemed means the date fixed for
the redemption of such Note pursuant to the terms of this Note Resolution.

“Redemption Price” when used with respect to any Note to be redeemed means the price at which
such Note is to be redeemed pursuant to the terms of this Note Resolution, including the applicable
redemption premium, if any, but excluding installments of interest whose Stated Maturity is on or before
the Redemption Date.

“Replacement Notes” means Notes issued to the Beneficial Owners of the Notes in accordance
with Article IT hereof.

“SEC Rule” means Rule 15¢2-12 adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

“Securities Depository” means, initially, DTC, and its successors and assigns.
P ry g

“Special Record Date” means the date fixed by the Paying Agent pursuant to Article II hereof for
the payment of Defaulted Interest.

“Standard & Poor’s” or “S&P” means S&P Global Ratings, a division of S&P Global Inc., a
corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of New York, and its successors and assigns,
and, if such corporation shall be dissolved or liquidated or shall no longer perform the functions of a securities
rating agency, Standard & Poor’s shall be deemed to refer to any other nationally recognized securities rating
agency designated by the Issuer.

“State” means the state of Kansas.

“State Treasurer” means the duly elected Treasurer or, in the Treasurer’s absence, the duly
appointed Deputy Treasurer or acting Treasurer of the State.



“Stated Maturity” when used with respect to any Note or any installment of interest thereon means
the date specified in such Note and this Note Resolution as the fixed date on which the principal of such
Note or such installment of interest is due and payable.

“Substitute Improvements” means the substitute or additional improvements of the Issuer
described in Article V hereof.

“Treasurer” means the duly appointed and/or elected Treasurer of the Issuer or, in the Treasurer’s
absence, the duly appointed Deputy Treasurer or acting Treasurer of the Issuer.

“United States Government Obligations” means bonds, notes, certificates of indebtedness,
treasury bills or other securities constituting direct obligations of, or obligations the principal of and interest
on which are fully and unconditionally guaranteed as to full and timely payment by, the United States of
America, including evidences of a direct ownership interest in future interest or principal payment on
obligations issued by the United States of America (including the interest component of obligations of the
Resolution Funding Corporation), or securities which represent an undivided interest in such obligations,
which obligations are rated in the highest rating category by a nationally recognized rating service and such
obligations are held in a custodial account for the benefit of the Issuer.

ARTICLE I1
AUTHORIZATION AND DETAILS OF THE NOTES

Section 201.  Authorization of the Notes. There shall be issued and hereby are authorized and
directed to be issued the Taxable General Obligation Temporary Notes, Series 2020-1, of the Issuer in the
principal amount of $[Principal Amount], for the purpose of providing funds to: (a) pay the costs of the
Improvements; and (b) pay Costs of Issuance.

Section 202.  Description of the Notes. The Notes shall consist of fully registered notes in
Authorized Denominations, and shall be numbered in such manner as the Note Registrar shall determine.
All of the Notes shall be dated as of the Dated Date, shall become due in the amounts, on the Stated Maturity,
subject to redemption and payment prior to the Stated Maturity as provided in Article IIT hereof and shall
bear interest at the rates per annum as follows:

Stated Maturity Principal Annual Rate
September 1 Amount of Interest
2024 $[ ] [ 1%

The Notes shall bear interest at the above specified rates (computed on the basis of a 360-day year
of twelve 30-day months) from the later of the Dated Date or the most recent Interest Payment Date to
which interest has been paid on the Interest Payment Dates in the manner set forth in Section 204 hereof.

Each of the Notes, as originally issued or issued upon transfer, exchange or substitution, shall be
printed in accordance with the format required by the Attorney General of the State and shall be
substantially in the form attached hereto as EXHIBIT A or as may be required by the Attorney General
pursuant to the Notice of Systems of Registration for Kansas Municipal Bonds, 2 Kan. Reg. 921 (1983), in
accordance with the Kansas Bond Registration Law, K.S.A. 10-620 et seq.



Section 203. Designation of Paying Agent and Note Registrar. The State Treasurer is hereby
designated as the Paying Agent for the payment of principal of and interest on the Note and Note Registrar
with respect to the registration, transfer and exchange of Notes. The Mayor of the Issuer is hereby
authorized and empowered to execute on behalf of the Issuer an agreement with the Note Registrar and
Paying Agent for the Notes

The Issuer will at all times maintain a Paying Agent and Note Registrar meeting the qualifications
herein described for the performance of the duties hereunder. The Issuer reserves the right to appoint a
successor Paying Agent or Note Registrar by (a) filing with the Paying Agent or Note Registrar then
performing such function a certified copy of the proceedings giving notice of the termination of such Paying
Agent or Note Registrar and appointing a successor, and (b) causing notice of appointment of the successor
Paying Agent and Note Registrar to be given by first class mail to each Owner. No resignation or removal
of the Paying Agent or Note Registrar shall become effective until a successor has been appointed and has
accepted the duties of Paying Agent or Note Registrar.

Every Paying Agent or Note Registrar appointed hereunder shall at all times meet the requirements
of K.S.A. 10-501 et seq. and K.S.A. 10-620 et seq., respectively.

Section 204. Method and Place of Payment of the Notes. The principal of, or Redemption
Price, if any, and interest on the Notes shall be payable in any coin or currency which, on the respective
dates of payment thereof, is legal tender for the payment of public and private debts.

The principal or Redemption Price of each Note shall be paid at Maturity to the Person in whose
name such Note is registered on the Note Register at the Maturity thereof, upon presentation and surrender
of such Note at the principal office of the Paying Agent. The interest payable on each Note on any Interest
Payment Date shall be paid to the Owner of such Note as shown on the Note Register at the close of business
on the Record Date for such interest (a) by check or draft mailed by the Paying Agent to the address of such
Owner shown on the Note Register or at such other address as is furnished to the Paying Agent in writing
by such Owner; or (b) in the case of an interest payment to Cede & Co. or any Owner of $500,000 or more
in aggregate principal amount of Notes, by electronic transfer to such Owner upon written notice given to
the Note Registrar by such Owner, not less than 15 days prior to the Record Date for such interest,
containing the electronic transfer instructions including the bank, ABA routing number and account number
to which such Owner wishes to have such transfer directed.

Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section, any Defaulted Interest with respect to
any Note shall cease to be payable to the Owner of such Note on the relevant Record Date and shall be
payable to the Owner in whose name such Note is registered at the close of business on the Special Record
Date for the payment of such Defaulted Interest, which Special Record Date shall be fixed as hereinafter
specified in this paragraph. The Issuer shall notify the Paying Agent in writing of the amount of Defaulted
Interest proposed to be paid on each Note and the date of the proposed payment (which date shall be at least
45 days after receipt of such notice by the Paying Agent) and shall deposit with the Paying Agent at the
time of such notice an amount of money equal to the aggregate amount proposed to be paid in respect of
such Defaulted Interest or shall make arrangements satisfactory to the Paying Agent for such deposit prior
to the date of the proposed payment. Following receipt of such funds the Paying Agent shall fix a Special
Record Date for the payment of such Defaulted Interest which shall be not more than 15 nor less than 10
days prior to the date of the proposed payment. The Paying Agent shall promptly notify the Issuer of such
Special Record Date and, in the name and at the expense of the Issuer, shall cause notice of the proposed
payment of such Defaulted Interest and the Special Record Date therefor to be mailed, by first class mail,
postage prepaid, to each Owner of a Note entitled to such notice at the address of such Owner as it appears
on the Note Register not less than 10 days prior to such Special Record Date.



The Paying Agent shall keep a record of payment of principal and Redemption Price of and interest
on all Notes and at least annually shall forward a copy or summary of such records to the Issuer.

Section 205. Payments Due on Saturdays, Sundays and Holidays. In any case where a Note
Payment Date is not a Business Day, then payment of principal, Redemption Price or interest need not be
made on such Note Payment Date but may be made on the next succeeding Business Day with the same
force and effect as if made on such Note Payment Date, and no interest shall accrue for the period afier
such Note Payment Date.

Section 206.  Registration, Transfer and Exchange of Notes. The Issuer covenants that, as
long as any of the Notes remain Outstanding, it will cause the Note Register to be kept at the office of the
Note Registrar as herein provided. Each Note when issued shall be registered in the name of the Owner
thereof on the Note Register.

Notes may be transferred and exchanged only on the Note Register as provided in this Section.
Upon surrender of any Note at the principal office of the Note Registrar, the Note Registrar shall transfer
or exchange such Note for a new Note or Notes in any Authorized Denomination of the same Stated
Maturity and in the same aggregate principal amount as the Note that was presented for transfer or
exchange.

Notes presented for transfer or exchange shall be accompanied by a written instrument or
instruments of transfer or authorization for exchange, in a form and with guarantee of signature satisfactory
to the Note Registrar, duly executed by the Owner thereof or by the Owner’s duly authorized agent.

In all cases in which the privilege of transferring or exchanging Notes is exercised, the Note
Registrar shall authenticate and deliver Notes in accordance with the provisions of this Note Resolution.
The Issuer shall pay the fees and expenses of the Note Registrar for the registration, transfer and exchange
of Notes provided for by this Note Resolution and the cost of printing a reasonable supply of registered
note blanks. Any additional costs or fees that might be incurred in the secondary market, other than fees of
the Note Registrar, are the responsibility of the Owners of the Notes. In the event any Owner fails to provide
a correct taxpayer identification number to the Paying Agent, the Paying Agent may make a charge against
such Owner sufficient to pay any governmental charge required to be paid as a result of such failure. In
compliance with Section 3406 of the Code, such amount may be deducted by the Paying Agent from
amounts otherwise payable to such Owner hereunder or under the Notes.

The Issuer and the Note Registrar shall not be required (a) to register the transfer or exchange of
any Note that has been called for redemption after notice of such redemption has been mailed by the Paying
Agent pursuant to Article IIT hereof and during the period of 15 days next preceding the date of mailing of
such notice of redemption; or (b) to register the transfer or exchange of any Note during a period beginning
at the opening of business on the day after receiving written notice from the Issuer of its intent to pay
Defaulted Interest and ending at the close of business on the date fixed for the payment of Defaulted Interest
pursuant to this Article I1.

The Issuer and the Paying Agent may deem and treat the Person in whose name any Note is
registered on the Note Register as the absolute Owner of such Note, whether such Note is overdue or not,
for the purpose of receiving payment of, or on account of, the principal or Redemption Price of and interest
on said Note and for all other purposes. All payments so made to any such Owner or upon the Owner’s
order shall be valid and effective to satisfy and discharge the liability upon such Note to the extent of the
sum or sums so paid, and neither the Issuer nor the Paying Agent shall be affected by any notice to the
contrary.

10



At reasonable times and under reasonable regulations established by the Note Registrar, the Note
Register may be inspected and copied by the Owners (or a designated representative thereof) of 10% or
more in principal amount of the Notes then Outstanding or any designated representative of such Owners
whose authority is evidenced to the satisfaction of the Note Registrar.

Section 207.  Execution, Registration, Authentication and Delivery of Notes. Each of the
Notes, including any Notes issued in exchange or as substitutions for the Notes initially delivered, shall be
executed for and on behalf of the Issuer by the manual or facsimile signature of the Mayor, attested by the
manual or facsimile signature of the Clerk and the seal of the Issuer shall be affixed thereto or imprinted
thereon. The Mayor and Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to prepare and execute the Notes in the
manner herein specified, and to cause the Notes to be registered in the office of the Clerk, which registration
shall be evidenced by the manual or facsimile signature of the Clerk with the seal of the Issuer affixed
thereto or imprinted thereon. The Notes shall also be registered in the office of the State Treasurer, which
registration shall be evidenced by the manual or facsimile signature of the State Treasurer with the seal of
the State Treasurer affixed thereto or imprinted thereon. The Notes shall be countersigned by the manual
or facsimile signature of the Clerk and the seal of the Issuer shall be affixed or imprinted adjacent thereto
following registration of the Notes by the Treasurer of the State of Kansas. In case any officer whose
signature appears on any Notes ceases to be such officer before the delivery of such Notes, such signature
shall nevertheless be valid and sufficient for all purposes, as if such person had remained in office until
delivery. Any Note may be signed by such persons who at the actual time of the execution of such Note
are the proper officers to sign such Note although at the date of such Note such persons may not have been
such officers.

The Mayor and Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to prepare and execute the Notes as herein
specified, and when duly executed, to deliver the Notes to the Note Registrar for authentication.

The Notes shall have endorsed thereon a certificate of authentication substantially in the form
attached hereto as EXHIBIT A hereof, which shall be manually executed by an authorized officer or
employee of the Note Registrar, but it shall not be necessary that the same officer or employee sign the
certificate of authentication on all of the Notes that may be issued hereunder at any one time. No Note shall
be entitled to any security or benefit under this Note Resolution or be valid or obligatory for any purpose
unless and until such certificate of authentication has been duly executed by the Note Registrar. Such
executed certificate of authentication upon any Note shall be conclusive evidence that such Note has been
duly authenticated and delivered under this Note Resolution. Upon authentication, the Note Registrar shall
deliver the Notes to the Purchaser upon instructions of the Issuer or its representative.

Section 208. Mutilated, Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Notes. If (a) any mutilated Note is
surrendered to the Note Registrar or the Note Registrar receives evidence to its satisfaction of the
destruction, loss or theft of any Note, and (b) there is delivered to the Issuer and the Note Registrar such
security or indemnity as may be required by each of them, then, in the absence of notice to the Issuer or the
Note Registrar that such Note has been acquired by a bona fide purchaser, the Issuer shall execute and,
upon the Issuer’s request, the Note Registrar shall authenticate and deliver, in exchange for or in lieu of any
such mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolen Note, a new Note of the same Stated Maturity and of like tenor
and principal amount.

If any such mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolen Note has become or is about to become due and
payable, the Issuer, in its discretion, may pay such Note instead of issuing a new Note.

Upon the issuance of any new Note under this Section, the Issuer may require the payment by the

Owner of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge that may be imposed in relation
thereto and any other expenses (including the fees and expenses of the Paying Agent) connected therewith.

11



Every new Note issued pursuant to this Section shall constitute a replacement of the prior obligation
of the Issuer, and shall be entitled to all the benefits of this Note Resolution equally and ratably with all
other Outstanding Notes.

Section 209.  Cancellation and Destruction of Notes Upon Payment. All Notes that have been
paid or redeemed or that otherwise have been surrendered to the Paying Agent, either at or before Maturity,
shall be cancelled by the Paying Agent immediately upon the payment, redemption and surrender thereof
to the Paying Agent and subsequently destroyed in accordance with the customary practices of the Paying
Agent. The Paying Agent shall execute a certificate in duplicate describing the Notes so cancelled and
destroyed and shall file an executed counterpart of such certificate with the Issuer.

Section 210. Book-Entry Notes; Securities Depository. The Issuer and Paying Agent have
entered into a DTC Representation Letter with DTC. The Notes shall initially be registered to Cede & Co.,
the nominee for the Securities Depository, and no Beneficial Owner will receive certificates representing
their respective interests in the Notes, except in the event the Note Registrar issues Replacement Notes as
provided in this Section. It is anticipated that during the term of the Notes, the Securities Depository will
make book-entry transfers among its Participants and receive and transmit payment of principal of,
premium, if any, and interest on, the Notes to the Participants until and unless the Note Registrar
authenticates and delivers Replacement Notes to the Beneficial Owners as described in the following

paragraph.

The Issuer may decide, subject to the requirements of the Operational Arrangements of DTC (or a
successor Securities Depository), and the following provisions of this section to discontinue use of the
system of book-entry transfers through DTC (or a successor Securities Depository):

(@) If the Issuer determines (1) that the Securities Depository is unable to properly discharge
its responsibilities, or (2) that the Securities Depository is no longer qualified to act as a securities depository
and registered clearing agency under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or (3) that the
continuation of a book-entry system to the exclusion of any Notes being issued to any Owner other than
Cede & Co. is no longer in the best interests of the Beneficial Owners of the Notes; or

)] if the Note Registrar receives written notice from Participants having interests in not less
than 50% of the Notes Outstanding, as shown on the records of the Securities Depository (and certified to
such effect by the Securities Depository), that the continuation of a book-entry system to the exclusion of
any Notes being issued to any Owner other than Cede & Co. is no longer in the best interests of the
Beneficial Owners of the Notes, then the Note Registrar shall notify the Owners of such determination or
such notice and of the availability of certificates to Owners requesting the same, and the Note Registrar
shall register in the name of and authenticate and deliver Replacement Notes to the Beneficial Owners or
their nominees in principal amounts representing the interest of each, making such adjustments as it may
find necessary or appropriate as to accrued interest and previous calls for redemption; provided, that in the
case of a determination under (a)(1) or (a)(2) of this paragraph, the Issuer, with the consent of the Note
Registrar, may select a successor securities depository in accordance with the following paragraph to effect
book-entry transfers.

In such event, all references to the Securities Depository herein shall relate to the period of time
when the Securities Depository has possession of at least one Note. Upon the issuance of Replacement
Notes, all references herein to obligations imposed upon or to be performed by the Securities Depository
shall be deemed to be imposed upon and performed by the Note Registrar, to the extent applicable with
respect to such Replacement Notes. If the Securities Depository resigns and the Issuer, the Note Registrar
or Owners are unable to locate a qualified successor of the Securities Depository in accordance with the

12



following paragraph, then the Note Registrar shall authenticate and cause delivery of Replacement Notes
to Owners, as provided herein. The Note Registrar may rely on information from the Securities Depository
and its Participants as to the names of the Beneficial Owners of the Notes. The cost of printing, registration,
authentication, and delivery of Replacement Notes shall be paid for by the Issuer.

In the event the Securities Depository resigns, is unable to properly discharge its responsibilities,
or is no longer qualified to act as a securities depository and registered clearing agency under the Securities
and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the Issuer may appoint a successor Securities Depository provided
the Note Registrar receives written evidence satisfactory to the Note Registrar with respect to the ability of
the successor Securities Depository to discharge its responsibilities. Any such successor Securities
Depository shall be a securities depository which is a registered clearing agency under the Securities and
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or other applicable statute or regulation that operates a securities
depository upon reasonable and customary terms. The Note Registrar upon its receipt of a Note or Notes
for cancellation shall cause the delivery of Notes to the successor Securities Depository in appropriate
denominations and form as provided herein.

Section 211. Nonpresentment of Notes. If any Note is not presented for payment when the
principal thereof becomes due at Maturity, if funds sufficient to pay such Note have been made available to
the Paying Agent all liability of the Issuer to the Owner thereof for the payment of such Note shall forthwith
cease, determine and be completely discharged, and thereupon it shall be the duty of the Paying Agent to
hold such funds, without liability for interest thereon, for the benefit of the Owner of such Note, who shall
thereafter be restricted exclusively to such funds for any claim of whatever nature on his part under this
Note Resolution or on, or with respect to, said Note. If any Note is not presented for payment within four
(4) years following the date when such Note becomes due at Maturity, the Paying Agent shall repay, without
liability for interest thereon, to the Issuer the funds theretofore held by it for payment of such Note, and
such Note shall, subject to the defense of any applicable statute of limitation, thereafter be an unsecured
obligation of the Issuer, and the Owner thereof shall be entitled to look only to the Issuer for payment, and
then only to the extent of the amount so repaid to it by the Paying Agent, and the Issuer shall not be liable
for any interest thereon and shall not be regarded as a trustee of such money.

Section 212, Preliminary and Final Official Statement. The Preliminary Official Statement
dated September 3, 2020, is hereby ratified and approved.

The Official Statement is hereby authorized to be prepared by supplementing, amending and
completing the Preliminary Official Statement, with such changes and additions thereto as are necessary to
conform to and describe the transaction. The Mayor or chief financial officer of the Issuer are hereby
authorized to execute the final Official Statement as so supplemented, amended and completed, and the use
and public distribution of the final Official Statement by the Purchaser in connection with the reoffering of
the Notes is hereby authorized. The proper officials of the Issuer are hereby authorized to execute and
deliver a certificate pertaining to such Official Statement as prescribed therein, dated as of the Issue Date.

The Issuer agrees to provide to the Purchaser within seven business days of the date of the sale of
Notes sufficient copies of the final Official Statement to enable the Purchaser to comply with the
requirements of the SEC Rule and Rule G-32 of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board.

Section 213.  Sale of the Notes. The sale of the Notes to the Purchaser is hereby approved and
confirmed. The Mayor and Clerk are hereby authorized to execute the official bid form submitted by the
Purchaser. Delivery of the Notes shall be made to the Purchaser on the Issue Date (which shall be as soon
as practicable after the adoption of this Note Resolution), upon payment of the Purchase Price.

13



ARTICLE I
REDEMPTION OF NOTES
Section 301. Redemption by Issuer.

Optional Redemption. At the option of the Issuer, the Notes will be subject to redemption and
payment prior to maturity on September 1, 2021, and thereafter, as a whole or in part (selection of the
amount of Notes to be redeemed to be determined by the Issuer in such equitable manner as it may
determine) at any time, at the redemption price of 100% (expressed as a percentage of the principal amount),
plus accrued interest thereon to the Redemption Date.

Section 302.  Selection of Notes to be Redeemed. Notes shall be redeemed only in an
Authorized Denomination. When less than all of the Notes are to be redeemed and paid prior to their Stated
Maturity, such Notes shall be redeemed in such manner as the Issuer shall determine. Notes of less than a
full Stated Maturity shall be selected by the Note Registrar in a minimum Authorized Denomination of
principal amount in such equitable manner as the Note Registrar may determine.

In the case of a partial redemption of Notes by lot when Notes of denominations greater than a
minimum Authorized Denomination are then Outstanding, then for all purposes in connection with such
redemption each minimum Authorized Denomination of face value shall be treated as though it were a
separate Note of the denomination of a minimum Authorized Denomination. If it is determined that one or
more, but not all, of a minimum Authorized Denomination of face value represented by any Note is selected
for redemption, then upon notice of intention to redeem a minimum Authorized Denomination, the Owner
or the Owner's duly authorized agent shall forthwith present and surrender such Note to the Note Registrar:
(1) for payment of the Redemption Price and interest to the Redemption Date of a minimum Authorized
Denomination of face value called for redemption, and (2) for exchange, without charge to the Owner
thereof, for a new Note or Notes of the aggregate principal amount of the unredeemed portion of the
principal amount of such Note. If the Owner of any such Note fails to present such Note to the Paying
Agent for payment and exchange as aforesaid, such Note shall, nevertheless, become due and payable on
the redemption date to the extent of a minimum Authorized Denomination of face value called for
redemption (and to that extent only).

Section 303. Notice and Effect of Call for Redemption. In the event the Issuer desires to call
the Notes for redemption prior to maturity, written notice of such intent shall be provided to the Note
Registrar in accordance with K.S.A. 10-129, as amended, not less than 45 days prior to the Redemption
Date. The Note Registrar shall call Notes for redemption and payment and shall give notice of such
redemption as herein provided upon receipt by the Note Registrar at least 45 days prior to the Redemption
Date of written instructions of the Issuer specifying the principal amount, Stated Maturities, Redemption
Date and Redemption Prices of the Notes to be called for redemption. The Paying Agent may in its
discretion waive such notice period so long as the notice requirements set forth in this Section are met.

Unless waived by any Owner of Notes to be redeemed, if the Issuer shall call any Notes for
redemption and payment prior to the Stated Maturity thereof, the Issuer shall give written notice of its
intention to call and pay said Notes to the Note Registrar and the State Treasurer. In addition, the Issuer
shall cause the Note Registrar to give written notice of redemption to the Owners of said Notes. Each of
said written notices shall be deposited in the United States first class mail not less than 30 days prior to the
Redemption Date.

All official notices of redemption shall be dated and shall contain the following information:

14



(a) the Redemption Date;
(b) the Redemption Price;

(© if less than all Outstanding Notes are to be redeemed, the identification (and, in the case of
partial redemption of any Notes, the respective principal amounts) of the Notes to be redeemed;

(d)  a statement that on the Redemption Date the Redemption Price will become due and
payable upon each such Note or portion thereof called for redemption and that interest thereon shall cease
to accrue from and after the Redemption Date; and

(e) the place where such Notes are to be surrendered for payment of the Redemption Price,
which shall be the principal office of the Paying Agent.

The failure of any Owner to receive notice given as heretofore provided or an immaterial defect
therein shall not invalidate any redemption.

Prior to any Redemption Date, the Issuer shall deposit with the Paying Agent an amount of money
sufficient to pay the Redemption Price of all the Notes or portions of Notes that are to be redeemed on such
Redemption Date.

For so long as the Securities Depository is effecting book-entry transfers of the Notes, the Note
Registrar shall provide the notices specified in this Section to the Securities Depository. It is expected that
the Securities Depository shall, in turn, notify its Participants and that the Participants, in turn, will notify
or cause to be notified the Beneficial Owners. Any failure on the part of the Securities Depository or a
Participant, or failure on the part of a nominee of a Beneficial Owner of a Note (having been mailed notice
from the Note Registrar, the Securities Depository, a Participant or otherwise) to notify the Beneficial
Owner of the Note so affected, shall not affect the validity of the redemption of such Note.

Official notice of redemption having been given as aforesaid, the Notes or portions of Notes to be
redeemed shall become due and payable on the Redemption Date, at the Redemption Price therein specified,
and from and after the Redemption Date (unless the Issuer defaults in the payment of the Redemption Price)
such Notes or portion of Notes shall cease to bear interest. Upon surrender of such Notes for redemption
in accordance with such notice, the Redemption Price of such Notes shall be paid by the Paying Agent.
Installments of interest due on or prior to the Redemption Date shall be payable as herein provided for
payment of interest. Upon surrender for any partial redemption of any Note, there shall be prepared for the
Owner a new Note or Notes of the same Stated Maturity in the amount of the unpaid principal as provided
herein. All Notes that have been surrendered for redemption shall be cancelled and destroyed by the Paying
Agent as provided herein and shall not be reissued.

In addition to the foregoing notice, the Issuer shall provide such notices of redemption as are
required by the Disclosure Undertaking. Further notice may be given by the Issuer or the Note Registrar
on behalf of the Issuer as set out below, but no defect in said further notice nor any failure to give all or any
portion of such further notice shall in any manner defeat the effectiveness of a call for redemption if official
notice thereof is given as above prescribed:

(a) Each further notice of redemption given hereunder shall contain the information required
above for an official notice of redemption plus (1) the CUSIP numbers of all Notes being redeemed; (2) the
date of issue of the Notes as originally issued; (3) the rate of interest borne by each Note being redeemed;
(4) the maturity date of each Note being redeemed; and (5) any other descriptive information needed to

15



identify accurately the Notes being redeemed.

(b) Each further notice of redemption shall be sent at least one day before the mailing of notice
to Owners by first class, registered or certified mail or overnight delivery, as determined by the Note
Registrar, to all registered securities depositories then in the business of holding substantial amounts of
obligations of types comprising the Notes and to one or more national information services that disseminate
notices of redemption of obligations such as the Notes.

(c) Each check or other transfer of funds issued for the payment of the Redemption Price of
Notes being redeemed shall bear or have enclosed the CUSIP number of the Notes being redeemed with
the proceeds of such check or other transfer.

The Paying Agent is also directed to comply with any mandatory standards then in effect for
processing redemptions of municipal securities established by the State or the Securities and Exchange
Commission. Failure to comply with such standards shall not affect or invalidate the redemption of any
Note.

ARTICLE 1V
SECURITY FOR NOTES

Section 401.  Security for the Notes. The Notes shall be general obligations of the Issuer payable
as to both principal and interest from general obligation bonds of the Issuer, and if not so paid, from ad valorem
taxes which may be levied without limitation as to rate or amount upon all the taxable tangible property, real
and personal, within the territorial limits of the Issuer. The full faith, credit and resources of the Issuer are
hereby irrevocably pledged for the prompt payment of the principal of and interest on the Notes as the same
become due.

Section 402. Levy and Collection of Annual Tax. The governing body of the Issuer shall
annually make provision for the payment of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Notes as the
same become due, if necessary, by levying and collecting the necessary taxes upon all of the taxable tangible
property within the Issuer in the manner provided by law.

The taxes referred to above shall be extended upon the tax rolls and shall be levied and collected at
the same time and in the same manner as the other ad valorem taxes of the Issuer are levied and collected.
The proceeds derived from said taxes shall be deposited in the Bond and Interest Fund, shall be kept separate
and apart from all other funds of the Issuer shall thereafter be deposited in the Debt Service Account and
shall be used solely for the payment of the principal of and interest on the Notes as and when the same
become due, and the fees and expenses of the Paying Agent.

If at any time said taxes are not collected in time to pay the principal of or interest on the Notes
when due, the Treasurer is hereby authorized and directed to pay said principal or interest out of the general
funds of the Issuer and to reimburse said general funds for money so expended when said taxes are
collected.

16



ARTICLE V

ESTABLISHMENT OF FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS
DEPOSIT AND APPLICATION OF NOTE PROCEEDS

Section 501.  Creation of Funds and Accounts. Simultaneously with the issuance of the Notes,
there shall be created within the Treasury of the Issuer the following Funds and Accounts:

(a) Improvement Fund for Taxable General Obligation Temporary Notes, Series 2020-1; and
(b) Debt Service Account for Taxable General Obligation Temporary Notes, Series 2020-1.

The Funds and Accounts established herein shall be administered in accordance with the provisions
of this Note Resolution so long as the Notes are Outstanding.

Section 502. Deposit of Note Proceeds. The net proceeds received from the sale of the Notes
shall be deposited simultaneously with the delivery of the Notes as follows:

(a) All accrued interest and excess proceeds, if any, received from the sale of the Notes shall
be deposited in the Debt Service Account.

(b) The remaining balance of the proceeds derived from the sale of the Notes shall be deposited
in the Improvement Fund.

Section 503.  Application of Moneys in the Improvement Fund. Moneys in the Improvement
Fund shall be used for the sole purpose of: (a) paying the costs of the Improvements, in accordance with
the plans and specifications therefor approved by the governing body of the Issuer and on file in the office
of the Clerk, including any alterations in or amendments to said plans and specifications deemed advisable
and approved by the governing body of the Issuer; (b) paying interest on the Notes during construction of
the Improvements; and (c) paying Costs of Issuance.

Upon completion of the Improvements, any surplus remaining in the Improvement Fund shall be
deposited in the Debt Service Account.

Section 504.  Substitution of Improvements; Reallocation of Proceeds.

(a) The Issuer may elect for any reason to substitute or add other public improvements to be
financed with proceeds of the Notes provided the following conditions are met: (1) the Substitute
Improvement and the issuance of general obligation bonds to pay the cost of the Substitute Improvement
has been duly authorized by the governing body of the Issuer in accordance with the laws of the State; (2)
a resolution authorizing the use of the proceeds of the Notes to pay the Financeable Costs of the Substitute
Improvement has been duly adopted by the governing body of the Issuer pursuant to this Section, (3) the
Attorney General of the State has approved the amendment made by such resolution to the transcript of
proceedings for the Notes to include the Substitute Improvements; and (4) the use of the proceeds of the
Notes to pay the Financeable Cost of the Substitute Improvement will not adversely affect the tax-exempt
status of the Notes under State or federal law.

)] The Issuer may reallocate expenditure of Note proceeds among all Improvements financed

by the Notes; provided the following conditions are met: (1) the reallocation is approved by the governing
body of the Issuer; (2) the reallocation shall not cause the proceeds of the Notes allocated to any

17



Improvement to exceed the Financeable Costs of the Improvement; and (3) the reallocation will not
adversely affect the tax-exempt status of the Notes under State or federal law.

Section 505.  Application of Moneys in Debt Service Account. All amounts paid and credited
to the Debt Service Account shall be expended and used by the Issuer for the sole purpose of paying the
principal or Redemption Price of and interest on the Notes as and when the same become due and the usual
and customary fees and expenses of the Note Registrar and Paying Agent. The Treasurer is authorized and
directed to withdraw from the Debt Service Account sums sufficient to pay both principal or Redemption
Price of and interest on the Notes and the fees and expenses of the Note Registrar and Paying Agent as and
when the same become due, and to forward such sums to the Paying Agent, if other than the Issuer, in a
manner which ensures that the Paying Agent will receive immediately available funds in such amounts on
or before the Business Day immediately preceding the dates when such principal, interest and fees of the
Note Registrar and Paying Agent will become due. If, through the lapse of time or otherwise, the Owners
of Notes are no longer entitled to enforce payment of the Notes or the interest thereon, the Paying Agent
shall return said funds to the Issuer. All moneys deposited with the Paying Agent shall be deemed to be
deposited in accordance with and subject to all of the provisions contained in this Note Resolution and shall
be held in trust by the Paying Agent for the benefit of the Owners of the Notes entitled to payment from
such moneys.

Any moneys or investments remaining in the Debt Service Account after the retirement of the
indebtedness for which the Notes were issued shall be transferred and paid into the Bond and Interest Fund.

Section 506. Deposits and Investment of Moneys. Moneys in each of the Funds and Accounts
shall be deposited in accordance with laws of the State, in a bank, savings and loan association or savings
bank organized under the laws of the State, any other state or the United States: (a) which has a main or
branch office located in the Issuer; or (b) if no such entity has a main or branch office located in the Issuer,
with such an entity that has a main or branch office located in the county or counties in which the Issuer is
located. All such depositaries shall be members of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, or otherwise
as permitted by State law. All such deposits shall be invested in Permitted Investments as set forth in this
Article or shall be adequately secured as provided by the laws of the State. All moneys held in the Funds
and Accounts shall be kept separate and apart from all other funds of the Issuer so that there shall be no
commingling with any other funds of the Issuer.

Moneys held in any Fund or Account may be invested in accordance with this Note Resolution in
Permitted Investments; provided, however, that no such investment shall be made for a period extending
longer than to the date when the moneys invested may be needed for the purpose for which such fund was
created. All earnings on any investments held in any Fund or Account shall accrue to and become a part of
such Fund or Account; provided that, during the period of construction of the Improvements, earnings on
the investment of such funds may be credited to the Debt Service Account.

ARTICLE VI
DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

Section 601. Remedies. The provisions of the Note Resolution, including the covenants and
agreements herein contained, shall constitute a contract between the Issuer and the Owners of the Notes. If
an Event of Default occurs and shall be continuing, the Owner or Owners of not less than 10% in principal
amount of the Notes at the time Outstanding shall have the right for the equal benefit and protection of all
Owners of Notes similarly situated:

18



(a) by mandamus or other suit, action or proceedings at law or in equity to enforce the rights
of such Owner or Owners against the Issuer and its officers, agents and employees, and to require and
compel duties and obligations required by the provisions of the Note Resolution or by the Constitution and
laws of the State;

(b) by suit, action or other proceedings in equity or at law to require the Issuer, its officers,
agents and employees to account as if they were the trustees of an express trust; and

(c) by suit, action or other proceedings in equity or at law to enjoin any acts or things which
may be unlawful or in violation of the rights of the Owners of the Notes.

Section 602. Limitation on Rights of Owners. The covenants and agreements of the Issuer
contained herein and in the Notes shall be for the equal benefit, protection, and security of the Owners of
any or all of the Notes, all of which Notes shall be of equal rank and without preference or priority of one
Note over any other Note in the application of the funds herein pledged to the payment of the principal of
and the interest on the Notes, or otherwise, except as to rate of interest, date of maturity and right of prior
redemption as provided in this Note Resolution. No one or more Owners secured hereby shall have any
right in any manner whatever by his or their action to affect, disturb or prejudice the security granted and
provided for herein, or to enforce any right hereunder, except in the manner herein provided, and all
proceedings at law or in equity shall be instituted, had and maintained for the equal benefit of all
Outstanding Notes.

Section 603. Remedies Cumulative. No remedy conferred herein upon the Owners is intended
to be exclusive of any other remedy, but each such remedy shall be cumulative and in addition to every
other remedy and may be exercised without exhausting and without regard to any other remedy conferred
herein. No waiver of any default or breach of duty or contract by the Owner of any Note shall extend to or
affect any subsequent default or breach of duty or contract or shall impair any rights or remedies thereon.
No delay or omission of any Owner to exercise any right or power accruing upon any default shall impair
any such right or power or shall be construed to be a waiver of any such default or acquiescence therein.
Every substantive right and every remedy conferred upon the Owners of the Notes by this Note Resolution
may be enforced and exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient. If action or
proceedings taken by any Owner on account of any default or to enforce any right or exercise any remedy
has been discontinued or abandoned for any reason, or shall have been determined adversely to such Owner,
then, and in every such case, the Issuer and the Owners of the Notes shall, subject to any determination in
such action or proceeding or applicable law of the State, be restored to their former positions and rights
hereunder, respectively, and all rights, remedies, powers and duties of the Owners shall continue as if no
such suit, action or other proceedings had been brought or taken.

ARTICLE VII
DEFEASANCE

Section 701.  Defeasance. When any or all of the Notes, redemption premium, if any, or
scheduled interest payments thereon have been paid and discharged, then the requirements contained in this
Note Resolution and the pledge of the Issuer’s faith and credit hereunder and all other rights granted hereby
shall terminate with respect to the Notes or scheduled interest payments thereon so paid and discharged.
Notes, redemption premium, if any, or scheduled interest payments thereon shall be deemed to have been
paid and discharged within the meaning of this Note Resolution if there has been deposited with the Paying
Agent, or other commercial bank or trust company located in the State and having full trust powers, at or
prior to the Stated Maturity or Redemption Date of said Notes or the interest payments thereon, in trust for

19



and irrevocably appropriated thereto, moneys and/or Defeasance Obligations which, together with the
interest to be earned on any such Defeasance Obligations, will be sufficient for the payment of the principal
of or Redemption Price of said Notes and/or interest accrued to the Stated Maturity or Redemption Date,
or if default in such payment has occurred on such date, then to the date of the tender of such payments. If
the amount to be so deposited is based on the Redemption Price of any Notes, no such satisfaction shall
occur until (a) the Issuer has elected to redeem such Notes, and (b) either notice of such redemption has
been given, or the Issuer has given irrevocable instructions, or shall have provided for an escrow agent to
give irrevocable instructions, to the Note Registrar to give such notice of redemption in compliance with
Article III. Any money and Defeasance Obligations that at any time shall be deposited with the Paying
Agent or other commercial bank or trust company by or on behalf of the Issuer, for the purpose of paying
and discharging any of the Notes, shall be and are hereby assigned, transferred and set over to the Paying
Agent or other bank or trust company in trust for the respective Owners of the Notes, and such moneys
shall be and are hereby irrevocably appropriated to the payment and discharge thereof. All money and
Defeasance Obligations deposited with the Paying Agent or such bank or trust company shall be deemed
to be deposited in accordance with and subject to all of the provisions of this Note Resolution.

ARTICLE VI
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS

Section 801.  Disclosure Requirements. The Issuer hereby covenants with the Purchaser and
the Beneficial Owners to provide and disseminate such information as is required by the SEC Rule and as
further set forth in the Disclosure Undertaking, the provisions of which are incorporated herein by reference.
Such covenant shall be for the benefit of and enforceable by the Purchaser and the Beneficial Owners.

Section 802. Failure to Comply with Continuing Disclosure Requirements. In the event the
Issuer fails to comply in a timely manner with its covenants contained in the preceding section, the
Purchaser and/or any Beneficial Owner may make demand for such compliance by written notice to the
Issuer. In the event the Issuer does not remedy such noncompliance within 10 days of receipt of such
written notice, the Purchaser or any Beneficial Owner may in its discretion, without notice or demand,
proceed to enforce compliance by a suit or suits in equity for the specific performance of such covenant or
agreement contained in the preceding section or for the enforcement of any other appropriate legal or
equitable remedy, as the Purchaser and/or any Beneficial Owner shall deem effectual to protect and enforce
any of the duties of the Issuer under such preceding section.

ARTICLE IX
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Section 901.  Annual Audit. Annually, promptly after the end of the Fiscal Year, the Issuer will
cause an audit to be made of the financial statements of the Issuer for the preceding Fiscal Year by an
Independent Accountant. Within 30 days after the completion of each such audit, a copy thereof shall be
filed in the office of the Clerk. Such audit shall at all times during the usual business hours be open to the
examination and inspection by any taxpayer, any Owner of any of the Notes, or by anyone acting for or on
behalf of such taxpayer or Owner. Upon payment of the reasonable cost of preparing and mailing the same,
a copy of any annual audit will, upon request, be sent to any Owner or prospective Owner. As soon as
possible after the completion of the annual audit, the governing body of the Issuer shall review such audit,
and if the audit discloses that proper provision has not been made for all of the requirements of this Note
Resolution, the Issuer shall promptly cure such deficiency.

20



Section 902. Amendments. The rights and duties of the Issuer and the Owners, and the terms
and provisions of the Notes or of this Note Resolution, may be amended or modified at any time in any
respect by resolution of the Issuer with the written consent of the Owners of not less than a majority in
principal amount of the Notes then Outstanding, such consent to be evidenced by an instrument or
instruments executed by such Owners and duly acknowledged or proved in the manner of a deed to be
recorded, and such instrument or instruments shall be filed with the Clerk, but no such modification or
alteration shall:

(a) extend the maturity of any payment of principal or interest due upon any Note;

(»)) effect a reduction in the amount which the Issuer is required to pay as principal of or interest
on any Note;

(c) permit preference or priority of any Note over any other Note; or

) reduce the percentage in principal amount of Notes required for the written consent to any
modification or alteration of the provisions of this Note Resolution.

Any provision of the Notes or of this Note Resolution may, however, be amended or modified by
resolution duly adopted by the governing body of the Issuer at any time in any legal respect with the written
consent of the Owners of all of the Notes at the time Outstanding.

Without notice to or the consent of any Owners, the Issuer may amend or supplement this Note
Resolution for the purpose of curing any formal defect, omission, inconsistency or ambiguity herein, to
grant to or confer upon the Owners any additional rights, remedies, powers or authority that may lawfully
be granted to or conferred upon the Owners, to more precisely identify the Improvements, to reallocate
proceeds of the Notes among Improvements, to provide for Substitute Improvements, to conform this Note
Resolution to the Code or future applicable federal law concerning tax-exempt obligations, or in connection
with any other change therein which is not materially adverse to the interests of the Owners.

Every amendment or modification of the provisions of the Notes or of this Note Resolution, to
which the written consent of the Owners is given, as above provided, shall be expressed in a resolution
adopted by the governing body of the Issuer amending or supplementing the provisions of this Note
Resolution and shali be deemed to be a part of this Note Resolution. A certified copy of every such
amendatory or supplemental resolution, if any, and a certified copy of this Note Resolution shall always be
kept on file in the office of the Clerk, and shall be made available for inspection by the Owner of any Note
or a prospective purchaser or owner of any Note authorized by this Note Resolution, and upon payment of
the reasonable cost of preparing the same, a certified copy of any such amendatory or supplemental
resolution or of this Note Resolution will be sent by the Clerk to any such Owner or prospective Owner.

Any and all modifications made in the manner hereinabove provided shall not become effective
until there has been filed with the Clerk a copy of the resolution of the Issuer hereinabove provided for,
duly certified, as well as proof of any required consent to such modification by the Owners of the Notes
then Outstanding. It shall not be necessary to note on any of the Qutstanding Notes any reference to such
amendment or modification.

The Issuer shall furnish to the Paying Agent a copy of any amendment to the Notes or this Note
Resolution which affects the duties or obligations of the Paying Agent under this Note Resolution.

21



Section 903. Notices, Consents and Other Instruments by Owners. Any notice, consent,
request, direction, approval or other instrument to be signed and executed by the Owners may be in any
number of concurrent writings of similar tenor and may be signed or executed by such Owners in person
or by agent appointed in writing. Proof of the execution of any such instrument or of the writing appointing
any such agent and of the ownership of Notes, if made in the following manner, shall be sufficient for any
of the purposes of this Note Resolution, and shall be conclusive in favor of the Issuer and the Paying Agent
with regard to any action taken, suffered or omitted under any such instrument, namely:

(a) The fact and date of the execution by any person of any such instrument may be proved by
a certificate of any officer in any jurisdiction who by law has power to take acknowledgments within such
jurisdiction that the person signing such instrument acknowledged before such officer the execution thereof,
or by affidavit of any witness to such execution.

® The fact of ownership of Notes, the amount or amounts, numbers and other identification
of Notes, and the date of holding the same shall be proved by the Note Register.

In determining whether the Owners of the requisite principal amount of Notes Outstanding have
given any request, demand, authorization, direction, notice, consent or waiver under this Note Resolution,
Notes owned by the Issuer shall be disregarded and deemed not to be Outstanding under this Note
Resolution, except that, in determining whether the Owners shall be protected in relying upon any such
request, demand, authorization, direction, notice, consent or waiver, only Notes which the Owners know to
be so owned shall be so disregarded. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Notes so owned which have been
pledged in good faith shall not be disregarded as aforesaid if the pledgee establishes to the satisfaction of
the Owners the pledgee’s right so to act with respect to such Notes and that the pledgee is not the Issuer.

Section 904.  Notices. Any notice, request, complaint, demand or other communication required
or desired to be given or filed under this Note Resolution shall be in writing, given to the Notice Representative
at the Notice Address and shall be deemed duly given or filed if the same shall be: (a) duly mailed by registered
or certified mail, postage prepaid; or (b) communicated via fax, with electronic or telephonic confirmation of
receipt. Copies of such notices shall also be given to the Paying Agent. The Issuer, the Paying Agent and the
Purchaser may from time to time designate, by notice given hereunder to the others of such parties, such other
address to which subsequent notices, certificates or other communications shall be sent.

All notices given by: (a) certified or registered mail as aforesaid shall be deemed duly given as of the
date they are so mailed; (b) fax as aforesaid shall be deemed duly given as of the date of confirmation of
receipt. If, because of the temporary or permanent suspension of regular mail service or for any other reason,
it is impossible or impractical to mail any notice in the manner herein provided, then such other form of notice
as shall be made with the approval of the Paying Agent shall constitute a sufficient notice.

Section 905.  Electronic Transactions. The issuance of the Notes and the transactions related
thereto and described herein may be conducted and documents may be stored by electronic means. All
closing documents, certificates, and related instruments may be executed by electronic
transmission. Copies, telecopies, facsimiles, electronic files and other reproductions of original executed
documents (or documents executed by electronic transmission) shall be deemed to be authentic and valid
counterparts of such documents for all purposes, including the filing of any claim, action or suit in the
appropriate court of law.

Section 906.  Further Authority. The officers and officials of the Issuer, including the Mayor
and Clerk, are hereby authorized and directed to execute all documents and take such actions as they may
deem necessary or advisable in order to carry out and perform the purposes of this Note Resolution and to
make ministerial alterations, changes or additions in the foregoing agreements, statements, instruments and

22



other documents herein approved, authorized and confirmed which they may approve, and the execution or
taking of such action shall be conclusive evidence of such necessity or advisability.

Section 907.  Severability. If any section or other part of this Note Resolution, whether large or
small, is for any reason held invalid, the invalidity thereof shall not affect the validity of the other provisions
of this Note Resolution.

Section 908.  Governing Law. This Note Resolution shall be governed exclusively by and
construed in accordance with the applicable laws of the State.

Section 909.  Effective Date. This Note Resolution shall take effect and be in full force from
and after its adoption by the governing body of the Issuer.

[BALANCE OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

23



ADOPTED by the governing body of the Issuer on September 17, 2020.

(SEAL)

Mayor

ATTEST:

Clerk

[BALANCE OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

(Signature Page to Note Resolution — Series 2020-I)



EXHIBIT A
(FORM OF NOTES)

REGISTERED REGISTERED
NUMBER $

Unless this certificate is presented by an authorized representative of The Depository
Trust Company, a New York Corporation (“DTC”), to the Issuer or its agent for
registration of transfer, exchange or payment, and any certificate issued is registered
in the name of Cede & Co. or in such other name as is requested by an authorized
representative of DTC (and any payment is made to Cede & Co. or to such other
entity as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC), ANY TRANSFER,
PLEDGE OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO
ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL inasmuch as the registered owner hereof, Cede &
Co., has an interest herein.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
STATE OF KANSAS
COUNTY OF LEAVENWORTH
CITY OF LANSING
TAXABLE GENERAL OBLIGATION TEMPORARY NOTE
SERIES 2020-1

Interest Maturity Dated CUSIP:
Rate: Date: September 1, 2024 Date: October 1, 2020

REGISTERED OWNER:
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT:

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS: That the City of Lansing, in the County of
Leavenworth, State of Kansas (the “Issuer™), for value received, hereby acknowledges itself to be indebted
and promises to pay to the Registered Owner shown above, or registered assigns, but solely from the source
and in the manner herein specified, the Principal Amount shown above on the Maturity Date shown above,
unless called for redemption prior to said Maturity Date, and to pay interest thereon at the Interest Rate per
annum shown above (computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months), from the Dated
Date shown above, or from the most recent date to which interest has been paid or duly provided for, payable
March 1 and September 1 of each year, commencing March 1, 2021 (the “Interest Payment Dates™), at
maturity or earlier redemption until the Principal Amount has been paid.

Method and Place of Payment. The principal or redemption price of this Note shall be paid at
maturity or upon earlier redemption to the person in whose name this Note is registered at the maturity or
redemption date thereof, upon presentation and surrender of this Note at the principal office of the Treasurer
of the State of Kansas, Topeka, Kansas (the “Paying Agent” and “Note Registrar””). The interest payable

A-1



on this Note on any Interest Payment Date shall be paid to the person in whose name this Note is registered
on the registration books maintained by the Note Registrar at the close of business on the Record Date(s)
for such interest, which shall be the 15th day (whether or not a business day) of the calendar month next
preceding the Interest Payment Date. Such interest shall be payable (a) by check or draft mailed by the
Paying Agent to the address of such Registered Owner shown on the Note Register or at such other address
as is furnished to the Paying Agent in writing by such Registered Owner; or, (b) in the case of an interest
payment to Cede & Co. or any Owner of $500,000 or more in aggregate principal amount of Notes, by
electronic transfer to such Owner upon written notice given to the Note Registrar by such Registered Owner,
not less than 15 days prior to the Record Date for such interest, containing the electronic transfer instructions
including the bank, ABA routing number and account number to which such Registered Owner wishes to
have such transfer directed. The principal or redemption price of and interest on the Notes shall be payable
in any coin or currency that, on the respective dates of payment thereof, is legal tender for the payment of
public and private debts. Interest not punctually paid will be paid in the manner established in the within
defined Note Resolution.

Definitions. Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined herein shall have the
meanings assigned to such terms in the hereinafter defined Note Resolution.

Authorization of Notes. This Note is one of an authorized series of Notes of the Issuer designated
“Taxable General Obligation Temporary Notes, Series 2020-1,” aggregating the principal amount of
$[Principal Amount] (the “Notes™) issued for the purposes set forth in the Resolution of the Issuer
authorizing the issuance of the Notes (the “Note Resolution™). The Notes are issued by the authority of and
in full compliance with the provisions, restrictions and limitations of the Constitution and laws of the State
of Kansas, including K.S.A. 10-101 et seq., specifically including K.S.A. 10-123, K.S.A. 10-620 et seq.,
and Article 12, Section 5 of the Constitution of the State of Kansas, as amended, and all other provisions of
the laws of the State of Kansas applicable thereto.

General Obligations. The Notes constitute general obligations of the Issuer payable as to both
principal and interest from the proceeds of general obligation bonds of the Issuer, and if not so paid, from
ad valorem taxes which may be levied without limitation as to rate or amount upon all the taxable tangible
property, real and personal, within the territorial limits of the Issuer. The full faith, credit and resources of
the Issuer are hereby pledged for the payment of the principal of and interest on this Note and the issue of
which it is a part as the same respectively become due.

Redemption Prior to Maturity. The Notes are subject to redemption prior to maturity as set forth
in the Note Resolution,

Book-Entry System. The Notes are being issued by means of a book-entry system with no
physical distribution of note certificates to be made except as provided in the Note Resolution. One Note
certificate with respect to each date on which the Notes are stated to mature or with respect to each form of
Notes, registered in the nominee name of the Securities Depository, is being issued and required to be
deposited with the Securities Depository and immobilized in its custody. The book-entry system will
evidence positions held in the Notes by the Securities Depository’s participants, beneficial ownership of
the Notes in Authorized Denominations being evidenced in the records of such participants. Transfers of
ownership shall be effected on the records of the Securities Depository and its participants pursuant to rules
and procedures established by the Securities Depository and its participants. The Issuer and the Note
Registrar will recognize the Securities Depository nominee, while the Registered Owner of this Note, as
the owner of this Note for all purposes, including (i) payments of principal of, and redemption premium, if
any, and interest on, this Note, (ii) notices and (iii) voting. Transfer of principal, interest and any redemption
premium payments to participants of the Securities Depository, and transfer of principal, interest and any
redemption premium payments to beneficial owners of the Notes by participants of the Securities

A-2



Depository will be the responsibility of such participants and other nominees of such beneficial owners.
The Issuer and the Note Registrar will not be responsible or liable for such transfers of payments or for
maintaining, supervising or reviewing the records maintained by the Securities Depository, the Securities
Depository nominee, its participants or persons acting through such participants. While the Securities
Depository nominee is the owner of this Note, notwithstanding the provision hereinabove contained,
payments of principal of, redemption premium, if any, and interest on this Note shall be made in accordance
with existing arrangements among the Issuer, the Note Registrar and the Securities Depository.

Transfer and Exchange. EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE PROVIDED IN THE NOTE
RESOLUTION, THIS GLOBAL NOTE MAY BE TRANSFERRED, IN WHOLE BUT NOT IN
PART, ONLY TO ANOTHER NOMINEE OF THE SECURITIES DEPOSITORY OR TO A
SUCCESSOR SECURITIES DEPOSITORY OR TO A NOMINEE OF A SUCCESSOR
SECURITIES DEPOSITORY. This Note may be transferred or exchanged, as provided in the Note
Resolution, only on the Note Register kept for that purpose at the principal office of the Note Registrar,
upon surrender of this Note together with a written instrument of transfer or authorization for exchange
satisfactory to the Note Registrar duly executed by the Registered Owner or the Registered Owner’s duly
authorized agent, and thereupon a new Note or Notes in any Authorized Denomination of the same maturity
and in the same aggregate principal amount shall be issued to the transferee in exchange therefor as provided
in the Note Resolution and upon payment of the charges therein prescribed. The Issuer shall pay all costs
incurred in connection with the issuance, payment and initial registration of the Notes and the cost of a
reasonable supply of note blanks. The Issuer and the Paying Agent may deem and treat the person in whose
name this Note is registered on the Note Register as the absolute owner hereof for the purpose of receiving
payment of, or on account of, the principal or redemption price hereof and interest due hercon and for all
other purposes. The Notes are issued in fully registered form in Authorized Denominations.

Authentication. This Note shall not be valid or become obligatory for any purpose or be entitled
to any security or benefit under the hereinafter defined Note Resolution until the Certificate of
Authentication and Registration hereon shall have been lawfully executed by the Note Registrar.

IT IS HEREBY DECLARED AND CERTIFIED that all acts, conditions, and things required to
be done and to exist precedent to and in the issuance of this Note have been properly done and performed
and do exist in due and regular form and manner as required by the Constitution and laws of the State of
Kansas, and that the total indebtedness of the Issuer, including this series of notes, does not exceed any
constitutional or statutory limitation.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Issuer has caused this Note to be executed by the manual or
facsimile signature of its Mayor and attested by the manual or facsimile signature of its Clerk, and its seal
to be affixed hereto or imprinted hereon.

CITY OF LANSING, KANSAS
[(Facsimile Seal)] By: (manual or facsimile)
Mayor
ATTEST:
By: (manual or facsimile)
Clerk

This Taxable General Obligation Temporary Note shall not be negotiable unless and until
countersigned below following registration by the Treasurer of the State of Kansas.

(Facsimile Seal) (manual or facsimile)
Clerk

A-4



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION AND REGISTRATION

This Note is one of a series of Taxable General Obligation Temporary Notes, Series 2020-1, of the
City of Lansing, Kansas, described in the within-mentioned Note Resolution.

Registration Date:

Office of the State Treasurer,

Topeka, Kansas,
as Note Registrar and Paying Agent

By:

Registration Number:
CERTIFICATE OF CLERK
STATE OF KANSAS )
) SS.

COUNTY OF LEAVENWORTH )

The undersigned, Clerk of the City of Lansing, Kansas, does hereby certify that the within Note
has been duly registered in my office according to law as of October 1, 2020.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

(Facsimile Seal) (facsimile)
Clerk

CERTIFICATE OF STATE TREASURER
OFFICE OF THE TREASURER, STATE OF KANSAS
JAKE LATURNER, Treasurer of the State of Kansas, does hereby certify that a transcript of the

proceedings leading up to the issuance of this Note has been filed in the office of the State Treasurer, and
that this Note was registered in such office according to law on _

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

(Seal) By:

Treasurer of the State of Kansas




NOTE ASSIGNMENT

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned do(es) hereby sell, assign and transfer to

(Name and Address)

(Social Security or Taxpayer Identification No.)

the Note to which this assignment is affixed in the outstanding principal amount of $ , standing
in the name of the undersigned on the books of the Note Registrar. The undersigned do(es) hereby
irrevocably constitute and appoint as agent to transfer said Note on the books of
said Note Registrar with full power of substitution in the premises.

Dated

Name

Social Security or
Taxpayer Identification No.

Signature (Sign here exactly as name(s)
appear on the face of Certificate)

Signature guarantee:

By

LEGAL OPINION

The following is a true and correct copy of the approving legal opinion of Gilmore & Bell, P.C.,
Bond Counsel, which was dated and issued as of the date of original issuance and delivery of such Notes:

GILMORE & BELL, P.C.
Attorneys at Law
2405 Grand Boulevard
Suite 1100
Kansas City, Missouri 64108

(PRINTED LEGAL OPINION)




AGENDA ITEM

TO: Tim Vandall, City Administrator :z

FROM: Mike Spickelmier, Director of Public Works WS 9/ l ’/ 2020

DATE: September 11, 2020
SUBJECT: Resolution No. B-7-2020 - Regional Hazardous Mitigation Plan

Policy Consideration: A Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan is updated every 5 years as a joint effort of the
municipalities within Leavenworth, Wyandotte, and Johnson Counties in Kansas. Lieutenant Dickason is
the Lansing Representative on this plan, and helped in its crafting. The most recent edition of this 495
page document is available on the City of Lansing Website at the following link:

https://www.lansingks.org/DocumentCenter/View/7118/Kansas Homeland Security Region L Hazard M
itigation Planl

In additional to providing consistent hazard mitigation guidance for cities in the region, the adoption of
this plan is part of the Community Rating System (CRS) in coordination with the National Flood Insurance
Program (NFIP). Participation in the CRS assists residents by providing discounts on federally mandated
flood insurance for those homes in the flood plain.

Action:

1. The City Council adopt Resolution No. B-7-2020, the Kansas Homeland Security Region L Hazard
Mitigation Plan dated August 2019.

AGENDA ITEM # /]



CITY OF LANSING
RESOLUTION NO. B-7-2020
A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE REGIONAL
MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF LANSING, KANSAS, THAT:

WHEREAS, the city of Lansing recognizes the threat that natural hazards pose to people and property
within our community; and

WHEREAS, undertaking hazard mitigation actions will reduce the potential for harm to people and
property from future hazard occurrences; and

WHEREAS, the U.S. Congress passed the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 ("Disastet Mitigation
Act") emphasizing the need for pre-disaster mitigation of potential hazards;

WHEREAS, the Disaster Mitigation Act made available hazard mitigation grants to state and local
governments; and

WHEREAS, the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) requires the adoption of a multi-
jurisdictional hazard mitigation plan to meet the requirements of the Disaster Mitigation Act and as a condition
of future funding for mitigation projects under multiple FEMA pre- and post-disaster mitigation grant
programs; and

WHEREAS, city of Lansing has fully participated in the FEMA-prescribed mitigation planning
process to prepare this Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan; and

WHEREAS, the Kansas Division of Emergency Management and the FEMA officials have reviewed
the Regional Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan and approved it contingent upon adoption by the
governing bodies of all participating jurisdictions; and

WHEREAS, the city of Lansing desires to comply with the requirements of the Disaster Mitigation Act
and to augment its emergency planning efforts by formally adopting the Regional Multi-Jutisdictional Hazard
Mitigation Plan; and

WHEREAS, being patt of this regional plan allows the city to address its hazatds and develop
mitigation actions and incorporate those with the mitigation actions of Regional jurisdictions in the plan, to wit:
Leavenworth County, Johnson County, and Wyandotte County; and

WHEREAS, adoption of the Regional Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan demonstrates a
commitment to fulfilling the mitigation goals and objectives as outlined in the Plan and authorizes responsible
agencies to carry out their responsibilities under the Plan.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF LANSING,
KANSAS, THAT:

1. The Kansas Homeland Security Region L. Hazard Mitigation Plan dated August 2019
(incorporated herein by reference) for the unincorporated areas of Leavenworth County, Kansas, is accepted
and approved.

2. The Leavenworth County Department of Emergency Management is heteby directed to submit
this Resolution to Kansas Division of Emergency Management and Federal Emergency Management
Agency officials to enable the Plan's final approval.



3. Agency personnel of city of Lansing are requested and instructed to putsue available funding
opportunities from the State and Federal Emergency Management Agencies for suppott and implementation of
hazard mitigation activities under the Plan.

4. Resolution No. B-5-14 is hereby repealed.

5. This Resolution shall be and become effective upon adoption and shall be published once in the
official city newspaper, the Leavenworth Times.

ADOPTED BY THE GOVERNING BODY AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR, this 17th day of
September 2020

Michael W. Smith, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sarah Bodensteiner, City Clerk

SEAL

Published: Leavenworth Times

Date:




AGENDA ITEM

TO: Tim Vandall, City Administrator” ;j,/ e
FROM: Anthony J. Zell, Jr., Wastewater Utility Director?

DATE: September 11, 2020
SUBJECT:  Drainage Basin 9G/9H Sanitary Sewer Interceptor Extension Study

Sanitary sewers predicate growth. Without infrastructure improvements and expansion, Lansing
will not be able to meet the future needs of potential developments. Staff feels the next logical
location for future growth to occur in Lansing is southward, adjacent to K7 Highway. In
preparation for this potential growth, new sanitary sewers will be needed. The 2014 Sanitary
Sewer Master Plan identified a large 30” gravity sewer running south, along the west side of K7
Highway to service ultimate growth in three sub basins, totaling nearly 1,500 acres.

While there are no active projects in the area, there may be suitable alternatives for sewers in
the short term, before expanding the pipe network to service the entire watershed. Staff
requested a scope and fee from George Butler Associates (GBA) to examine those options.

The intent of the study is to determine available options to extend sewer from near K7 and
Gilman Road, south to Mcintyre Road and points upstream. The study will investigate existing
sewers currently in service (and if and when they need to be upgraded), new gravity sewers
needed, potential pump station/force main locations, and timeline and cost estimates for the
necessary improvements. The results of this study will provide staff and the governing body the
information needed to make fiscally responsible decisions as development occurs.

Attached is a map of the sewer basins, with preliminary layouts from the 2014 Master Plan. The
negotiated scope and fee to perform this study is $43,244.

Policy Consideration: The City has an established relationship with GBA, and their team have
performed several projects for the Utility within the last 6 years. The results of their work have
always exceeded expectations, and many of their projects came in below their anticipated
engineering fee. The City’s purchasing policy allows staff to solicit previous firms for
professional services if they have completed similar work in the recent past.

Financial Consideration: Funds for this project are available in the Utility’s Engineering Services
Account, 50-050-41120.

Recommended Action: A motion to approve the scope and fee for the 9H Drainage Basin
Sewer Study, in an amount of $43,244.00 (Forty-three thousand, two-hundred and forty-four
dollars).

AGENDA ITEM #




| o 4 O‘
9F1-01 9F1-02_ & AR
\—-—q‘;;sgﬁ & o° ‘ |
| -

larxem Road

I
843-11

Copyright 2014, George Butier Asscciotes, Ino.

y
waamacnes % ] 1
' § 5512 %, ,A'.._ e
_-------.*— oy
K o 00313
! f EVEP -

LY
1)
R

Lansing City Parks
Lansing Schoo! Sites

7}

H M

)
w

§ F 243=15 LEGEND
%‘ '. [ D Mount Calvary Cemetery
< | i *“"'"F:'Hs ]  Lansing Comrectional Facility
IS — 24 IR,
f ! R D s -~ I rensingwwrr
B
i |
! .

(g. smwms Basin Boundary

§ ----- Sub-Basin Boundary

s =45 2 = @ 0 Floodway

l‘ mm——mg Future Sewer Lines

400" £00° S=EmN=e Future Road Bore

o ~——- Existing Sewer Lines

xuacss - Service Area to Manhole
QA Basin Number

BASIN LOCATION KEY 9A1  Sub-Basin Number

9 MILE BASINS
96 BASIN
9H BASIN
91 BASIN

GBA

Po/ferRoad architects

engineers

SCALE : | INCW = 400 FEET

_,_
'l
V4

L)
L]
[}
[}
L)

X2600.0w0  Loyout: 904HHH ==
'l

h. _[

LN

‘.'é! .‘.._
(s YI6€

B13.492.040
| www.gbateam.com

9801 Renner Boulevard
Lenexa, Kansas 65719 3




City Clerk's Office/Building Maintenance Vehicle and Equipment Report

Vehicles
Mileage | Mileage | Miles
Year Make Model Description Start Ending | Driven Comments
2007 Ford Econoline 15 Passenger Wagon 20627 20,672 45
0
0
0
0
Total 45
Equipment
Hours Hours Hours
Year Make Model Description Start End Used Comments
2018 Advance SC1500 AutoScrubber Floor Machine 34.93 34.93 0|Community Center Cleaning
2018 Kubota 7G227-A Mower 150 154.4 4.4
0
0
0
0
Total 44




Parks and Recreation Fleet Report August 2020

Vehicles:

Mileage | Mileage | Miles
Year |Make Model Description Start Ending | Driven [Current Use Comments
2011 |[Dodge Charger passenger car 78242 78307 65|AC/Parks use
2014 |Ford F-350 Dump truck 16387.30| 16854.00| 466.7|Parks maintenance
2016  |Jeep Patriot SUV 64744 64772 28| Activity Center use
2017 |Chevrolet Silverado truck 14377 14614 237|Parks maintenance
2018 |Ford F-350 4-dr crew 15294 15832 538|Parks maintenance
Total 1334.70
Equipment:

Hours Hours Hours

Year |Make Model Description Start End used |Current Use Comments
1992 [Massey Ferguson |1020 Tractor 1980.7| 1980.7 0|Parks maintenance
2005 |Kubota F3060 mower 313.1 314 0.9|Parks maintenance
2007 |Turbo Tool Cat |5600 utility vehicle 1169.8 1170 0.2|Parks maintenance
2012 |Wright ZK stander mower 1094 1095 1|Parks maintenance
2016 |ABI Force infield groomer Parks maintenance out for service
2017 |[Kubota ZD1211 mower 573.4 598 24.6|Parks maintenance
2018 |Polaris Ranger utility vehicle 183.2 196 12.8|Parks maintenance
2019 |Exmark LZ 72 mower 242.5 290.3 47.8|Parks maintenance
2019 |Emark LZ 96 mower 158.6 172 13.4|Parks maintenance
2020 |Kubota ZD1211 mower 0 6.6 6.6|Parks maintenance replaced 2014 Kubota
Total 107.30




Lansing Police Department

Vehicle Fleet End of Month Report

Aug-2020

Mileage Mileage Miles
Unit |Year |Make/Model Last5 VIN |as of 08/13 as of 09/01 Driven |[Current Use |Future Use Comments
1
2| 2020|Dodge Durango 96952 3139 3830 691|Patrol Patrol Fit for patrol duty
3| 2015|Ford Explorer 40975 68910 69472 562|Patrol Patrol Fit for patrol duty
4| 2015|Ford Explorer 40976 51872 52515 643|Patrol Patrol Fit for patrol duty
5| 2012|Dodge Charger 07027 46386 46928 542|Patrol Patrol Fit for patrol duty
6| 2019|Dodge Durango 85334 21000 21763 763|Sergeants Sergeants Limited Use - Sergeants
7| 2018|Ford Explorer 34004 7821 7821 0[Captain Captain Limited Use - Captain
8a| 2017|Dodge Charger 86270 50296 51151 855|Patrol Patrol Fit for patrol duty
9| 2018|Ford Explorer 34003 28539 28579 40|Patrol Patrol Fit for patrol duty
10| 2011|Dodge Charger 52349 61412 61943 531|Lieutenant Lieutenant Limited Use - Lieutenant
11| 2003|Ford F150 64639 84596 84801 205|Animal Control |Animal Control |Fit for animal control duty
12| 2019|Dodge Durango 85335 7792 8141 349|Chief Chief Limited Use - Chief
13a| 2017|Dodge Charger 96163 49243 49744 501|Patrol Patrol Fit for patrol duty
15| 2018|Ford Explorer 34002 29122 29411 289|Patrol Patrol Fit for patrol duty
17| 2016|Dodge Charger 23367 43758 44377 619|Patrol Patrol Fit for patrol duty
Mileage Total: 6590




Lansing Public Works Department
Monthly Fleet Report

Month August Year 2020
Vehicles
Mileage | Mileage
Year Make Model Description Starting Ending | Miles Driven Comments
2008 Ford Ranger XLT LT. Pick-up Ext 57,850 58,130 280
2007 Ford Ranger XLT LT. Pick-up Ext 49,867 50,378 511
1998 Ford 1/2 ton Pick-up 66,638 66,747 109
2005 Ford Ranger LT. Pick-up Ext 47,173 47,337 164
2005 Sterling LT 8500 Dump Truck 55,427 55,772 345
2007 Elgin Crosswind J+ Street Sweeper 6,547 6,574 27
1992 Ford 700 Dump Truck 64,361 64,361 0
2017 Chevrolet 3500 Pick-up Truck 18,639 19,211 572
2011 International 7400 Dump Truck 18,689 18,689 0 in shop
2016 Ford F350 4x4 One-ton Dump Truck | 13,099 13,357 258
2013 Ford Explorer SUvV 68,014 68,537 523
2019 Ford Ecosport SuUvV 4,016 4,236 220
2020 Chevrolet 3500 One-ton Dump Truck 0 112 112




Equipment

Hours Hours
Year Make Model Description Starting Ending Hours Used Comments
1997 JD 770BH Grader 2,080 5,088 3,008
2004 IR DD-24 Asphalt Roller 291 294 3
2006 IR 185 Air Compressor 210 21 1
1997 Bobcat 763 Skid Steer 2,210 2,221 11
2014 Case 580 SNWT Backhoe 1,438 1,438 0 in shop
2002 Crafco 110 Crack Sealer 808 808 0
2003 Kubota L3710 Tractor 1,631 1,631 0
2009 Case 465 Skid Steer 659 670 11
2018 John Deere 5065E Tractor 86 109 22.8
2018 Vermeer BC1000 Chipper 0 8 7.6




August

City Influent 26.41 MG City Avg Daily .852 MGD
LCF Influent 5.34 MG LCF Daily Avg 172 MGD
Total Biosolids 1.25 Precip 2.06 inches
Vehicles

Mileage | Mileage | Miles
Year Make Model Description Start | Ending | Driven |Current Use Comments
1999 Sterling Vactor Jet Truck 8272 8297 25|Collection System
2012 Chevrolet Tahoe Suv 104552 104552 0|Ops/Maint.
2019 Ford F250 Pick Up Truck 5903 6195 292|Ops/Maint.
2019 Ford F250 Flatbed Truck 1735 1911 176|Ops/Maint.
2005 Freightliner M2106 Dump Truck 24215| 24297 82|Biosolids Disposal
Total 575
Equipment

Hours Hours Hours

Year Make Model Description Start Ending Used |Current Use Comments
1991 Case 1825 Uni-Loader 959 959 0|Plant Activities
1999 Sterling Vactor Jet Truck 2254 2261 7|Collection System
2004 John Deere 7920 Tractor 1257 1261 4|Biosolids Disposal
2005 Polaris Ranger #1 Utility Vehicle 1340 1345 5|Operations
2004 Case 621D Loader 2367 2370 3|Operations
2005 Polaris Ranger #2 Utility Vehicle 1385 1391 6|Maintenance
2006 JCB 531-70 Telehandler 615 619 4|Plant Activities




COMMUNITY AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
PERMITS/LICENSES AND CODE ENFORCEMENT REPORT FOR AUGUST

TO: Tim Vandall, City Administrator

FROM: Matthew R. Schmitz, Director, Community and Economic Development
DATE: September 2, 2020

PERMITS AND LICENSES: Current Month Year to Date
Number of permits issued................cccooeeeii i, 20 ., 250
Number of permits for new single-family housing completed.......... O, 4

Number of permits for new multi-family housing completed............ O e 0

Number of occupancy certificates issued..............cccooveeevveeeceoeen... 2 e, 16

Number of permits for new single-family housing currently in process or pending issuance...... 1

Number of permits for new multi-family housing currently in process or pending issuance ....... 1

Total valuation of residential and commercial
construction and remodeling for which

permits Were iSSUB............oooviiiiie e $101,708.00...................... $4,556,016.24
Permit fEES. ....oeiieeei e $1,516.00.........cccoenne. $56,056.00
Number of inspections performed .............ccccoooevvivieiricce e, Ol csasms i 369
Number of trade licenses issued ...............ccoooeeieceecinemeeeeeeeeen v A 315
Total trade contractor licenses issued...............cooovveeoveeeeeeeern O R P 108
Number of occupational licenses issued ..................ccooeovirin .. 0 et 107
CODE ENFORCEMENT: Current Month Year to Date
Nuisance Report

Three Day Warnings:.........c.ocoovoreeroieeeeeeeee et 32 188
Certified Letters Sent:.............ccoooo oo T o 5
COMPLIBINGCE: ...t 1S e, 129
Compliance ReVIEW: ..........cuieiiieieie e 1B e, 155
Vehicle Report

Warning Letters/Verbal: ............cccoooveiiiiei e B 41
Certified Letters Sent (20 Days): ........ccceeeveeeeieeeeeee e 0 e, 2
COMPIIANCE: ..ottt U UUORUPU 25
Compliance REVIEW: ...........c.ooceiiiieeeeeeee e, U 41
Weeds Report

Three Day WarNINgS:........ccccooieieiieeee et eeeeans 35 e, 109
Certified Letters Sent:............ocooviiiieeee e, T, 10
CoMPlIANCE: .....coui ittt s 10 46
ComMPlIANCE REVIBW. .........coeieeieeieeeee et 10 e 80
Infiltration of Storm Water System

Three Day Warnings: .............ovoveeeiee oo eeeeenann O 0
Certified Letters Sent: ..., L T 0
COMPHIANCE: ...ttt ettt e e s L0 0
Compliance REVIEW: ........c.ccoouiiiiieiiiie ettt 0 U 0
Additional Actions

Violation Publications:.................ooicieeeoe e L T 0
Number of Court ACtONS: ...........c.cceoeviiiiiee e, L U 1
ADATE: ..o et 2 e 7
CHALIONS. ...t e res 2 3



Steven Wayman

From: Green, Jen S <jegreen@saint-lukes.org>
Sent: Thursday, September 3, 2020 9:18 AM
To: Steven Wayman

Subject: FW: Kudos!

I wanted to reach out to your agency to pass along a Kudos for one of your officers that was exceptional with a
patients that was seen for sexual assault. Thank you for providing our community trauma informed victim
centered service!

Jennifer S Green MSN-FN BSN BA RN SANE-A
Clinical Forensic Care Program Manager
Saint Luke’s Health System

4401 Wornall Road

Kansas City, Mo 64111

816-932-5965 (office)

913-205-4672 (cell)

jegreen@saint-lukes.org

From: Green, Jen S

Sent: Tuesday, September 1, 2020 8:47 AM
To: jsgreen1973@gmail.com

Subject: FW: Kudos!

From: Evans-Simpson, Sarah <sevans-simpson@saint-lukes.org>
Sent: Monday, August 31, 2020 2:09 AM

To: Green, Jen S <jegreen@saint-lukes.org>

Subject: Kudos!

I had a great experience with Lansing PD tonight. Ofc. Munoz responded to my case at Legends. He was
amazing. He was very victim centered and listened to what the pt had to say. He was attentive to what she
needed and what she had to say. He apologized to the patient for what happened and make sure she knew
this wasn't her fault.

He then waited to get the kit! | told him thank you but | wanted to be sure his superior knew!

Thanks!

Sarah Evans-Simpson, RN, BSN, TCRN
Forensic Nurse Examiner

St. Luke's Forensic Program
She/her/hers



	09-17-2020 Agenda Cover.pdf
	COUNCIL AGENDA
	Regular Meeting
	       Thursday, September 17, 2020
	7:00 P.M.

	  CITY OF LANSING
	  Council Chambers
	  800 1st Terrace

	 In order to adhere to social distancing and limiting large gatherings of people to mitigate the spread of COVID-19, the Lansing City Meeting will not be open to the public.  In accordance with Kansas Open Meetings Act (KOMA), the meeting can be view...
	Call To Order
	Pledge of Allegiance
	Roll Call
	OLD BUSINESS:
	NEW BUSINESS:
	Audience Participation
	Council Consideration of Agenda Items:
	2. League of Kansas Municipalities Voting Delegates
	3. Lansing Tree Board Appointment
	4. Ordinance No. 1048 – Issuance of General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2020-A
	5. Resolution No. B-5-2020 – Sale and Delivery of General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2020-A
	6. Resolution No. B-6-2020 – Issuance, Sale, and Delivery of Taxable General Obligation Temporary Notes, Series 2020-1
	7. Resolution No. B-7-2020 – Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan
	8. Drainage Basin 9G/9H Sanitary Sewer Interceptor Extension Study
	Reports:
	Proclamations
	Other Items of Interest:
	 Monthly Department Vehicle and Equipment Mileage Reports
	 Community & Economic Development Permits/Licenses & Code Enforcement Report
	 Lansing Police Department Kudos – Officer Munoz
	Adjournment





